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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MEBERERBREBER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MERE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZE H=E
—E-= —E-—F
+=A=+-8A +=A=+—H
IEEE HFEE
RMB million RMB million

Gross revenue FEl g
Revenue Wz
EBITDA S9N AT A B
EBIT (Loss from operations) =N IR NES
(e EE)

Loss attributable to equity shareholders 72 A IR R fE (5 E548
of the Company

ARBEER ARBEBETT

847.8 1,316.4
376.1 494.3
(23.0) (33.0)
(211.6) (189.1)
(361.7) (368.0)

Basic loss per share FIREAREIR (15.5) cents & (15.8) cents o

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

R=-Z2-Z R_T_—%

+=BA=+—-R ft-A=+-8

RMB million RMB million

ARBEER ARBBEETT

Net assets of the Group REBEEFE 1,507.0 1,808.3

NAV per ordinary share @ BT BREEFE? 1.31 yuan Tt 1.57 yuan 7T

Notes: Bt -

(1 Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising from the (1) BNFIEEER R TAZTERRP 2B

sales of goods, concession sales charged to retail customers,
gross rental income and management and administrative
service fee income charged to tenants.

(2) NAV per ordinary share represents the total equity attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company per ordinary share.
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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MBRRERBAEXREER

KEY PERFORMANCE INDEX BREKEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Bz HE
—E=-= —E-—F
+=—BA=+—-H +=-A=+—H
IEFEE HFEE
RMB RMB
AR AR TT
Sales per ticket @ RBEFED 1,007 1,125
Annualised area efficiency (per m?) @ FEATH (BFHK)@ 12,400 21,800

Notes: W 5t -

(1) Sales per ticket represents gross revenue per total number of (1)
transactions of department stores. BE

(2) Annualised area efficiency represents annualised gross revenue (2)

per average operating area of department stores.
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Five Years Summary Financial Information

EFEMBERRBE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 {2 —F ——F+ -_H=1—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi ("RMB"))  (UAEE ([AR%E])Z5)
RESULTS
Nine months
Year ended Year ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 _Year ended 31 March
Bz S fz BEZA=t-HLEFE
—E--f -—T-—% —ZE-FTE 2020 2019
+=RA=+-A +-A=t-H +=-A=1+—H RMB'000 RMB'000
THEE iﬁg tﬂﬁﬁ ;g;%ﬁ :gjﬂi
ARETRT ARETR ARETT AR%Trx ARETR
Revenue e
- Continuing operations ~FELEER 376,070 494,280 397,021 642,012 1,054,065
- Discontinued operations —RIFREER - - - - -
376,070 494,280 397,021 642,012 1,054,065
(Loss)/profit attributable ADNEREEMR
to equity shareholders (B18),/ &7
of the Company
- Continuing operations ~RELEER 361,737 (367,967) (635,095)  (1,279,095) (261,575)
- Discontinued operations —RIEREER - - - - -
361,737 (367,967) (635,095) (1,279,095) (261,575)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEREE
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2020 As at 31 March
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 R=BA=t—H
. 2020 2019
R-B--F WZTZ—F RZIZZTF RMB'000 RMB'000
+=A=+-R +ZA=+—-8 +ZA=t-H Z—EZTF ZT-NF
ARBTT ARBTr ARETHT AR%®Tr ARETR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE 7,353,273 7,058,735 6,397,191 6,669,619 7,1 99,981___
CURRENT ASSETS RPEE 199,832 150,710 687,307 721,565 1,061,670
DEDUCT: ik
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE 4,442,302 2,789,331 2,733,966 2,645,748 2,040,450
NET CURRENT MBAEFE
LIABILITIES (4,242,470) (2,638,621) (2,046,659) (1,924,183) (978,780_)__
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRYER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,110,803 4,420,114 4,350,532 4,745,436 6,221,201
DEDUCT: ik
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FrBbat 1,603,771 2,611,854 2,312,560 2,036,718 2,132,976
NET ASSETS BEFHE 1,507,032 1,808,260 2,037,972 2,708,718 4,088,225

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Century
Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, with the penetration of e-commerce and repeated
outbreaks of the pandemic, the severe external market
environment posed great challenges to the development of
the commercial retail industry, and also affected confidence of
the consumer to a certain extent. However, as the domestic
pandemic prevention and control entered a new stage in
December 2022 and the government issued and vigorously
promoted the “Outline of Strategic Planning for Expanding
Domestic Demand (2022-2035)"”, the gradual resumption of
the real retail economy could be foreseen in 2023.

In 2022, the Company accommodated itself to the changes
in consumers featuring “new segments, new needs, new
habits and new expectations”, returned to the business
nature of “creating customer value and leading a better
life”, and focused on the strategic positioning of “building
a new business chain featured by business operation + asset
management”. Thanks to these efforts, certain results had
been achieved in the restoration of market confidence,
innovation of business model, upgrade of organisational
efficiency, and innovation-driven iteration.

In terms of the upgrading and renovation of existing assets,
the Xi‘an Saigo project is one of the Company's important
self-owned properties, and also a rare commercial property
renovation project in the local market, which has gained wide
concern in the industry. Thanks to the Company overcoming
many difficulties brought by the COVID-19 pandemic to
engineering construction and brand expansion in 2022,
it reached the state of trial operation in January 2023 as
scheduled, and introduced a number of first-opening brands
in the region to consumers, which further improved its asset
value and market influence.

The Company continued to improve its products and presences
in commercial districts, with the acquisition of the 20-year
operating lease right of the Daming Palace project in the core
area at the north of Xi‘an City. It is expected to greatly improve
and strengthen the Company’s market share in the Xi'an
market after opening in early 2024.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Meanwhile, regarding its supermarket business, the Company,
during the period of normalisation of pandemic prevention
and control, made full use of online tools to actively provide
living supplies for surrounding communities and fulfilled the
social responsibility of a state-owned listed company. This
not only maintained stable supply and met basic living needs,
but also improved the Company’s capabilities in supply chain
management and operational management, turning the
challenges brought by the pandemic on business development
into opportunities for business expansion.

FUTURE AND OUTLOOK

As the Company’'s important strategic layout for the north
area of Xi'an city, the Daming Palace project will focus on the
positioning of an innovative urban complex that integrates
diversified retail forms including cultural and creative business,
brand flagship stores and life-themed pavilions, to create
comprehensive entertainment experience featuring immersive
and deeply interactive, thus building a shared art space for
shopping and leisure, social communication and parent-child
fun. The transaction in relation to the lease of the Daming
Palace Shopping Mall was approved by the general meeting
in July 2022, however, the property has not been delivered
as of the date hereof as the status of the property has not
yet met the delivery standards as agreed in the contract. The
completion for delivery and the overall construction renovation
and brand introduction for the project is expected to take
place in 2023, and it will officially open in 2024. Moreover,
in an effort to consolidate the leading advantages in the mid-
to-high-end retail market in Xianyang city, the Company will
conduct adequate market research and analysis of location
advantages in Xianyang city, tap the potential of market
segments, and seek new commercial investment projects, so as
to further increase its market share in Xianyang city.

The supermarket business will continue to deepen its presences
in Xi‘an city and Xianyang city, improve efforts in upgrading
existing business, and explore high-quality supply chains with
selected categories as the focus, thus enhancing its core
competitiveness; while actively expanding toB business within
three kilometers around stores to increase the sales volume.
In Xi'an city, community fresh convenience stores will be
expanded in an established business model, and operating
profits will be released through economies of scale and strong
supply chain management. While achieving significant growth
in scale, it will also bring more possibilities for diversifying
financing channels.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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FUTURE AND OUTLOOK (continued)

The Company will further utilise digital management tools
to improve its operational efficiency, and carry out in-depth
business cooperation with Rainbow Group, a leading digital
operation enterprise in the industry. It will also make accurate
profiles of consumers, realise digital shopping guide, digital
products and digital services, and continue to optimise the
distribution incentive system.

Focusing on an outstanding efficient organisation and guided
by the striving spirit, the Company will continue to promote
the building of learning and innovation capabilities, cultivate
a learning culture and absorb innovative talents. Furthermore,
it will strengthen the construction of corporate culture,
and remain committed to the mission of creating an ideal
community for a better life in the cities, and the vision of a
trustworthy shared commercial service platform in the regional
central cities. The Company adheres to the values of customer
first, sincerity and good pursuance, so as to activate the deep-
seated cultural dynamics of corporate development.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to extend my sincere
thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers,
bankers and business associates for their continued strong
support.

Yao Jiangang
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the period under review, the performance of the Group
was illustrated as follows.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Gross revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 was RMB847.8 million as compared to
RMB1,316.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Annualised area efficiency (annualised gross revenue
per average operating area of department stores) for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was RMB12,400 per
square meter, as compared to RMB21,800 per square
meter for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 was RMB376.1 million as compared to RMB494.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The gross rental income and management and
administrative service fee income of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 were RMB68.6 million,
as compared to RMB110.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Group's loss from operations (EBIT) for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was RMB211.6 million as
compared to loss of RMB189.1 million for the year 31
December 2021. The operating profit margin (loss from
operations over gross revenue) changed from -14.4% to
-25.0%.

Net finance costs of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 were RMB204.1 million (2021:
RMB169.8 million).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)

(vii)  The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2022
and loss attributable to shareholders of the Company
were RMB378.9 million (2021: RMB381.4 million)
and RMB361.7 million (2021: RMB368.0 million)
respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's consolidated net
asset value was RMB1,507.0 million (31 December 2021:
RMB1,808.3 million). As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
cash at bank and on hand amounting to RMB19.5 million (31
December 2021: RMB36.5 million). The current ratio of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 was 0.04 (31 December 2021:
0.05). The gearing ratio, being bank and other borrowings and
lease liabilities less cash at bank and on hand divided by the
total equity, as at 31 December 2022, was 2.81 (31 December
2021: 2.13).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back at the reporting period, the PRC retail industry
faced and will continue to face challenges and be subject
to internal and external factors including macroeconomic
fluctuation, government policy guidance, rapid growth of
other retail channels such as e-commerce and rising costs in
the short term.

By adhering to the principle of managing its financial
resources in a prudent manner, the Group will optimise its cost
structure, improve its management efficiency and strengthen
its capability. It will strive to make progress in the PRC market
which is full of opportunities and challenges, in order to
create values for its customers and maximise the returns to its
shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

For the year ended 31 December, 2022, the Company did not
make any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group did not hold any significant investments.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, property and equipment with
an aggregate net book value of approximately RMB3,734
million (31 December 2021: RMB2,844.0 million), investment
property amounting to RMB728.8 million (31 December 2021:
RMB1,265.3 million) and cash at bank and on hand amounting
to RMB2.7 million (31 December 2021: RMB1.0 million) of the
Group had been pledged to secure the Group’s bank and other
borrowings. On 13 February 2023, the Group had pledged
12,980,000 A Shares of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. held
by it. The proceeds from the pledge were used as its working
capital. Such pledge commences from 13 February 2023 and
expires on 9 August 2023.

MATERIAL PLAN FOR INVESTMENT OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group intends to expand its retail operations via opening
of new branches. The source of funding will be primarily from
the proceeds from bank and other borrowings.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue
generated and costs incurred from the Group’s operation of
department stores, shopping mall and supermarkets were in
Renminbi. The Directors believe that the Group was not subject
to any significant exposure to foreign exchange risk as most
of the transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group were
denominated in Renminbi.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT

The Group leased out an non-freehold investment property
under operating leases for commercial use (shopping mall). It is
held under medium term lease and located in Blocks 1 and 3,
Saigo Shopping Centre, South of Feng Cheng Wu Road, West
of Wei Yang Road, Economic and Technological Development
Zone, Xi'an City, Shaanxi Province, The PRC.

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, due to the impact of numerous uncertainties in
domestic and international economy, the current situation may
not be greatly improved in the short term. However, leveraging
the restart and revival of the national economy coupled with
the positive guidance and stimulation of the government
departments on the consumption capacity, we believe that the
consumption capacity will be further released.

Favoured by the overall circumstances, the Company will also
diversify its business for increasing its profit, further develop
its brand agency business, introduce well-known domestic
and foreign brands to enter the northwest market, so as to
provide consumers with more quality choices and provide
operational management services to the franchise stores. By
reducing channels to directly provide goods to consumers,
the pattern of profit distribution will be changed. With our
strong brand strength, outstanding operating efficiency, good
financial performance and loyal customer base, we believe the
Company will maintain its leading position in the marketplace
among the industry and generate better returns for our
shareholders.

The Company will also adjust its strategy and formulate
corresponding policies in a timely manner in the face of many
unfavorable conditions.

In the aspect of existing business expansion, based on the
successful practice and experience of the trendy department
store and the supermarket business of the Group, we will
continue to strive for the healthy growth of scale for coverage
of second- and third-tier cities.
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FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK (continued)

In the aspect of business diversification which increases profit
sources, we will further develop brand agency business and
introduce well-known domestic and foreign brands to enter
the northwest market, so as to provide consumers with more
quality choices and provide operational management services
to the franchise stores. By reducing channels to directly provide
goods to consumers, the pattern of profit distribution will be
changed. With our strong brand strength, strong management
practice ability, superior geographical position and a large
number of loyal customer bases, we are confident that the
Company will maintain its leading position in the industry and
generate better returns for our shareholders.

Looking back at the reporting period, the challenges in
the PRC retail industry have intensified and the industry
will be subject to internal and external factors including
macroeconomic fluctuation, government policy guidance, rapid
growth of other retail channels such as e-commerce, rising
operational costs, capital liquidity shortages and financing
difficulties.

By adhering to the principle of managing its financial
resources in a prudent manner, the Group will optimise its cost
structure, improve its management efficiency and strengthen
its capability. It will strive to make progress in the PRC market
which is full of opportunities and challenges, in order to
create values for its customers and maximise the returns to its
shareholders.

Cooperation with Investment Fund

After successful introduction of Hony Capital, a leading
private-equity firm in China sponsored by Legend Holdings,
in late 2010 to acquire the Company’s convertible bonds
amounting to HK$1,330.5 million, the cooperation between
Hony Capital and the Group has become closer. In December
2012, Hony Capital had not only made additional capital
contribution to the Group of US$60 million (approximately
HK$470 million) for business expansion and as working capital,
but also used all of its existing convertible bonds to subscribe
for non-redeemable convertible preferred shares which
reduced the debt burden of the Group, substantially increased
shareholders’ capital and strengthened the financial position.
As at the date of this annual report, Hony Capital held 28.07%
of the Company’s ordinary share capital in issue and was the
Company’s second largest shareholder.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Optimize business structure and focus on the concept
of new retail

In the reporting period, the Company focused on the concept
of new retail, to achieve “technology upgrades, service
upgrades, management upgrades”. In the specific business
operations, brand adjustment, membership recruitment,
service techniques, teams of talents and other aspects, the
Company will abandon the original inertial thinking, and
constantly adopt new technologies and new methods to
achieve new breakthroughs in all aspects; at the same time,
the Company will implement planning and design in precise
marketing, management effectiveness, safety operations,
and other aspects one by one, and achieve the matching
of responsibilities and rights. Specific strategies include the
following five aspects:

Strategy I: Plan implementation. Thoroughly complete the
various business indicators of the year 2022. In the aspect of
brand adjustment, we must complete the brand adjustment
plan of 2022 according to the time node. It also clarifies the
overall operational planning work in the future.

Strategy Il: Active expansion. Continue to promote the work of
Xi‘an's global center project in an orderly manner. At the same
time, on the basis of comprehensive investigations, we will
continue to explore expansion projects in second- and third-tier
cities in the Shaanxi province.

Strategy lll: Capital protection. Strengthen revenue, use new
types of financing channel tools, optimise the receivable
turnover period and create a healthy capital liquidity
environment.

Strategy IV: Driven innovation. Integrate consumer finance
and internet financial products; meanwhile analyse the
consumption behavior data of members, and develop the
mobile application of shopping guides.

Strategy V: Management effectiveness. Fully embody the
corporate culture effectiveness, performance management
effectiveness and communication mechanism efficiency, and
integrate the application of new management technologies.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group’s contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 31 to
the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
in respect of the reporting period (year ended 31 December
2021: HK$Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the number of the Group’s staffs
was approximately 2,000 (31 December 2021: 2,500),
including approximately 1,000 (31 December 2021: 1,050)
directly employed full time employees, and the remaining
being concession sales staffs managed on behalf of the
suppliers; and the number of male and female employees
was approximately 350 and approximately 1,650, respectively,
accounting for approximately 17.5% and approximately
82.5%), respectively. Most of the employees are employed
in Mainland China. The directly employed employees’
remuneration, promotion and salary increments are assessed
based on both the Group’s performance and the professional
and working experience of the individual as well as by
reference to prevailing market practice and standards.
Apart from the general remuneration package, the Group
also grants discretionary bonus to the eligible staffs based
on their performance and contribution to the Group. The
Group regards high-calibre staffs as one of the key factors to
corporate success. Details of staff costs of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 6 to
the financial statements. Details of the Group’s staff training
programmes are set out in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this Annual Report.

The Company has implemented fair employment practices, and
adopted the principles of merit-based employment and talents
for suitable positions in the recruitment process without any
gender discrimination.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yao Jiangang (“Mr. Yao")

Mr. Yao, aged 52, was appointed as an executive director, the
chairman of the Board and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Board on 14 December 2022. Mr. Yao
graduated from Xi'an International Studies University in
1994 and Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in
2022. He holds an associate’s degree in German from the
Adult Education College of Xi'an International Studies
University and a master’s degree in business administration.
Mr. Yao has extensive experience in business, retail and
management. He joined Century Ginwa in September
2021, and currently holds the position as the president
of Century Ginwa Co., Ltd.. Mr. Yao served as the senior
business consultant of Fujian Dongbai Group and the general
manager of Lanzhou Center of Lanzhou Oriental Friendship
Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (BMNERAFKEEXBR LA EM
L) from 2017 to August 2021. He worked as the vice
president of Xi‘an Kaiyuan Investment Group from 2012 to
2017. He also served as the general manager of Shanghai
Kaitong Business Management Co., Ltd.* ( F/GslBEEE
EARAF) from 2010 to 2011. He also worked at Hong
Kong Walden International Business Management Co., Ltd.*
(BBEEHEEEEE AR AT as the chief business officer
from 2007 to 2009. He served as the general manager of Xi‘an
Meimei Department Store* (FZFEFEHE/7A7A]) from 2005 to
2007, and the deputy general manager of Century Ginwa Co.,
Ltd. from 1996 to 2004.

Mr. Qin Chuan (“Mr. Qin")

Mr. Qin, aged 60, was appointed as an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Company on 21 October
2019. He was an executive Director from November 2001
to March 2006. He ceased to be a Director since March
2006 to 20 October 2019. He currently holds directorships
at certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qin graduated in
Shaanxi Radio & Television University majoring in mechanical
engineering in 1987 and obtained a degree of Master of
Business Administration in China Europe International Business
School graduated in 2005. Mr. Qin has rich experience in
investment, finance and listed companies’ management.
He joined Ginwa Investments Holding Group Ltd. (“Ginwa
Investments”) in 1995 and was the vice-president of Ginwa
Investments from 2011 to March 2021. Mr. Qin has worked
in Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600080) since 1995
and is currently the assistant to the president. He was the
director of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. from May 2011 to
October 2018.
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Ms. Wan Qing (“Ms. Wan")

Ms. Wan, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director
on 24 June 2020. She currently holds directorships at
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Wan graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Xi'an
Jiaotong University. She holds a master’s degree in business
administration. Ms. Wan has obtained certain professional
qualifications in the PRC including certified public accountant
and certified tax agent. Ms. Wan is experienced in financing,
finance and mergers and acquisitions. She joined the Group
since 2008, and holds the positions as financial controller
and deputy general manager of Century Ginwa Co., Ltd.. In
June 2020, Ms. Wan was appointed as a vice president of the
Group. From 2002 to 2008, Ms. Wan worked in a reputable
accounting firm in the PRC and was responsible for audit
work.

Mr. Huang Zhihua (“Mr. Huang”)

Mr. Huang, aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 14 December 2022. Mr. Huang graduated
from Zhengzhou University of Aeronautics in 1999 and
Northwestern Polytechnical University in 2009. He holds a
bachelor’s degree in industrial engineering and a master’s
degree in business administration. Mr. Huang has extensive
experience in financing, finance and investment management.
He has joined Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Financial Holdings
(Group) Co., Ltd.* (AZHMIXtLemIER(EE)ERA
Al) since February 2020, and currently holds the positions
as a member of the CPC Committee and the investment
director. He served as the manager, deputy general manager
and risk control director of the first investment department of
Shaanxi Province Industry Investment Co., Ltd. from November
2011 to February 2020, and the director of the investment
project department of Shaanxi Investment Group from June
2003 to October 2011. He served as the director of the R&D
department of Shaanxi Jufeng Investment Information Co.,
Ltd.* (BRAEZREEMBREE LR from September
2002 to May 2003, and the director of the R&D Department of
Tianjin Ronghui Investment Consulting Co., Ltd.* (K ZFER
BEHRABMRETAR]) from July 2001 to September 2002.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Mr. Chen Shuai (“Mr. Chen”)

Mr. Chen, aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 3 December 2010. He was also appointed
as a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company on 7 January 2011 and the
nomination committee of the Company on 7 March 2012.
He currently holds directorships at certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Chen joined Hony Capital in 2003. As at the date of this
annual report, Hony Capital, through Glory Keen Holdings
Limited, (i) was beneficially interested in 322,727,272 ordinary
shares of the Company, representing approximately 28.07%
of the number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue,
and (ii) held the 1-year interest-free promissory note of
HK$247,184,318 issued by the Company. Mr. Chen directs
city services, hotel management, investments in financial
services, culture and media, consumer goods and retail and
construction material sectors of Hony Capital. Mr. Chen has
extensive experience in investment management, supplier
management and retail business.

Prior to joining Hony Capital in 2003, Mr. Chen had worked
in an investment company, a PRC retail chain and department
store and a PRC domestic comprehensive supermarket
company. Mr. Chen holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from The China Europe International
Business School. He received his bachelor degree in Economics
from Beijing Forestry University. Currently, Mr. Chen acts as a
director of Shanghai SMI Holding Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600649) and
Shanghai Environment Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 601200).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (“Mr. Tsang”)

Mr. Tsang, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 25 September 2008.
Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Tsang has over 20 years of experience in accounting
and finance. At present, he practices public accounting.

Mr. Tsang is currently the joint company secretary of Green
International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 2700).

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng (“Mr. Ruan”)

Mr. Ruan, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 May 2015. Mr. Ruan
is currently the Deputy General Manager of Bozhi Technology
(Beijing) Limited.

Mr. Ruan was the senior investment manager of Hony Capital
from 2003 to 2009. He previously worked in ZTE Capital
and TCL Ventures as vice president and executive director
respectively and served as a law lecturer mainly for corporate
law, tax law and securities law in the arts and law faculty in
Beijing University of Chemical Technology. During that period,
he was a part-time lawyer in a number of law firms. He has
solid legal practice experience and is familiar with corporate
governance, corporate finance and investment, mergers
and acquisition, business restructuring. He holds a master
of business administration degree from the China Europe
International Business School and a bachelor degree and a
master of economic law degree from the Law School of lJilin
University.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Ms. Song Hong (“Ms. Song"”)

Ms. Song, aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and a member of the
nomination committee of the Board on 30 October 2020.
She graduated from Nankai University in 1990 with a double
bachelor’s degree in tourism economic management and
sociology. She completed the EMBA program from the
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University in
2000. Ms. Song has nearly 30 years of experience in logistics
management and procurement. Ms. Song served as the
vice president and chief operating officer of Zhuhai Apex
Technology Co., Ltd. (FRBMIR=EHEKRHBRAF)
(currently named as Ninestar Corporation, a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code: 002180) and
Zhuhai Seine Technology Co., Ltd. (EK/GZEHNITENRILA D
B 27A) from 2016 to 2017. She worked at Hony Capital
from November 2008 to 2015, during which she served as
the founding partner and managing director of Beijing Hony
Yuanfang Investment Consultants Ltd. (dbFR5AZREHIKE
EERIABBR A A]), a subsidiary of Hony Capital, as well as the
vice president of Lenovo Mobile Co., Ltd., the president of
Shenzhen Longhao Co., Ltd. (RIIBEEBR AT (currently
named as Shenzhen Longhao Tiandi Co., Ltd. (RIITEEE X
#APRAA])) and the president of King Hero Limited (7 %
BBR/AF]) (a company established in the British Virgin Islands
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) for which
the companies were invested by Hony Capital. She worked
for Lenovo Group from 1998 to 2007, responsible for logistics
management and procurement business, and served as the vice
president of the global logistics department.
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Directors’ Report
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Environmental protection

In order to promote corporate governance, drive
environmental protection proactively, facilitate relationships
among stakeholders and contribute to the society, the
management has established Environmental, Social and
Governance (“"ESG"”) Committee to set targets, policies,
procedures and guidelines for ESG related matters so as to
promote the sustainable development of the Group’s business
and the community where the Group’s business is operated.
Five Task Forces are set up under the ESG Committee.
Members in the Task Forces come from the elites of relevant
departments responsible for assisting the ESG Committee
to monitor the promotion of the corresponding ESG related
matters, establish key performance indicators and periodic
effectiveness assessment. ESG Committee is responsible to
report to the board of directors periodically the status of
execution and recommendations of improvements.

The Group has set up an energy conservation project team to
implement a number of energy saving and emission reduction
measures in offices, department stores and supermarkets to
reduce electricity consumption, discharge of pollutants, and
to avoid wastage of resources. For achieving the concept of
"Green management and balanced development”, the Group
will continue to review and monitor the implementation of each
measure, and optimise the measures based on their effectiveness.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group has ensured and will continue to ensure full
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on its operations, including but not
limited to laws and regulations in relation to product safety
and liabilities, customer rights protection, employment and
occupational safety and laws and regulations relating to
property leasing and property management.

The management will monitor the impact of any changes in
the relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek
external advice if considered necessary.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group is engaged in the operation of department stores,
a shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC. The risks
associated include burglary, fire, significant incidents, cash
storage and in transit. The Group has followed relevant laws
and regulations to set up security measures to lower the
chance of these risks, to protect the security of human lives
and inventories and to minimise any loss.

For other risks, such as credit risks, interest rate risks, liquidity
risks, currency risks and equity price risks, and risk reduction
measures, please refer to “Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value” in note 29 to the financial statements.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group firmly believes that maintaining good relationship
with key stakeholders (including employees, customers,
vendors, governing bodies and shareholders) is the key
element to ensure long-term success and continual profit
growth.

(1) Employees
Employees are the most important and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group has established comprehensive
talent recruitment and sound performance appraisal
polices to reward and recognise performing employees
with competitive remuneration package, and to
promote them with career development and progression
by appropriate training and providing them with equal
opportunities within the Group for career development.

(2) Customers

Our customers are mainly retails customers of
department stores. Through good standards of the
look, appearance and actions of employees, the Group
creates a good image of service. The Group not only
devotes to set up a consistent labelling system and clear
pricing system, but also endeavors to eradicate the
selling of fake and inferior quality products. The Group
treasures complaints and comments from customers.
In order to provide excellent customer services and
to increase market share and business expansion, the
Group has set up various channels to strengthen the
communication with customers, including customer
satisfactory surveys, customer opinion cards and website
of the Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Relationships with key stakeholders (continued)

3)

4)

(5)

Goods suppliers and services providers

The Group adheres to open, fair and transparent criteria
in choosing goods suppliers and services providers and
has set up a vendor evaluation system. The evaluation
will base on prices, quality, costs, delivery and after-sales
services after strict execution of purchase procedures
and goods/service inspection standards. In order to
ensure sustainable quality of goods and service supply,
the Group will carry out continual monitoring and
periodic examination of all vendors.

Regulators

The Group operates in the retail business through
different department stores which are subject to the
jurisdictions of the national and local regulators.
Along with compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations, each department store of the Group
has taken steps to ensure that relevant local concerns,
customs and changes of laws or regulations have been
accounted for.

Shareholders
For communication, shareholders may contact the
Group via “contact us” section of the website of the

Company. Besides, the Group will also communicate
with shareholders through printed or online version
of notices, announcements, annual and interim
reports. Annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss and cash flows of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2022 and the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out in the

financial statements on pages 149 to 158. A balanced review

of the Group’s business and an analysis of the application
of financial key performance indicators are provided in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this Annual
Report, which is also part of this Directors’ Report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in

respect of the year ended 31 December 2022.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the
two years ended 31 December 2022, 2021, the nine months
ended 31 December 2020 and the two years ended 31 March
2020, 2019 and the assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
March 2019, 2020 and 31 December 2020, 2021, 2022 are set
out on page 6.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 28 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in note 28 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves (including
retained profits, if any, and contributed surplus, subject to
equity shareholders’ approval) amounting to RMB995,255,000
(31 December 2021: RMB995,255,000) were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders. In addition,
the share premium of the Company in the amount of
approximately RMB1,136,595,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB1,136,595,000) may be distributed in form of fully paid
bonus shares.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’s
and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$30,000 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. As stipulated by the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in the PRC. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at specified percentages of the basic salaries
of its employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company or his/her connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at 31 December 2022
or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yao Jiangang (Chairman)
(appointed on 14 December 2022)

Mr. Huang Shunxu (Chairman)
(resigned on 14 December 2022)

Mr. Qin Chuan (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Wan Qing

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Zhihua

(appointed on 14 December 2022)
Mr. Li Yang

(resigned on 14 December 2022)
Mr. Chen Shuai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
Ms. Song Hong
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company, one-third
of the directors of the Company for the time being should
retire at each annual general meeting from office by rotation,
Mr. Qin Chuan, Mr. Chen Shuai and Ms. Song Hong will retire
from office of Directors by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election. Mr. Yao Jiangang, the newly appointed executive
Director and Mr. Huang Zhihua, the newly appointed non-
executive Director are subject to re-election in accordance with
Bye-law 86(2) of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng and Ms. Song Hong,
and considers them to be independent for the year ended 31
December 2022. The Company considers that each of such
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent from
the Group based on the Guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
("Listing Rules”).

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 17 to 21.

None of the directors had entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not terminable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers. Such insurance were in force during the reporting
period and as of the date of this report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND TOP FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and top five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND TOP FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

Details of the remuneration of the current senior management

of the Company by band for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out as follows:

EE SREEERIAEBREFA
T2EBE (&)

KRB ESHRERAEREZE20225F12
A3MBE It FERERZFMISRAOT

Range Number of individuals
I AR
Below RMB1,000,000 10

AR #1,000,0007T A T

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000

A K #1,000,0017C Z A K #1,500,0007T
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000

AR #1,500,0017C 2 A K #2,000,0007T
Above RMB2,000,000

AR #2,000,0007T A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Entering into and Termination of the Lease Contract

References are made to the Company's circular dated 11
January 2022 and the announcement dated 28 July 2022.
On 30 November 2021, Xi'an Honghui Property Management
Company Limited Qujiang New District Branch* (FA% E¥EY)
XEBARABMHIHES 2AF]) (“"Honghui Property”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the lease contract with Xi‘an Jinmeida Commercial Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (AL & X EMEMEREBR
2 A]) (“Jinmeida”) in respect of the premises located in Xi'an,
the PRC (the “Lease Contract”), pursuant to which Jinmeida
has agreed to lease, and Honghui Property has agreed to
rent the commercial block of No.9 Street, Qujiang Harbour
City, No. 659 Yannanyilu, Qujiang New District, Xi'an, with a
lease term of two years commencing from 1 February 2022
to 31 January 2024, at a total rental of RMB95,724,300. On
28 July 2022, Honghui Property and Jinmeida entered into
the Termination Agreement to terminate the Lease Contract
in advance, with effect from 16 June 2022. Since the same
date, Honghui Property will no longer perform its obligations
under the Lease Contract, and Honghui Property and Jinmeida
will also not be required to pay any liquidated damages or
fees to each other in respect of the termination of the Lease
Contract. When entering into and terminating the Lease
Contract, Xi'an Quijiang Cultural Financial Holdings (Group)
Co., Ltd. ("Qujiang Financial Holdings”), who indirectly holds
approximately 29.24% of the ordinary shares in issue of the
Company through Qujiang Cultural Financial International
Investment Limited, is a substantial shareholder of the
Company; meanwhile, Qujiang Financial Holdings indirectly
holds approximately 88.28% of equity interest in Jinmeida,
thus Jinmeida is a connected person of the Company pursuant
to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Off-market Buy-back of Non-voting Convertible
Preferred Shares

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated
15 June 2022 and 6 January 2023. On 15 June 2022, the
Company and Glory Keen Holdings Limited (“Glory Keen”,
a substantial shareholder of the Company) entered into an
agreement, pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to buy back from Glory Keen, and Glory Keen
conditionally agreed to sell 1,177,068,181 preferred shares
(equivalent to all the issued preferred shares of the Company
as of the date of this report) to the Company at the Buy-
back Price of approximately HK$0.21 per preferred share and
a total consideration of HK$247,184,318. The buy-back was
completed on 6 January 2023.

In respect of the connected transactions, the Company
has complied with all requirements (including disclosure
requirements) of the Listing Rules (as amended from time to
time).

Further details of the significant related party transactions
undertaken in the normal course of business of the Group
are provided under note 32 to the financial statements. Save
as disclosed above, none of these related party transactions
constitutes a connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined under the Listing Rules that is required
to be disclosed.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

(a) Long positions in the shares of the Company
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(a)

Long positions in the shares of the Company
(continued)
Note:

(1) Mr. Ge Xin, the spouse of Ms. Wan Qing, is beneficially
interested in 123,500 Shares. Therefore, Ms. Wan Qing
is deemed to be interested in 123,500 Shares in the
Company under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company
had, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
nor were they taken to or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO, any interests or short positions in
the shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
or any interests which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code or any interests which are required to be
entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2022, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
interests of 5% or more of the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed
above in respect of the directors or chief executives of the
Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(a) Long position/short position in the shares of the (a)
Company

Number of

Approximate
percentage

of the issued
ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of
Name of shareholder short positions  Nature of interests shares held the Company
(A
) FEERE ERfTEER
RR£# RkR/BR REtE EERHA REzBOBI
Qujiang Cultural Financial Long positions Corporate interests 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%
International Investment Limited
RIXEERARRERRAT KR NAER (Hiet1)
Xi‘an Qujiang Cultural Financial ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.
BZAIXERER KB REEHZERAER (Hit1)
(£B)ERA7A
Xi'an Qujiang New District Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%
Management Committee -
BYHINEERZES KB RREBHZERARR (Ht1)
Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions Corporate interests 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
("Glory Keen")
REmmAaRAR ([RE]) KkE NAER (Hi2)
Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,721,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
KB RREBHZERAER (Hit2)
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
kg RREGEBRAER (Hi2)
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
KB REEHZERAER (Hit2)
Hony Group Management Limited ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
K& RREHEBR AR (Hi2)
Hony Managing Partners Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
KB RREHZERAER (Hit2)
Exponential Fortune Group Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
kg RREMEBRAER (Hi2)
Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
BOBLE KB RREBHZERAER (Hit2)
HESTEHEERERD A
—EC_FEFR




32

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b) Long position/short position in the underlying (b)
shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as

defined in Part XV of the SFO)

FERR (&)
RAEDTRENETAZAER
HeRA/ER (EERBESRY

B HRHIEXVER)

Number of

Approximate
percentage

of the issued
ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder short positions Nature of interests shares held the Company

AR

o7 BRTERR

REEE RE/KR ERtE LERYE BREZBNEA

Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions Corporate interests 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
REARERAF kE RAER (Hi7£3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (Hi7£3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H73)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H73)

Hony Group Management Limited ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H73)

Hony Managing Partners Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H73)

Exponential Fortune Group Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H73)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%

#LRRL
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b)

Long

position/short position in the underlying

shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes:

(1M

Quijiang Cultural Financial International Investment
Limited held 336,166,156 Shares. Xi‘an Qujiang
Cultural Financial Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. holds
the entire issued share capital of Qujiang Cultural
Financial International Investment Limited. Each of
Xi‘an Quijiang New District Management Committee
and Xi'an Quijiang Cultural Holding Company Limited
beneficially owns 80.05% and 19.95% equity interests
in Xi'an Quijiang Cultural Financial Holdings (Group)
Co. Ltd., respectively. Xi‘an Qujiang New District
Management Committee owns 99.9% equity interest
in Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Holding Company Limited.
As such, Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Financial Holdings
(Group) Co. Ltd. and Xi'an Qujiang New District
Management Committee were deemed to be interested
in 336,166,156 Shares by virtue of their shareholding
in Qujiang Cultural Financial International Investment
Limited.

The long position of 322,727,272 Shares represents the
322,727,272 Shares held by Glory Keen. Hony Capital
Fund 2008, L.P. holds the entire issued share capital
of Glory Keen. Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is the
sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hony Group Management Limited, is
the sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008
GP, L.P. Hony Managing Partners Limited owns 80%
equity interests in Hony Group Management Limited.
Hony Managing Partners Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Mr.
Zhao John Huan holds 49% of the issued share capital
of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Each of the
above-mentioned parties was therefore deemed to be
interested in the interest held by Glory Keen.
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IS rmiER(EE) AR
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Fortune Group Limited 49% ¢ 3
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b) Long position/short position in the underlying
shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(3) The long position of 1,294,774,999 underlying
Shares represents the interest in the 1,294,774,999
conversion shares which may be issued under the
Hony Convertible preferred shares. The exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the Hony Convertible
preferred shares are subject to the restrictions as stated
in the paragraph headed “Other terms of the Preferred
Shares” under the section headed “Subscription
Agreement” in the circular dated 19 November 2012.

On 15 June 2022, the Company and Glory Keen
entered into an agreement, pursuant to which
the Company agreed to buy back 1,177,068,181
convertible preference shares from Glory Keen with
the price of HK$0.21 per convertible preference share
and the consideration will be satisfied by the Company
by issue of interest-free promissory note due on the
first anniversary of the date of completion in favour
of Glory Keen. On 29 December 2022, the share buy-
back transaction was approved by the special general
meeting of the Company. As at 31 December 2022,
certain conditions precedent of the transaction have
not been satisfied. On 6 January 2023, the Company
issued an announcement that the share buy-back
transaction was completed and the convertible
preference shares were cancelled.

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any person who, as
at 31 December 2022, had an interest or short position in the
Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of any other member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates had any interest which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers taken together were
less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year ended
31 December 2022. The aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers taken
together were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest major customers
and suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the laws of Bermuda.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2022.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

None of the members of the Group was engaged in any
litigation, arbitration or claim of material importance in which
any member of the Group is a defendant and no litigation,
arbitration or claim of material importance was known to the
directors of the Company to be pending or threatened by or
against any member of the Group in which any member of
the Group is a defendant during the year ended 31 December
2022 and as at the date of this report.
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OTHER MATTERS

Termination of The Lease Contract

For details of the termination of the Lease Contract, please
refer to the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
Annual Report.

Disposal Mandate in relation to Potential Disposal of
Shares in Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc.*

References are made to the Company’s circular dated 26 May
2022 and the announcement dated 7 July 2022. The Company
has obtained shareholders’ approval for possible disposal of
up to 30,000,000 A-Shares (“A-Shares”) of Ginwa Enterprise
(Group) Inc.* (“A-Shares Company”) from time to time during
the mandate period (the “Disposal”), and the Directors of the
Company have been authorised by the Shareholders to deal
with matters related to the implementation of the Disposal.
The disposal price of each A share will be the highest of (a)
no lower than RMB8.5 per A-Share; (b) the arithmetic average
of the daily weighted average price for 30 trading days
immediately prior to the date of the indicative announcement
in relation to the Disposal to be published by the A-Shares
Company; and (c) the audited net asset value per A-Share of
the A-Shares Company for the most recent fiscal year.

During the period from the grant of the Disposal Mandate
by the Shareholders on 7 July 2022 to 31 December 2022,
the Company had disposed of a total of 3,560,700 A-Shares
pursuant to the Disposal Mandate, with proceeds of RMB31.8
million and the disposal price of RMB8.9 per A-Share. As at 31
December 2022, the Company beneficially owns 26,439,300
A-Shares of the A-Shares Company.

Off-market Buy-back of Non-voting Convertible
Preferred Shares and Connected Transactions

Details of the off-market buy-back of non-voting convertible
preferred shares are set out in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in this Annual Report.
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OTHER MATTERS (continued)

Very Substantial Acquisition in relation to the Lease
Agreement

Reference is made to the Company’s circular dated 30 June
2022. On 17 June 2022, Xi'an Century Ginwa Shopping Mall
Company Limited* (ALt S EEWAR QR (“Xi'an
Century Ginwa"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Shaanxi Daming Palace Investment
Development Co., Ltd.* (RFERBHAEKREZRBEREET A
A]) entered into a lease agreement to lease the commercial
property “Daming Palace Shopping Mall (KXBAE BE ¥ )”
located at No. 359 Taihua North Road in Weiyang District,
Xi'an City, with two floors underground and seven floors
above ground, with a lease term of 20 years and a total rental
of approximately RMB1,669,977,800.

Disposal of Property

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 20 June 2022 in relation to the discloseable transaction
for the disposal of property. On 20 June 2022, Xi‘an Honghui
Property Management Company Limited* (78 % 818 ¥) % & 12
B2 7F]) ("Honghui Property”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase contract
with the purchaser (a natural person and independent third
party) for the disposal of the property located at No. 3, Unit
2, Building 6, Hongji Ziyun, East Side of Furongxilu, Qujiang
New District, Xi‘an, the PRC (“Property 1"), pursuant to which,
Honghui Property agreed to sell Property 1 to the purchaser,
and the purchaser agreed to purchase Property 1 from
Honghui Property with a consideration of RMB7,241,400.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Disposal of Fund Participating Shares

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 21
February 2023. On 21 February 2023, the Company, as the
vendor, and CMBC International Investment (HK) Limited, as
the purchaser, had entered into the Share Transfer Agreement,
pursuant to which the vendor agreed to dispose of the non-
voting participating shares to the purchaser, and the purchaser
agreed to purchase the non-voting participating shares held by
the Company in Serica Segregated Portfolio from the vendor
at a consideration of HK$17,000,000. The transaction was
completed on 17 March 2023 due to the fulfillment of all the
conditions under the Share Transfer Agreement.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s shares in the market as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR

KPMG should retire at the end of their term of appointment
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. There has been no change in the auditor of the
Company during the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Yao Jiangang

Executive Director
Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors' confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The Board regularly reviews its corporate governance practices,
risk management and internal control policy and procedures
in order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders and
comply with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements,
and to fulfill its commitment to corporate governance
excellence.

The Company had complied with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2022 except for certain deviations as set out below.

CG Code Provision F.2.2 stipulates that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. He should
also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration and
nomination committees to attend. The chairman of the Board
(and chairman of the nomination committee) and the chairmen
of the audit and remuneration committees were not able to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on
6 June 2022 (the "AGM") due to other important business
engagement. They had delegated the chief executive officer to
chair and be available to answer questions at the AGM.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at 31 December 2022 and the date of this annual report,
the Board is comprised of three executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

The members of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yao Jiangang (Chairman)
(appointed on 14 December 2022)

Mr. Huang Shunxu (Chairman)
(resigned on 14 December 2022)

Mr. Qin Chuan (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Wan Qing

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Zhihua

(appointed on 14 December 2022)
Mr. Li Yang

(resigned on 14 December 2022)
Mr. Chen Shuai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
Ms. Song Hong

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Group. Each executive Director is suitably
qualified for his position, and has sufficient experience to hold
his/her position so as to carry out his/her duties effectively and
efficiently. There are no relationships (financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships) between members of
the Board. Biographical information of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors” of this annual
report.
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OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. According to CG
Code Provision C.5.1, the Board should meet regularly and
Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximate intervals. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Board met regularly and frequently for the review
and approval on the business of department stores, shopping
mall and supermarkets. Details of Directors’ attendance of the
Board and the shareholders’ meetings held for the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out as follows:
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Name of Director meetings AGM & SGM
RREF
rER
EEnE Exggl RRBIKE
Executive Directors
HITEFE
Mr. Yao Jiangang (appointed on 14 December 2022) 0/0 0/0
MLt (RZE-_—_F+_A+HHEZT)
Mr. Huang Shunxu (resigned on 14 December 2022) 11/12 0/5
EE%ELEE (R—E-—F+—-A+MAET)
Mr. Qin Chuan 12/12 4/5
=)EE
Ms. Wan Qing 12/12 0/5
BB+
Non-Executive Directors
FHITEF
Mr. Huang Zhihua (appointed on 14 December 2022) 0/0 0/0
BEREAE (RZZ__F+-_A+NBAEZT)
Mr. Li Yang (resigned on 14 December 2022) 10/12 0/5
FHEEE (RE-__F+-A+NEET)
Mr. Chen Shuai 12/12 0/5
PR B 5 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUHFHITEF
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 12/12 2/5
BEEEE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 12/12 0/5
el % 4
Ms. Song Hong 12/12 0/5
R+

HESHEHEERERLA
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All Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. They have separate
and independent access to the senior management and the
company secretary of the Company at all times and may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
When queries are raised by Directors, steps would be taken
to respond as promptly and as fully as possible. All Directors
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda of
Board meetings. Notices of at least 14 days of Board meetings
are given to the Directors and Board procedures comply with
the Bye-Laws of the Company, as well as relevant rules and
regulations.

FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested
in the Board. The Board carries out its functions according to
the powers conferred upon it by the Bye-Laws of the Company
which is uploaded onto the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company, and since the date of uploading, no
significant changes have been made.

The main functions and duties conferred on the Board include:

- management of the overall business and strategic
development;

- deciding business plans and investment plans;

— convening general meetings and reporting to the
shareholders; and

- exercising other powers, functions and duties conferred
by shareholders in general meetings.

The Board is responsible for fulfilling the corporate governance
responsibilities under A.2.1 of the CG Code. Regarding the
aforementioned functions, during the year, the following
works, inter alia, were performed by the Board: (i) reviewed the
Corporate Governance Report of the Company for 2021; and(ii)
reviewed the trainings and continuous professional development
undertaken by the Directors and senior management.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management of the Company. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals
must be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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The Directors may have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary of the Company to ensure
that the board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. In addition, the Directors may, upon
reasonable request, seek independent professional advice
under appropriate circumstance at the Company’'s expense.
The Board shall resolve to provide separate, appropriate,
independent and professional advice to the Directors to assist
the relevant Directors in discharging their duties.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment to
Board meetings and scrutinizing the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In
particular, they bring an impartial view to issues relating to the
Group's strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors have extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advice to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent
advice on the Group's business strategy, results and
management to ensure that all interests of shareholders are
taken into account, and the interests of the Company and its
shareholders are protected.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors
in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, which
requires that every board of directors of a listed issuer must
include at least three independent non-executive directors.
In addition, at least one independent non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, who has appropriate professional
accounting qualifications or financial management expertise
in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing one-third of the Board, in compliance
with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has a mechanism in place to ensure that the
Board has access to independent views and advices that:
(a) the Company has established strict procedures for the
selection, nomination and appointment/re-appointment
of Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors), and considers various factors of diversity (including
independence) when selecting Directors; (b) all Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) have ready
access to independent professional advices from outside the
Group when they consider it necessary; (c) all independent
non-executive Directors participate in the Board process from
developing agendas, providing information to focusing on
constructive debates and discussions to facilitate effective and
active involvement; and (d) the independent non-executive
Directors are required to issue their annual confirmation of
independence to the Company on an annual basis to confirm
that they remain independent.
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The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from each of the existing independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations, the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing in preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cashflow for that period.
The Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction
training so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of his/her duties
and responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enrol in professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and
corporate governance practices organised by professional
bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the CG Code.

All Directors participated in appropriate continuous
professional development and refreshed their knowledge and
skills during the year ended 31 December 2022 for ensuring
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Such professional development was completed by
way of attending briefings, conference, courses, forum and
seminars, teaching, self-reading and participating in business-
related researches which are relevant to the business or
directors’ duties.
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During the reporting period, the Directors participated in the RBEBARN EZ2 28 THE:
following trainings:

Type of
Name of Director training
EspnR EFIER
Executive Directors
HITESF
Mr. Yao Jiangang (appointed on 14 December 2022) A, C
ML (M- E-_—F+_-_A+HBEEZE)
Mr. Huang Shunxu (resigned on 14 December 2022) A, B, C
mIBZSLEE (R _F+ A TWA#T)
Mr. Qin Chuan A, B, C
=)L E
Ms. Wan Qing A, B, C
S8 L+
Non-Executive Directors
FHITESE
Mr. Huang Zhihua (appointed on 14 December 2022) A, C
BEREELE (R E-_—_F+-A1+NAEET)
Mr. Li Yang (resigned on 14 December 2022) A, C
TEEE(R-_E-—_F+ - A+MNBEEIT)
Mr. Chen Shuai A, B, C
BREM 5 A
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUIMTESF
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai A, B, C
BEE &
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng A, B, C
B R 8 5T A
Ms. Song Hong A, B, C
R4zt
A: Reading materials provided by the Company relating to A BMERAANRIRHEMHESRE N
the updates on the Listing Rules and other applicable EEZ FTHEIEEMEBEE R
regulatory requirements relevant to the director’s duties FZEHERZER

and responsibilities

B: Attending briefings/seminars/webinars/conferences B: HERSEERENETEB Z2BER
relevant to the director’s duties and responsibilities @ /e /WS e ens

C: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating C: HErFUgE - BELteRENRE
to the economy, environment and social issues or the ERENEEIRE  HBRIEEHE
director’s duties and responsibilities o

tesnmreraRAn AR
CECFEER = 7o

Ly
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and are not performed by the same individual as
this ensures better checks and balances and hence better
corporate governance. Mr. Yao Jiangang is the Chairman of
the Company, and Mr. Qin Chuan is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company.

The Chairman’s responsibility is to oversee the functioning of
the Board and the strategies and policies of the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for monitoring the
daily operation and management of the Company.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from the listing date on 23 October 2000,
renewable automatically by three years on the expiry of such
term and every successive period of three years thereafter,
subject to the relevant provisions under the Company’s
amended and restated Bye-Laws requiring no less than one-
third of all the Directors (i.e. both executive and non-executive
Directors are included) to retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting of the Company, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yao Jiangang, Mr. Huang Shunxu, Mr. Qin Chuan and
Ms. Wan Qing have entered into service contracts with the
Company for a specific term, and all the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years in accordance with the
Bye-Laws of the Company.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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The Bye-Laws of the Company provide that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board
shall hold office until the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting, and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the (i) audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), (ii) remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and (iii) nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) with defined terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the board committees, which explain their
respective roles and the authorities delegated to them by
the Board, are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice and other assistance under appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Company, with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee shall consist of not less than 3 members.
Currently, the Audit Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors: Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng, and one non-executive Director, Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr.
Tsang Kwok Wai is the chairman of Audit Committee.

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to review
the financial reporting process of the Group and its risk
management and internal control system, oversee the audit
process and perform other duties assigned by the Board and
make recommendations for the Company to improve the
quality of financial information to be disclosed. It also reviews
the annual and interim reports of the Company prior to their
approval by the Board.

TEREREE

ARRZARMANRE ERNEEEEE
ENERHESS ERBUERNESAL
BEEEZETRARNERNRREFK
Rl WARZAS LBE  MIMES
EEREMARREFTENHREESNE
HEEARR TERRAFAER/L &
Al A BREEE -

EEXEXEE
ETCENVARTRESE () BRE
g ([Ez%8g]) (WFHEEE ([
MEEE]) R(iNEEEZEEE ([IREE 8
g) EFXEZEENBEGEE (E+ 97
HREAGREETEH THEN)BHN
RATRBIFABIL -EEE 8 B REM
RRERBITEE KAEER REES
MT AISRBYEXERREMHEY B
FA BB AR D B AHE

BEREEY
ARAFDIRE ETRAIM S AFTE 2 R
R BEREBHEGEE BREER -

BEREEGHEI=EKNEMEN HIRE
KREBREMBBILIFATES: GEER
HERBBESEE AR —BIFRITES R
RhseE-ZREEERERZEGERE-

ENREG T ERGRRANASREZY
BHaERFMERREERATEER
BEEEZBRNRETESEEHRRCHE
BT - AR AR RHRHIEE - ARER
THREMBEHMZER I BEREEE
NEEEFSHELMEN BEEHNAR
Az FRERPHRE -

HESHEHEERERLA
CROCFER

47



48

Corporate Governance Report
CEERARE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit
Committee reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and made a recommendation as
regards the appointment of the external auditor. In addition,
the Audit Committee, together with management and
independent auditors, have reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters including the
review of the audited results for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 prior to their approval by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, two meetings were
held by the Audit Committee. The attendance record of each
member of the Audit Committee at the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out below:

HE_Z__F+_A=+—HILFE &
2ZE2EMASENSTRAIRER -
W g EEIMNEZ BB VE L HE B A& o ULoN

%’f?éé@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁa%

BASEMEMN s RAKRER W

WEZ NHEELRWBRESE 2/ E
EEgEHREN EHEE T -

TZA=T—RUEFEZREREERE

EZE_FARNAZTHIEANEAZERE

BERPHEE-

BE-F-—%+-A=f—RILEE"
ERERERTTMASH -BREAS
SRERBLEESEENHELRERT
mT

Attendance/

Number of

Audit

Committee

Name of Director meetings

HE '

ZEg

EEnR 2R¥E

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 2/2
BE k4

Mr. Chen Shuai 2/2

BRED S &

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 2/2
B e 1 5 A

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the REBEE T -_—F+_HF=+—8It&F

Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2022.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee shall consist of not less than
two members. Currently, the Remuneration Committee
consists of two independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng and Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and one non-executive
Director: Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.
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The primary duty of the Remuneration Committee is to
formulate the remuneration structure and policy of the Group,
to review the remuneration packages of executive Directors
and senior management, including bonuses to ensure that
such remuneration is reasonable and not excessive. Generally,
their remunerations are determined based on their experience
and qualifications, the Group’s performance as well as market
conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee has, among other things, reviewed the
remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management of the Group and made recommendations to the
Board in relation to their remuneration package.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee had reviewed the Group'’s remuneration policy and
reviewed the remuneration package of the executive Directors
and senior management for the year ended 31 December
2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, two meetings
were held by the Remuneration Committee. The attendance
record of each member of the Remuneration Committee at the
meetings of the Remuneration Committee is set out below:
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Number of

Remuneration

Committee

Name of Director meetings

H

£ZE8g

EEnE 2REAE

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 2/2
Pl 5 4

Mr. Chen Shuai 2/2
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Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 2/2
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of one executive
Director: Mr. Yao lJiangang, one non-executive Director: Mr.
Chen Shuai and three independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng and Ms. Song
Hong. Mr. Yao Jiangang is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board
at least once a year and to identify (including not limited
to engaging independent search firm(s) to assist such
identification) individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.
The Company has implemented the following Board diversity
policy: the Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board, and considers diversity at Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. The diversity factors considered by the Company
include but are not limited to skills, experience, expertise,
culture, independence, age and gender. The Company shall
appoint at least one female director. Ms. Wan Qing and Ms.
Song Hong currently serve as Directors of the Company. In
identifying suitable director candidates and making such
recommendations to the Board, the Nomination Committee
would also take into account various aspects of a candidate,
including but not limited to his education background,
professional experience, experience with the relevant industry
and past directorships. In addition, the Company will go to
great lengths to achieve gender diversity when recruiting
employees at all levels (including middle and senior levels), so
as to provide suitable successor directors for the Board when
appropriate and ensure gender diversity of the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed the Board's structure, size and
composition to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills,
independence and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Company and reviewed the annual
confirmation of independence submitted by independent
non-executive Directors and assessed their independence.
Meanwhile, the Nomination Committee will also give
consideration to the Board Diversity Policy when identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board,
and the Board will review the Board Diversity Policy on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, two meetings were
held by the Nomination Committee. The attendance record of
each member of the Nomination Committee at the meetings
of the Nomination Committee is set out below:

TEREREE

BHE_T-__F+-_A=+—HIFE"
REZBGRTTMASH RLEEY
ERERREZES RN B LEHT
LU

Attendance/
Number of
Nomination
Committee
Name of Director meetings
HE/RE
£ZEg
EEnR 2R¥E
Mr. Yao Jiangang (appointed on 14 December 2022) 0/0
ghEMrEs (RZE__F+_A+HBEEZE)
Mr. Huang Shunxu (resigned on 14 December 2022) 172
FEEEE (RS -—F+ - A+ AZMT)
Mr. Chen Shuai 2/2
PR BIb 55 A4
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 2/2
BEIE L
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 272
B B & 5 A
Ms. Song Hong 2/2
ReTZ+

EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

For details of the Company’s employee diversity, please refer
to the section headed “Human Resources” in the Directors’
Report of this report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has re-appointed KPMG as its external auditor
during the year ended 31 December 2022. The external
auditor is refrained from engaging in non-audit services except
for specific approved items, such as review of interim results
of the Group. The Audit Committee reviews the external
auditor’s statutory audit scope and non-audit services and
approves its fees. A remuneration of RMB4,200,000 was paid/
payable to KPMG for the provision of annual audit and review
of interim results services, a remuneration of RMB700,000 was
paid/payable to KPMG for the provision of other non-audit
services (providing service regarding the circular for the
Group's Lease Contract) in the year ended 31 December 2022.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the
finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group for each
financial year which shall give a true and fair view of the
financial position, performance and cash flow of the Company
and its subsidiaries for that period. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing the accounts of the
Company and the Group. As at 31 December 2022, the Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of KPMG, the Company’s external auditor,
in relation to the financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Kee Wai has been informed of the requirement of
the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, and he confirmed that he
had attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2022.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group has complied with the Corporate Governance Code by
establishing appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. Management is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of such systems so
as to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interest,
while the Board oversees management in performing its duties
on an ongoing basis. The Board is also responsible for ensuring
maintenance of proper accounting records to provide reliable
financial information and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are described in the sections below:

Risk Management Framework

The Group maintains a risk management framework which
manages the risk associated with its business and operations.
The system comprises the following phases:

(i) Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives;
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(ii) Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; and

(i)  Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the year
ended 31 December 2022, no risk at a high level was
identified.

Internal Control Systems

The Group adopts internal control systems which are
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSQO") framework. The COSO
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follows:

(i) Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group;

(i) Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed,;

(ili)  Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives
to mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are
carried out;

(iv)  Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the
information needed to carry out day-to-day controls;
and

(v) Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each component of internal control is
present and functioning.

Upon identification of major internal control defects, the
Group shall require the relevant departments to rectify
immediately. For those material defects which cannot be
rectified immediately, the Group will formulate corresponding
rectification plans, with efforts to promote rectification. Based
on the internal control reviews conducted during the year
ended 31 December 2022, no significant control deficiency
was required to be brought to the attention of the Audit
Committee and the Board.
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Internal Audit

The Group has engaged an external professional (the “Internal
Control Consultant”) to assist the Group in carrying out the
Internal Audit (“IA") function for the year ended 31 December
2022. The IA function was independent from the Group's daily
operation and it assisted the Audit Committee in carrying
out appraisal on the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group. The appraisal
was performed through conducting interviews, collecting
walkthroughs and performing tests of control effectiveness.
The Group has reviewed an IA charter to ensure it has defined
the scope, duties and responsibilities of the IA function and its
reporting protocol.

The Company has also conducted an annual risk assessment
to identify respective strategic risks, operational risks,
financial risks and compliance risks of its major business
segments. Based on the result of the annual risk assessment
and following a risk-oriented methodology audit approach,
the Company has devised a three-year internal audit plan
that prioritized the significance of the risks identified into
annual internal audit projects to assist the Audit Committee
in assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. According to the three-
year internal audit plan approved by the Board, review of
the internal control systems was conducted semi-annually
and their results were reported to the Board via the Audit
Committee afterwards.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis,
and ensuring review of the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems on a semi-annual basis. Several
areas have been considered during the Board’s oversight and
review, which include but are not limited to (i) the changes in
the nature and extent of significant risks since the latest semi-
annual review; (ii) the Group’s ability to respond to changes in
its business and the external environment, and (iii) the scope
and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and
of the internal control systems.
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The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by
the Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group were effective
and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2022. Such
systems, however, were designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and could only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board also believes that the Company has adequate
resources in terms of internal audit, accounting and
financial reporting functions and in aspects related to the
environmental, social and governance performance and
reporting of the Company, and qualifications and experience
of relevant staff, and also provides sufficient training programs
and budget for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Inside Information

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the
Group also adopts and implements inside information policy
and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been
taken by the Group from time to time to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent breach of disclosure requirements
in relation to the Group, which include:

(i) The access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve
confidentiality;

(ii) Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations;

(i)  The Executive Directors are designated persons who
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors; and

(iv)  Unless the information falls within the “Safe Harbour”,
the Company will disclose such inside information to the
public as soon as practicable.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may declare dividends from time to time. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia:

a) the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

b) retained profits and distributable reserves of the Group
and each of the members of the Group;

Q) the level of the Group’s adjusted net debts-to-equity
ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial

covenants;

d) the Group’s current and future operation;

e) any contractual restrictions from the payment of
dividends;
f) any restrictions under applicable laws or regulations;

o) the dividends received from the Group’s subsidiaries and
associates, which in turn will depend on the ability of
those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend;

h) the Group’s expected working capital requirements;

i) general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

i) any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.

No dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount
recommended by the Board.

This dividend policy and the declaration and/or payment of
future dividends under this policy are subject to the Board's
continuing determination that this dividend policy and the
declaration and/or payment of dividends would be in the best
interests of the Group and the Company’s shareholders, and
are in compliance with the bye-laws of the Company and
all applicable laws and regulations. The Board endeavours
to maintain a balance between meeting the Company’s
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management
with a sustainable dividend policy.
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The Board will continually review the dividend policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend, modify and/or cancel the dividend policy at any time.
This dividend policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend
at any time or from time to time, there can be no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period. Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay
dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depend upon
the abovementioned factors.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 301, 3/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai, 303
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition, and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 301, 3/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai, 303
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The company secretary
of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to
the Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions and inquiries, to the executive
Directors of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 December
2022.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
The Company has established a number of communication
channels to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
shareholders and to enhance the transparency of the Group.
These include (i) holding annual and special general meetings
to provide a forum for shareholders to communicate directly
with the Board and the Board committees, at which the Board
and the Board committees may also seek for and understand
the advices of shareholders and stakeholders; (ii) distributing
corporate documents and releasing announcements to
disseminate the Group’s latest information to the shareholders;
and (iii) maintaining the Company’s website to provide an
electronic means of communication with the shareholders and
the public.

Shareholders and other interested parties are welcome to
access the Group's information from the Company’'s website
at www.cgrh.com.hk. The Group’s corporate information
including terms of reference of the Board committees, the
Group’s financial reports, announcements and circulars are
available on the website. In order to enhance shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and
development, the Company will continue to improve its
corporate disclosure on the Company’'s website and the
communication with its shareholders.

The Company has reviewed the implementation of the above
shareholder communication policy during the reporting period.
The Company believes that such policy is appropriate and
effective given that it has provided an effective channel for
shareholders to express their opinions to the Company and
for the Company to seek for and understand advices from
shareholders and stakeholders.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Overview

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Century Ginwa
Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased
to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
(hereinafter called "ESG") Report (the “Report”) of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the
“Group” or “we") for the year ended 31 December
2022 (the "Reporting Period”). The Report outlines the
policies, sustainability strategies, management approach
and initiatives implemented by the Group and the
performance of the Group in environmental and social
aspects of its business.

Reporting Scope

The Report covers the Group's businesses in operating
department stores, shopping centers and supermarkets
in Mainland China. Some companies of the Group
are not covered in the Report because their impact
on the ESG performance is not significant. During the
Reporting Period, there were no significant changes to
the scope of reporting.

Reporting Basis

The Report discloses the required information under
the “mandatory disclosure requirements” and “comply
or explain” provisions of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27
to the Listing Rules. The relevant provisions and details
are set out at the end of the Report.

Reporting Principles

The Group adheres to the following reporting principles
as the basis for the preparation of the Report.

1. Materiality

The threshold at which ESG issues determined
by the Board are sufficiently important to
investors and other stakeholders of the Group
that they should be reported, details of which
are set out in the sections headed “Stakeholders’
Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment”
below for more details.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)
Reporting Principles (continued)

2.

Quantification

The quantified environmental and social key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) are disclosed
in the Report to give stakeholders of the Group
a comprehensive picture of the Group's ESG
performance. The information is accompanied by
a narrative, explaining its purposes and impacts.

Balance

Every effort has been made in the Report to
reflect the performance of the Group’s ESG
activities impartially and avoid selection, omission
or presentation format that might inappropriately
influence the decision or judgment of the readers
of the Report.

Consistency

As far as is reasonably practicable, the Group
has used consistent methodologies to allow for
meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time.
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Board Statement

The Board takes overall responsibility for ESG matters
and their integration into the Group’s management
approach and strategies. It guides the management
and monitoring of ESG matters that have been
identified as relevant to the Group, and reviews the
progress made against ESG-related goals and targets.
For disclosures about the Board's supervision over ESG
matters, the Board’s ESG management policies and
strategies, and the progress of the board’s review of
ESG-related goals and targets and their relationship with
the Group’s business, please refer to other disclosure
in this “Management of Environmental, Social and
Governance” section, which forms part of the Board
Statement.

Report of Chairman

The Group is committed to corporate social
responsibility and balancing environmental, social and
economic benefits. It also aims to balance its business
development with the interests of its key stakeholders
and operates its business in a sustainable manner. To
achieve this vision, the Group has set a sustainability
framework that focuses on environmental protection,
resource management, employee and community well-
being and guides its sustainability efforts to ensure
that sustainability elements are integrated into every
business process and all business decisions.

Global warming is a major concern of governments
worldwide. As a socially responsible corporate, the
Group is committed to mitigating its environmental
impact and integrating responsible environmental
practices into its businesses. Meanwhile, the Group
endeavours to foster a sense of environmental
stewardship within the Company, with an aim to make
joint efforts with employees to build an environment-
friendly and resource-saving enterprise.
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BE-HERERKSE

MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Report of Chairman (continued)

Under the COVID-19 pandemic, the employees of the
Group show team spirit, rise to the challenge of the
crisis and grab the chance, make use of corporate
advantages and the accumulated rich industry
experience over the years to enable the Group to stand
from the severe epidemic. At the same time, the Group
provides multi-pronged support to protect the health
and personal safety of customers and employees,
reduce the risk of customers and employees from
infection and stop the spread of the COVID-19 in
society. The prevention and control measures include
implementing the COVID-19 emergency plan, setting
up the epidemic prevention and control team, and
providing epidemic prevention materials to customers
and employees at operating places and offices. Despite
the severity of the pandemic, the Group still pays
attention to the employee remuneration and benefits,
career development opportunities and provides a
safe working environment, so that employees can
work proactively and enthusiastically, and realize
their self-worth in the home of “Century Ginwa".
Besides, the Group keeps the initial aim of embracing
corporate social responsibility, actively participates
in public welfare undertakings; continues to allocate
resources to optimise the equipment and facilities
using natural resources and set an example, respond
to the environmental protection measures of local
governments, and promote various environmental
protection activities in shopping malls, shopping centers
and supermarkets, so as to contribute positively to the
global climate change. However, there might be a long
way to fight against the pandemic. The Group hopes
that all of the employees and society will continue to
put unremitting efforts in leading through the crisis
and challenges and make continuous progress towards
sustainable development.
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Report of Chairman (continued)

To achieve this vision, the Board has set a number of
environmental and social KPIs and taken a top-down
approach to disintegrate the KPIs into the functional
departments. The Board not only improved the well-
being of the employees but also urged the employees
to make changes in different areas, such as reducing
greenhouse gas emissions and making good use of
resources. During the Reporting Period, the Group has
made achievements by actively supporting the Group’s
sustainable development strategies and objectives
from the management team and all employees. The
relevant scope, progress and achievements relating to
the environmental and social KPIs are disclosed in the
Report.

The Group aims to become the first group army in the
commercial sector in Central and Western China and a
respectable retail enterprise. Going forward, the Group
serves to enhance its business performance through
implementation of sustainable development strategies
and to generate more meaningful long-term value for
the enterprise and its stakeholders.

B -#HE8K

= BERE -#HEkER

BERRE

K E =
(%)
EEHRE (&)
REREIRES EFERET —F
FIRBEML S RAREDIEE - WA
B LM TEOIDER BEREBIEERED
BRBBEEAI - EEETERET
BTHEN mMEEIRAEEET
Eﬂ*&lﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%
Rl B - NI E I &
Eﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%lﬁ$%@TFf
HREEMBEOREEET A%
BEVG T —EMVRKAR - IR SRR
REMIERNEE ERMKRBE
REEPHRE -

RSB VA BB JE P B oh 7 R A AR R

—REE NS ABEHNTED
ERER FEEBERKERR
%%*kﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ REERFD
EREEZREAEENRERERE-

EREEEREEARAT

63



64

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

I%

BE-HERERKSE

MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Governance Structure

ESG Committee is established and chaired by the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group. The committee members
include representatives from major departments,
including Strategic Management Department, Human
Resources & Administration Center, Internal Control &
Legal Department, Brand Development Center, Member
Service Center, Marketing Planning Center, Property
Management Center, etc.. The ESG Committee will
follow the requirements of laws and regulations; and to
conduct business following appropriate best practices;
like setting up ESG targets, policies, procedures and
guidelines. In order to promote our Group's business
and the long-term sustainable development of the
local community of our business locations, we improve
our corporate governance, protect the environment,
engage our stakeholders and to contribute to the
society. We have five ESG Task Forces under the
ESG Committee, with keys members from the
related departments assisting the ESG Committee to
supervise and monitor the progress of various ESG
activities, to coordinate in setting up key performance
indicators, to regularly assess the effectiveness, and
to hold seminars to enhance the staff awareness in
environmental protection. The Group also collects the
appeal and feedbacks of stakeholders through various
channels. For example, customers, suppliers/brands
and shareholders can make their recommendations via
Member Service Center/Marketing Planning Center,
Strategic Management Department/Brand Development
Center, and general meeting of listed companies. The
Group also set up suggestion box to collect employees’
suggestions which are directly sent to the management.
The management implements the relevant suggestions
after evaluating the feasibility.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Governance Structure (continued)

The terms of reference, organizational structure,
reporting line and members of the ESG Committee are

as follows:

Community and
Shareholders/
Investors Focus Task Force

REEML M
Xi'an-Strategic
Management Department
and Human Resources &
Administration Center

BAR-BREEN

RADGTHAD
¢ To maintain good

communication with
shareholders and other
stakeholders, and to
enhance shareholders’
value in the long run

e To care for the
community and people
in need; to ensure
that the interests
of the community
are considered in
conducting business
activities

o ERRAEEHNH
REFRFHOER
REBRRNREEE

o BLUHERAFZR
AL BREBED
SEEMENMNE

TtEg Rk

TR
=]

&)

—~

HERE

BERRE

ANER

EERE

ERRE (E)
ESGRE g BIERE -
REHREELKENT

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

Leader: Chief Executive Officer

(Secretary of the Committee: Company Secretary of the Group)

(ZEEWE

BE HERERZES

FE THAR
CRABRE)

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee Convenor
BE HERERZEEEEA

Employees and
Occupational Safety Focus
Task Force
SEIABZEI NG
Xi'an-Human Resources
& Administration Center
and Internal Control &
Legal Department
BR-ANTHADL
RREEBES
e Tocare for our people, ¢

from recruitment,

training to developing

our employees .

¢ To maintain good
communication and
interactions with the
management team

¢ To give appropriate
encouragement
and recognition to
employees

¢ To provide a safe
working environment

e To prevent briberies,
extortion, frauds and
money laundering

o HIETIMTRE. .
EEMERE .

o EEBEHKERFH
BRNEH .

o HETIATHEER
EBRET

o REZEPMNIERE

o BIHE- YR HHER
ERERE

Suppliers
Focus Task Force
HEHET N
Xi'an-Strategic

Management Department
and Brand Development

Center
BR-BREER
RmEEES L
To concern about the @
customers' service
quality expectations

To maintain good o
communication and
interactions with
customers and to

build up trust; so as

to keep the good
reputation, integrity

and sustainable
development of the

Group

To focus on protecting  ®
our customers' rights

and interests; and their
privacy

BItEEERLTE

BIRBREFER
HIER 1B .
SHEHRITRITN
BENEIER
IEEEERNBE.
HEMAHELER o

Customers
Focus Task Force

BRI

Xi'an-Member Service
Center and Marketing
Planning Center

-gERBFL
REHDEFL
To concern about the o

customers' service
quality expectations

To maintain good
communication and
interactions with
customers and to .
build up trust; so as

to keep the good
reputation, integrity

and sustainable
development of the

Group

To focus on protecting
our customers’ rights
and interests; and their
privacy

BIBERBEAER
]

BERRBRITN
EBNRUER:
NREEEMZE. o
AEMAHEERR
BIBRSHEENE,L
Br iR

Environmental
Focus Task Force
RERER LG
Xi'an-Human Resources
& Administration Center

and Property Management

Center

BR— ADTHAL
ROEEESD

To cultivate a corporate
culture in promoting
energy conservation,
to prevent pollution, to
reduce emissions and to
reduce wastes

To pay attention to

the environmental
protection related
policies, measures

and effectiveness
(including setting up of
KPIs and performance
evaluation)
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Governance Structure (continued)

The Board has appointed an independent consultant
to provide advice on the ESG matters and assist in
collecting data and information for conducting various
analyses and providing improvement recommendations
on ESG performance. The Group has also collected
the views of key stakeholders on ESG matters
during daily operations and conducted a materiality
assessment to identify important ESG issues for the
Group, details of which are disclosed in the sections
headed “Stakeholders’ Engagement” and “Materiality
Assessment” below. To effectively lead the ESG process
of the Group, the Board monitors the work of all
departments to ensure that they work closely together
to achieve the sustainable development goals of
operational compliance and social responsibility.

Stakeholders’ Engagement

The Group is committed to maintaining the sustainable
development of its business. While achieving both
economic and social benefits, we actively shoulder
the social responsibilities and uphold the corporate
philosophy of “grace for the times and sincerely
contributing to the society”, and support environmental
protection at the communities where the business
operates. The Group maintains a close tie with
its stakeholders, including government/regulatory
organizations, shareholders/investors, employees,
customers, suppliers, community, etc. and strives
to balance their opinions and interests through
constructive communications in order to determine
the directions of its sustainable development. The
Group continues to identify, understand, assess and
determine its environmental, social and governance risks
in response to the needs and expectations of various
above-mentioned stakeholders, and ensures that the
relevant risk management measures and internal control
systems are operating effectively. The following table
shows the communication channels, management
response to the stakeholders’ expectations and
concerns:
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Stakeholders’ Engagement (continued)
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Expectations

Stakeholders and concerns Communication channels Management response
EHE HEHRER BERE EEEBERE
Government/requlatory > Compliance in laws > Periodic report/interim > Uphold integrity and compliance in operations

organizations and regulations announcement > Pay tax on time, and in return contributing to the
> Fulfill tax obligation > Correspondence society
> Cooperation > Field investigation > Establish comprehensive and effective internal
> Joint anti-epidemic > Process business via control system
government website or > Respond to government's policies and to build a
application harmonious society together
> Strictly comply with the local government's
guideline relating to business suspension and
resumption
BT/ EERE > BEERER > EHRE/BERE > REEPRFAELAR
> BORBEL > EREN > REHTARSLE
> SERR > B > RUREAMMADELER
> HEHE > FRBNBEEUNEREF > BEBFRRAREZNELS
WERH > BRETERHFEIEINES
Shareholders/ > Return on > Information disclosed on the > Management possesses relevant experience and
investors investment HKEX website professional knowledge in business sustainability
> Information > The Company’s official > Ensure transparent and effective communications
transparency website by dispatching information on the websites of
> (Corporate > Annual general meeting and HKEX and the Company
governance system other shareholders' meetings > Set up an investor hotline to maintain close and
> Joint anti-epidemic effective communication with the market and
investors
> Continue to improve the internal control system
and risk management
> Resume the business of shopping malls as soon
as possible
BE/ REE > REDR > WARRRBMRAMEEE: > EREAREHELRNEZNG BREKOT
> EHAAREH =) BEN
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II. MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Stakeholders’ Engagement (continued)

Stakeholders
&

Employees

Expectations
and concerns

HEHEER

>
>
>

vy

YYYVVY

Labor rights

Career development
Compensation and
welfare

Health and
workplace safety
Care for employees
Joint anti-epidemic

SIS
EXER
FENEF
BEREZZ
BEET
HRNE

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2022

Communication channels
BERE

>
>

>

>

YYYVYVY V¥

vy

Staff activities

Employee performance

evaluation

Induction and on the job

training

Internal meetings and
announcements

Contact via email, employees’

mail box, phone and

communication applications

Employees’ reasonable
recommendation
management measures

Epidemic prevention and
control manual
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Management response
EEEEE

> Set up contractual obligations to protect labor
rights

> Set up development subsidy fund to encourage
employees to participate in continuous education
and professional trainings

> Establish a fair, reasonable and competitive
remuneration scheme

> Pay attention to occupational health and safety

Organize leisure activities to enhance cohesion

> Actively provide epidemic prevention materials
such as masks and sanitizer to protect the
employees' health
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,

I%

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)
Stakeholders’ Engagement (continued)

Expectations

Stakeholders and concerns Communication channels
BOE HEHEER BBRE
Brands/Consumers > Integrity and > Business visit
contractual > Through Brand Business
obligation Department, customer service
> High quality center
products > (ontact via email and phone
> Intimate service and call
experience > Customer satisfaction survey
> Privacy protection and customer comment cards
> Joint anti-epidemic > Advertising media
miEE,/ HEE > BERED > BHFED
> amElm > REREH/ BERERL
> BOREERR > BREFBHREEBSE
> RELE > EPNEEASREEERF
> HRENE > BESERES

B-HERERKSE
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Management response
EEEEE

> Ensure proper contractual obligations are in
place

> Actively communicate with the brands to set
a reasonable payment settlement schedule, to
reach mutual agreement with partners and gain
confidence from brands, and to create favorable
condition for the company and stakeholders
working together

> Continuously introduce quality brands and
enhance service quality to satisfy customers;
and focus on shop positioning so as to make
each store have its own characteristics and to
reduce competition among shops having the
same brands, and to achieve virtuous cycle of
differentiated operations

> Establish uniform labels and set prices for
products, and strive to eliminate fake and
inferior products to protect consumers' rights
and interests

> Establish communication channels through
interviews, phone surveys, hotline and complaint
mailboxes

> Organize customer satisfaction survey to improve
service quality

> Develop a comprehensive members' information
confidentiality mechanism and carry out regular
information system maintenance

> Sterilize each corner of the shopping malls and

set up temperature measurement counter at

entrance, create shopping environment that

make consumers feel safe and secure
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)
Stakeholders’ Engagement (continued)

Stakeholders
&

Suppliers

s

Community

it

Expectations
and concerns

HEHEER

YYVYY

YYVYY

YYVYVY

Stable demand

Fair and open tender
Corporate reputation

Joint anti-epidemic

FRBE
NN E
TLEEE
HERZ

Environmental
protection

Reduce waste
generation
Community
contribution
Economic
development

Joint anti-epidemic
to protect people’s
livelihoods

Rk
RYBENMEL
HR2H
REER
HAGRRERE
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Communication channels
BERE

>
>

>

YVY

YVYVY

\J

YVY

Business visit

Contact via email and phone
call

Through Procurement Center/
Brand Business Department

ABRD
BRETBHLEERE
REBHL/ RIS REH

The Company’s official
website and information
publicity website of
government department
Community activities
Promotional activities
Publicity booths and posters
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Management response
EEEOE

>

>

>
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YYVYY
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>
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Y

Ensure proper contractual obligations are in
place

Establish policy and procedures in supply chain
management

Establish and maintain strong and long-

term relationship with suppliers, to build up
confidence of suppliers, and to create a good
situation in which all interested parties and the
company work together

Strengthen the tendering management system
continuously and select suppliers with due care
Resume the business of shopping malls as soon
as possible

Purchase epidemic prevention materials
HERETANEE
HIEHEREENBRNER
REBRERBNSERER BUMEENE
L BEENEFENARRALENRTBE
RHEMRDEERHEY B2 R
ERRERSE:

KEhEmE

Pay attention to climate change

Continuously invest resources in environmental
protection

Actively promote the sorting of garbage
Encourage employees to actively participate in
charitable activities and voluntary services
Maintain good and stable financial performance
and business growth

Respond to government's appeal of stimulating
business growth so as to drive the economic
development of the community

The supermarket business continues to operate
during epidemic and adopt various appropriate
epidemic prevention and control measures to
protect people’s health and safety; and to ensure
stable supply of daily necessities
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Materiality Assessment

During the Reporting Period, the Group held discussions
with the management and conducted materiality
assessment through various channels to identify ESG
issues in which both the Group and its key stakeholders
are interested and assessed the level of concern as
viewed by them so as to select the relatively important
ESG issues. For the materiality assessment, the Group
has adopted the following three processes:

B-HERERKSE
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HHEEMESGHERE - HNER T
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Identification

=3l

Prioritization

T 37 8 56 R

Validation
BB
AR RS

Through diverse channels and internal discussions

FEiR%TRE RN

Examines and adopts the ESG issues of concern in the past
stakeholders’ engagement

AR KRN BER D B 2 88 B P EMESGERE

Draws attention to emerging ESG issues

I B BHIESGRE B

Synthesizes, analyzes and evaluates the views of all

parties to identify and prioritize potential and important

issues

BE - OMERIESHER UBBEBECESZHERE

WA SRR LB ERT

Develops materiality matrix based on the importance of the issue
to the Group and its key stakeholders
BEZBRHAEERFERNENEZRERUSEN

B [

Interacts with the management team to validate

the materiality assessment and ensure that these issues

are aligned with the sustainable development direction
sought by the Group

HEREKEE URFEEUFHER
BRELHEEREB IS RO AFHEERT R —K

Reports the materiality assessment to the Board and makes the
required disclosures in the ESG Report
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II. MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL, -
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Materiality Assessment (continued)

RE -HEkER
(#)

HEE

EE'IE%WE (%)

Materiality assessment helps the Group to ensure its

business objectives and development direction are
in line with the expectations and requirements of its

Z LA B AN S B e AR S A 3%
f&au%’]ﬁii?ﬂﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁﬁéﬁﬁi%ﬁx :
REBME & PR O/ E IR

stakeholders. The matters of concern of the Group and HRUTHEEHERERNA :
shareholders are presented in the following materiality
matrix:
Materiality Matrix
e
4 Anti-discrimination 4 Talent management > Customers’ satisfaction
@ Labor rights protection | 4 Staff training and > Product and service quality
promotion > Anti-corruption
& Staff compensation > Stimulation of
and welfare consumption
> Protection of the people’s
livelihoods
> Epidemic prevention and
< control
2 L @ Epidemic prevention and
T control
o RiE o AFEE > EEREE
* REEAHE & STHEIIEEH > BREREEE
& STHEERET > REH
= fEEE
2 > RAERE
3 > PR
0 4 & HRbE
S I <> Greenhouse gas emissions > Operational compliance
o W <> Energy consumption > Customers’ privacy
nw & & Occupational health and measures and protection
oM safety > Suppliers management
o R g > Community involvement
g¥® S > Intellectual property rights
S-S
£ o $ RERBHN > ZEAH
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group strictly complies with the laws and
regulations on environmental protection at operating
locations, including the “Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes”, the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Pollution from Environmental Noise”, the “Energy
Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China”
of Mainland China and the applicable laws and
regulations of relevant provincial and municipal ecology
and environment bureau. The Group always paid great
attention to energy conservation, emission reduction
and environmental protection, and adheres to the
management philosophy of sustainable development
to achieve green operation and balanced development;
in response to the global environmental protection
trends, the Group implements energy conservation
and environmental protection measures to mitigate
the environmental risks and negative impacts from the
Group’s business activities. The ESG Committee plays
a critical decision-making role on various measures,
including environmental protection, customers’ service,
supply chain, employees’ and investors’ concerns,
and gradually enhances the Group’s sustainability
performance. Besides, we strictly adhere to the
applicable environmental laws and regulations and
support the government in various actions to protect
the environment, and hopes to fulfill the expectations
and concerns of both the Group and its stakeholders in
business development and environmental protection.

In order to implement the Group’s environmental
protection policy effectively, we have set up Human
Resources & Administration Center, and Property
Management Center at each mall for monitoring
the daily environmental and resources conservation
management work within the mall and office areas; and
demand our employees to strictly follow the Group’s
internal guidelines to collect, classify, store and dispose
of wastes; hope to reduce waste and to avoid resources
wastage through various measures. Please refer to
the details in the “Management of Emissions” and
“Management of Resources Utilization” sections below.

BRR HEREBRE

= RIEFRE

AREBBIGE T E B ORER
ERPERER  BRPEAE (F
EARKNMBERFEREE) (P
ARKMBIGF R AZE) ~(PE
ARKMBE E YIS RREN AR
E) (PEARKMBERERRE)S
ApaiE) ~(PREARKMBEEL
RIRE) RBEBEAMERRRERN
ERER - ARERBAKIEFEIEE
ENRERHE AR BIRIR - RITE Al §
BRRMEEED BRAKELKE
k@R Y HEEZHRNORRKRES
Z HRSASHERERER BA%
BHREMEROARNMEERE
RIE-ESGREENBZBEBRTEER
EEMRARAG NRERE TP
R HEE BT RREESZE
EmEZRE ZFRAANEEAFE
BRARER - MIN B EEEE
BEANEEXHERNRRARE
B R RERBFSENIRRT
B HEERERRNRE - 8E50m
RENEHAKSEXBERNPL

BT ERLE A E R HRE
T - R E B RT A DT
bR E SR B ELEHS
BHAEEERLN B ERERTH
ERERNER T BARERT
AR EEN N IR KE S
B EHRERES AR BERE
TR AR B SR R
BB AR - BRI I T X [
W ER| Rk EREREE] H5
S

HESHEHEERERLA
CROCFER

73



74

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

1.

Management of Emissions

The Group integrates green operation into our
development strategies to monitor and manage
various environmental factors and their impacts
on the environment, with an aim to build a
strong environmental management system. The
Group’s economic and trading business does
not involve any production activities, and its
environmental impacts mainly comes from use
of natural resources, generation of solid wastes
(Please refer to the “Management of Disposal
of Solid Wastes” section below for details) and
discharge of domestic wastewater from office,
shopping mall and supermarket operations, and
never produced any solid or liquid hazardous
wastes. The use of natural resources (including
gasoline, diesel, natural gas and electricity) will
produce air pollutants and greenhouse gases
(Please refer to the “Management of Resource
Utilization” section below for details); and
domestic wastewater is discharged to the local
wastewater treatment plant through the urban
wastewater pipeline.

Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes

The solid wastes generated by the Group can
be divided into two types, recyclable and non-
recyclable, which mainly include the product
packaging materials (such as plastic bags,
wrapping paper, carton box), slow-moving goods,
kitchen wastes, construction and engineering
wastes and domestic garbage. In order to reduce
waste production and the negative impacts on
the environment, we encourage the shops to
use bio-degradable plastic bags and packaging
paper, and strictly implement the plastic bag levy
system; we donate slow-moving consumable
goods to the people in need; encourage
employees to take food at right portions and
reduce food waste; re-use waste spare parts for
the repairs and maintenance of the equipment
inside the malls; recycle and re-use the wooden
boards, lights and electrical equipment removed
or discarded by the brands after shop renovation;
post environmental slogans in the malls and
organize activities in the theme of environmental
protection so as to enhance the public awareness
in saving the environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes
(continued)

The Group always advocates the belief in green
environmental protection, actively promotes
wastes classification and resources recycling
for relieving the pressure on the environment
and to spread messages on important measures
for improving the living environment, continue
to instill knowledge of wastes classification
to employees and customers and to explain
how people’s behaviors have been damaging
the environment and facilities and to illustrate
the correct way of implementation. Therefore,
we have set up a waste classification team,
established waste classification management
policy and procedure; improved and enhanced
the waste classification facilities, and delegated
personnel to monitor the implementation
progress of each department. The Group has
set up recycle bin for hazardous wastes, kitchen
wastes, recyclable wastes and non-recyclable
wastes and to share wastes recycling knowledge
at promotion booths inside shopping malls; so
as to actively promote the knowledge on wastes
recycling and classification, and to advocate
“mixed wastes is garbage and classification
turns wastes into resources”, hope to raise the
proportion of the recyclable wastes; and at
the same time, assist the local government to
promote wastes classification; and to cultivate
people’s habit to live a “low-carbon” life; and
produce less wastes.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes
(continued)

For the wastes generated from equipment
repairs and maintenance inside the shopping
malls and supermarkets, and the construction
wastes produced by shops when they move
in or undergo renovation, we follow the local
urban waste disposal management requirements
to arrange wastes collection by construction
companies or the local government sanitation
department; and illegal dumping of waste is
forbidden. The Group started to collect data on
domestic wastes and domestic wastewater from
shopping malls and offices since March of 2019,
and implemented the relevant measures relating
to the production, disposal and reduction of
domestic wastes and organized environmental
protection trainings at appropriate times to
enhance employees’ awareness of environmental
protection. With the active support of our
employees, the Group’'s environmental
management system has been enhanced
progressively, and will continuously optimize
various re-use and wastes reduction measures.
The Group focuses not only on its own business
operations, but also actively promotes the global
sustainable development trend.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes
(continued)

The non-hazardous solid wastes generated by
the Group decreased by approximately 590.81
tonnes or 86.42% when compared with the
previous year, with a total of approximately
92.87 tonnes of non-hazardous solid wastes
generated. Shopping mall at Gaoxin carried out
renovation work project last year, with a total
of approximately 588.00 tonnes of construction
waste generated. During the Reporting Period,
shopping mall at Saigao also carried out
renovation work project, but construction waste
was handled by the construction contractor
which did not provide relevant production data.
Therefore, we did not disclose the relevant data
in this Report. If excluding the construction
waste, last year's non-hazardous solid wastes
generated was 95.68 tonnes with an intensity of
0.39 tonnes. The current year’s non-hazardous
solid wastes generated by the Group decreased
by approximately 2.81 tonnes or 2.94%.

At the beginning of the Reporting Period,
the Group sets a target to decrease the non-
hazardous solid wastes (excluding construction
wastes) by 2% when compared with the previous
year. The target has been achieved during the
Reporting Period. Please refer to the “Summary
of Environmental Data and Performance” section
below for the relevant data.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly
abides by the environmental laws and regulations
of the state and local ecology and environmental
bureaus, and the Group did not involve in any
confirmed violations or non-compliance incident
relating to emissions that had a significant impact
on the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization

The Group has been strictly complied with
the “Regulations on Energy Conservation
in Shaanxi Province”, the “Regulations on
Energy Conservation in Public Authority”
and the applicable energy-saving policies and
requirements of each city. We established an
energy-saving project management team to
carry out the energy-saving and emission-
reduction projects on shopping centers,;
continuously enhancing the projects by adopting
various measures to conform with the national
environmental protection policy of energy-
saving and emission-reduction. The Group
clearly understands the use of resources not
only increased the operating costs, but also
has impact on the environment. Therefore, the
Group strictly monitors and manages ESG data.
In order to operate as a conservation-oriented
enterprise, green management is implemented
throughout the Group to correct our wasteful
behavior in daily work and living. Besides, we
have also established “Employees’ Suggestion
Rationalization Management Measures” to
provide direct communication channel between
employees and the management in order to
advocate employees to participate in operation
management. We hope that employees can
raise up different effective recommendations
relating to their familiar working environment
and to formulate efficient energy-saving and
emission-reduction policy, further promote and
implement measures in energy-saving, emission-
reduction and efficient use of resources, thereby
reducing operating costs, creating publicity and
atmosphere of energy-saving and emission-
reduction in the working environment, and
minimizing the Group’s negative impact on the
environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption

Diesel and gasoline fuel-based vehicles are
mainly used for guest pick-up, business trips and
materials transportation. We analyze the monthly
fuel consumption data to regulate our employees
on the usage of vehicles. If abnormalities are
found, the vehicle administrators are required
to provide explanation. Drivers must plan the
routes before using the vehicles and use the
shortest route and the fastest way to reach the
destination. We also require the driver to stop
the engine to prevent engines idling; conduct
regular repairs and maintenance to reduce extra
fuel consumption and waste gas emissions due
to part failure. Besides, we also promote and
publicize the "low carbon travel” emission-
reduction measures, encourage employees to use
public transportations or the shared bikes within
the urban area to reduce use of vehicles, thereby
reducing emissions and greenhouse gas. We
hope the employees could deliver the message of
“Living Green” to their family and friends; and
to motivate more people to build an ecological
civilization together.

Due to the impacts of the COVID-19 epidemic
last year, government departments implemented
prevention and control measures, and the Group’
number of delivery services increased, so the
consumption of diesel oil was more than that of
the current year. During the Reporting Period, the
Group consumed approximately 3,812.92 liters of
diesel, representing a decrease of approximately
3,956.08 liters or 50.92% when compared
with the previous year. The Group consumed
approximately 4,361.64 liters of gasoline during
the Reporting Period, representing a decrease
of approximately 100.89 liters or 2.26% when
compared with the previous year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption (continued)

At the beginning of the Reporting Period, the
Group sets targets to reduce both consumption
intensity of diesel and gasoline by 2% when
compared with the previous year. The targets
have been achieved during the Reporting
Period. Please refer to the below table and
the “Summary of Environmental Data and
Performance” section below for the relevant
data.

Natural gas is mainly used in staff canteen
cooking utensils and heating in some
supermarkets. We require that the kitchen staff
should prepare food according to actual needs,
and the heating system could only be used when
temperature fell below certain degree so as to
avoid over-usage or waste of natural gas due to
excessive food prepared or use of the heating
system under inappropriate temperature.

The Group was affected by the COVID-19
pandemic last year. Its normal business hours
had been shortened, and led to reduced times
of food preparation and reduced heating time
for employees, and consequentially, less natural
gas was consumed. As the epidemic eases
slightly, the Group’s natural gas consumption
in 2022 resumed to normal level. The Group’s
natural gas consumption during the Reporting
Period increased by approximately 14,396.00
cubic meters or 58.16% when compared with
the previous year, with a total of approximately
39,150.00 cubic meters (“m*") of natural gas
consumed.
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lll. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

(continued)
2. Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)
Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption (continued)
At the beginning of the Reporting Period, the
Group set a target to increase the natural gas
consumption by 10% when compared with the
previous year. As the epidemic eases slightly,
the Group’s natural gas consumption in 2022
resumed to normal level, and the increase is
higher than the Group’s estimation. Please
refer to the below table and the “Summary of
Environmental Data and Performance” section
below for the relevant data.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s use of
energy and Scope 1 greenhouse gas emitted are
as follows:
2022
2022FE
co,
equivalent
emissions
Consumption (Tonnes)
&b
EEHHE
EHE (M)
Direct Use of Energy:
BEEEAER:
Diesel 3,812.92 Liters 10.57
5 nH
Gasoline 4,361.64 Liters 11.81
i NFH
Natural Gas 39,150.00 m?3 71.70
RIAR, 75K
Greenhouse Gas Emission 94.08
BERBHHEE
Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity ' 0.38
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20214 8
CO,
equivalent
emissions
Consumption (Tonnes)
—a1bix

EEHRE

EHE (M)

7,769.00 Liters 21.54
N

4,462.53 Liters 12.08
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RE HERERRSE

Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption (continued)
Note:

1 The Group’s greenhouse gas emission intensity
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters
(m?) of the floor area of the shopping malls
and offices. During the Reporting Period, there
was no significant expansions in the shopping
malls, supermarkets and offices nor relocation
or demolition project related to the business.

Management of Electricity Consumption

The Group has always concerned about the
impact of its business operations on the
environment. However, due to the nature of our
business, high demand of electricity consumption
in shopping malls, mainly used in lighting and
air-conditioning. In order to balance the energy-
saving and emission-reduction target and
satisfying the customers’ needs, we strengthen
the management of electricity use within malls
and the publicizing effort of energy-saving and
emission-reduction in various aspects. We hope
to maximize the efficiency in electricity use,
and at the same time, build up habit in energy
conservation in our business environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

For the management of lighting system, the
Human Resources & Administration Center, and
Property Management Center strictly controls
the electricity consumption during renovation
of new brands and the existing brands, controls
the use of high-energy lighting, and at the
same time, recommend the use of LED energy-
saving lighting. The brands have to control
their electricity load, and turn off the lights
when there is no one in the shops. We conduct
detailed inspection and acceptance procedures
on different aspects, such as industrial art, fire
prevention, safety, design, resources and energy
consumption when the renovation is completed.
These measures can effectively control the
energy consumption of the brands in future
operation. For the electricity management of
existing brands and the public areas of the malls,
other than continue to request the brands to
use LED energy-saving lighting, we also adopt
various electricity conservation measures, for
example, we only switch on the monitoring
lights and emergency lights during non-business
hours; the brands must apply in writing and
pay the extra electricity charges if they demand
additional electricity during non-business hours.
We will not provide additional electricity if the
brands or external units did not submit the
application and pay the extra electricity charges.
We implement regional lighting arrangements,
and turn off unnecessary lights in some areas,
adjust the running time of the escalator to
avoid unnecessary wastage, thereby reducing
the electricity consumption from lighting in the
malls. Apart from electricity use for lighting,
supermarkets need to store a variety of fresh
food and goods in 24-hour freezer facilities for
preservation purposes. These facilities consume
huge amounts of electricity, so we take various
measures to reduce electricity consumption. For
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RE HERERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

example, we carry out targeted maintenance
and repairs for the equipment; plan to carry out
innovative and intelligent management of the
equipment so that the equipment can adjust
its temperature automatically according to the
detected temperature and the product type, and
to switch intelligently its operation mode (such
as sleep mode at night); provide alert or signal in
case of equipment failure so that the responsible
departments can carry out repairs as soon as
possible and to reduce the failure rate of the
equipment.

For the electricity management of air-
conditioning, we conduct regular repair and
maintenance and monitor the operation of air-
conditioning equipment inside the malls, clean
the facilities regularly, and carry out appropriate
energy-saving re-engineering for the facilities,
thereby increasing their output rate, and
reducing the additional electricity consumption
from abnormal operation. Besides, we adopt
appropriate measures to control the temperature,
timing difference and air volume of the air-
conditioning equipment, such as, we reasonably
adjust the temperature according to seasonal
change, real-time temperature data feed from
the monitoring system inside the malls and the
feedback from on-site personnel. We also adjust
on/off time of the facilities and the ratio of fresh
air supply, aiming at satisfying the comfort needs
of customers, and at the same time, achieving
the goal of energy-conservation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

The Group has established a strict review and
approval procedure for selecting suppliers of
power facilities and equipment, the suppliers
have to provide qualification certificates and
product manual. We compare the qualification
among different suppliers and evaluate different
criteria about the equipment (including energy
consumption, quality, function, etc.) prior to
purchase so as to reduce unnecessary energy
consumption due to unsuitable facilities
and equipment. The Human Resources
& Administration Center, and Property
Management Center is responsible for the
daily inspection of offices and shopping malls,
and the organization, planning, execution and
inspection of energy-saving and consumption
reduction work, and the maintenance staff
conducts regular repairs and maintenance on
electrical facilities and equipment. When faults or
abnormal operations are found, immediate repair
is carried out to reduce energy consumption
and to avoid accidents. We also actively conduct
energy-saving technological transformation
for electrical appliances to improve the power
efficiency of the unit.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

For the electricity management in office, we post
different energy-saving promotional slogans in
the offices; increase the natural lighting capacity
of the work place; encourage employees to
change their habit in use of electrical appliances
by turning off the unnecessary lights and
electrical appliances during lunch break and
after work, the computer and the printer are
set to automatic sleep mode. Restricted use
of air conditioners according to seasonal and
temperature changes, the temperature setting of
the air conditioner in summer and winter cannot
be lower than 26 ° C and not higher than 20 °
C respectively, air conditioner should be turned
off 15 minutes before the end of office hours;
doors and windows must be closed when air
conditioners are turned on.

The Group believes that publicity and education
is also an important part of energy-saving and
emission-reduction work. Within the corporate,
we remind our employees to abide by the
energy-saving measures during the morning
assembly, so as to enhance their awareness in
energy-saving, and hope that employees can
understand that everyone must work together
to remain competitive under the fierce market
competition. We also hope that employees can
start from every little thing and are determinant
to avoid resource wastage, thereby enhancing
their environmental protection awareness in work
and life through participation in energy-saving
and emission-reduction activities. Besides, we
post various energy-saving slogans in shopping
malls, use electronic displays to publicize energy-
saving tips. We organize different promotional
activities in shopping malls to educate the public
about the relationship between energy usage and
the sustainability of the planet.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group
consumed approximately 17,649.50 megawatt
hours (“MWh") of electricity, representing a
decrease of approximately 8,307.21 MWh or
32.00% when compared with the previous year.
We have been actively transforming the lighting
system of public areas in malls and supermarkets
with LED energy-saving lighting for a number of
years; and the transformation project is gradually
completed, and thus effectively reduced the
electricity consumption. Besides, as the Group
was affected by the COVID-19 epidemic, some
shops were closed and ceased operations in
the current year. In addition, the shopping mall
at Saigao carried out renovation work project
from May 2021 to January 2023, resulting in a
reduction in electricity consumption.

At the beginning of the Reporting Period, the
Group set a target to reduce the electricity
consumption by 10.00% when compared with
the previous year. The target has been achieved
during the Reporting Period. Please refer to the
below table and the “Summary of Environmental
Data and Performance” section below for the
relevant data.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group's use of
energy and Scope 2 greenhouse gas emitted are

as follows:

2022

20225 E

Consumption

(MWh)
ERE (KRE)
Indirect Use of Energy:
BEEARR:
Electricity 17,649.50
BN

Greenhouse Gas Emission
BERBHHMEE
Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity '

BEREBHIHERE

Note:

CO,
equivalent
emissions
(Tonnes)

—S1bhx

EEHRE

(W)

10,768.47

10,768.47

43.79

1 The Group's greenhouse gas emission intensity
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters
(m2) of the floor area of the shopping malls
and offices. During the Reporting Period, there
was no significant expansions in the shopping
malls, supermarkets and offices nor relocation

or demolition project related to the business.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Water Resources
Consumption

The Group uses government-supplied water
sources in shopping malls and offices. Although
we do not encounter any water supply problem
during the Reporting Period, we clearly
understand the importance of water resources for
business operations and living needs; therefore,
we implement various measures to enhance
water resource use efficiency and to avoid
wastage. The Human Resources & Administration
Center, and Property Management Center of
each mall regularly collect and analyze the
statistical data of water consumption to monitor
the water usage. We educate and promote
the concept of “green life” to our employees
and customers by way of slogans, training
and publicity activities. We have implemented
a number of measures and retrofitted the
equipment in the malls; for the purpose of
reducing water use as long as the comfort of
the customers is not compromised. For example,
adjust the operating frequency of the water
pump motors flexibly so as to minimize the
electricity and water consumption, strengthen
water pipes inspection to avoid running,
dripping, leaking and long flowing water; re-
use condensed water from air-conditioning
equipment in the cooling tower, as the
temperature of condensed water is low enough
to reduce the temperature of the cooling tower
less energy is consumed, and at the same time,
reduced the frequency of water replenishment
into the cooling tower; install water-saving
faucets and reasonably adjust the volume of
water outflow; use foot valve manual flushing to
replace automatic induction flushing; regularly
check the water facilities to prevent water
leakage; immediately repair or replace when
problem is found, and keep detailed records. The
Group persistently instilling its employees about
the importance of the conservation culture,
and puts up posters of different resource saving
methods in the office area, and demands the
employees to control the water flow at low level,
water tap should be turned off after use.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Water Resources
Consumption (continued)

The Group’'s water consumption during the
Reporting Period decreased by approximately
52,678.75 cubic meters or 27.78% when
compared with the previous year, with a total
of 136,925.68 cubic meters of water resources
used. This is mainly because some of the Group'’s
shops were closed and ceased operation in the
current year affected by the COVID-19 epidemic.
In addition, the shopping mall at Saigao carried
out renovation work project from May 2021 to
January 2023, resulting in a reduction in water
consumption.

At the beginning of the Reporting Period,
the Group set a target to reduce the water
consumption by 10% when compared with the
previous year. The target has been achieved
during the Reporting Period. Please refer to the
below table and the “Summary of Environmental
Data and Performance” section below for the
relevant data.
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Water Resources
Consumption (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s use of
water resources is as follows:

Water Resources
KEIR

Total

wE

Intensity '

Note:

1 The Group's greenhouse gas emission intensity
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters
(m2) of the floor area of the shopping malls
and offices. During the Reporting Period, there
was no significant expansions in the shopping
malls, supermarkets and offices nor relocation
or demolition project related to the business.

BRR HEREBRE
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2. ERFERANER (£2)
KEFEHNERE (8)
RIEHRN - AEERAKE
MUK

2022 2021
2022 E 20214 E
(Cubic Meters) (Cubic Meters)
(LA K) (L FHXK)
136,925.68 189,604.43
556.76 771.48
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of the Use of Packaging
Materials

The packaging materials used by the Group
mainly include plastic and paper bags provided
for customers to carry the purchased goods,
and packaging materials used for supermarket
stock up and packaging of fresh food; in
order to actively support the national policy of
“Administrative Measures for the Paid Use of
Plastic Bags at Commodity Retailing Places”,
and to achieve the aims of conserving resources,
protecting the ecological environment, and
influencing our consumers to reduce plastic
shopping bags use, to bring their own shopping
bags, and to use more eco-friendly shopping
bags; we have established the “Regulations for
the Use of Eco-friendly Shopping Bags” to ensure
the Company’s environmental-friendly shopping
bags are used appropriately. The Group restricted
salespeople from providing plastic shopping
bags to consumers at below-cost price or free of
charge. We also regularly assign delegated staff
to packaging counters to inspect and carry out
comprehensive monitoring, including assessment
of the application standards, charge level and
review of the packaging materials record.
Besides, we have also promoted the concept
of “green lifestyle” to the public, and posted
promotional slogans at various sales areas,
appealed consumers to reduce the use of plastic
products and use more bio-degradable materials
to reduce the impact on the environment due to
incorrect or excessive use of packaging materials.

During the Reporting Period, the Group
consumed approximately 57.41 tonnes of
packaging materials, representing a decrease of
20.08 tonnes or 25.91% when compared with
the previous year. This was mainly affected by
the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group’s online bulk
food sales volume increased in 2021, and the
packaging volume was more than that of 2022.
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of the Use of Packaging
Materials

During the Reporting Period, the Group's use of
packaging materials is as follows:

Packaging Materials
& m P B AR
Total

Intensity !

=
BE
Notes:

1 The Group's greenhouse gas emission intensity
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters
(m2) of the floor area of the shopping malls
and offices. During the Reporting Period, there
was no significant expansions in the shopping
malls, supermarkets and offices nor relocation
or demolition project related to the business.
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2. ERFERANER (£2)
BENBERNEE
RIEHRN  AEENBEY
FRBERINTE:

2022 2021
2022 E 20214 E
(Tonnes) (Tonnes)

(W) (W8)

57.41 77.49

0.23 0.32

Bt E -

rEEBKYEHERZ
RIEBERBAZENZE
SEH 18 m90.001-F 77 K 2
TTatE - MR8 & H iy £
XEHEBNES  EYT
O BRTG R RER
BETEREELERT

Ve

HESHEHEERERLA

CROCFER

93



94

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Paper Consumption

In order to reduce the impact of our daily office
operation on the environment, the Group
actively promotes the “Paperless Office” policy,
sets up office automation system to enable
each department to distribute information and
documents in electronic format; paper purchase
by the procurement center and set up an office
paper distribution registration management
system; demand employees to check the format
of the document before copying or printing;
reduce the font size of the file to make full use
of the paper without affecting the legibility; fully
utilize paper by reusing single-sided papers, and
collect double-sided printed papers to qualified
recycler for handling. We have also introduced
different electronic payment methods in various
department stores and supermarkets to speed up
the implementation of paperless payment, and
to carry out promotion activities through online
digital marketing channels and reduced use of
printed materials.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group has always been actively bringing
environmental responsibility into its daily
operations, energy consumption and waste
production is monitored and managed over the
years, and will continue to monitor, identify
and disclose the impact of our business
activities on the environment. The major impact
on the environment and natural resources
from shopping malls and offices operations
mainly come from waste gas, greenhouse gas,
wastewater and solid waste generated from the
use of natural resources (including electricity,
natural gas, fuel, water, paper, etc.), and the
construction wastes and domestic wastes
generated from the operation of shopping malls.
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

3.

Environment and Natural Resources
(continued)

Although the COVID-19 outbreak has had a
huge impact on the economy in Mainland China,
the Group's department stores and shopping
malls businesses are the first to bear the brunt.
Faced with the decline in profits of physical
retail corporates, the Group’s determination to
environmental protection and green operations
has not diminished. With years of accumulated
environmental protection work experience, we
have effectively reduced operating costs, allowing
us to invest more resources and implement
various measures to increase resource efficiency.
Besides, the Chinese government provides
preferential policies and tax reductions for
various industries, which indirectly provides great
support to the Group’s environmental protection
work and reduces economic pressure. We will
continue to advocate the concept of “save one
unit of electricity, save one tonne of water,
save a drop of oil, save a piece of paper, save a
penny”, manage resource utilization and enhance
the employees’ awareness of environmental
protection.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

4.

Climate Change

Climate change is expected to worsen the
frequency and severity of extreme weather events
and cause catastrophic damage. Climate change
is also changing seasonal and annual patterns
of temperature, precipitation and other weather
phenomena, increasing risk of heavy rains,
rising tides and flooding that can cause serious
damage to assets such as buildings, warehouses
and inventories, resulting in economic losses. In
the long term, climate change may lead to rise
in the sea level, long-term changes in climate
patterns of chronic heat waves (persistent higher
temperature, etc.). The unprecedented crisis
from the global spread of the COVID-19 has
created significant challenges worldwide while
the risks of climate change are still imminent.
Understanding of these trends and their
relevance to the Group's businesses can help
the Group to prepare, analyze possible risks and
opportunities, seize the opportunities of potential
benefits and establish the response capacity of
the Group in the long run.

In response to climate change, the Group
will continue to pay attention to climate
changes, continuously review and monitor the
implementation of various measures, constantly
optimize measures based on effectiveness,
establish various effective and appropriate
measures with reference to its operations,
implement “green operation, balanced
development” and seek opinions from external
parties whenever needed, for reducing our
carbon footprint. We hope to use this report
to share with the others the results of our
efforts and performance on natural resource
conservation, and to convey environmental
protection messages to stakeholders, so as
to achieve a more powerful environmental
protection publicity effect and to work with all
walks of life to mitigate the climate change.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES

Employees are our valuable assets and the key driver
for the Group’s sustainable and long-term business
development. We devote to create a non-discrimination,
equal, harmonious and safe workplace and establish
a comprehensive talent management mechanism.
In order to adhere to our governance philosophy
of attracting talent by means of “compensation”,
“relationship”, “career” and “working platform”,
we offer equal opportunities of advancement
and providing commensurate remuneration and
various benefits. The Group enhances employees’
consciousness of innovation, work flexibility and focus
on commitment when dealing with their customers,
promotes full participation of all our employees in
management, encourages employees to make rational
recommendations and put into practice so as to fulfill
the mission of providing high quality merchandises
and services to the customers. Besides, we encourage
employees to maintain harmonious interpersonal
relationships, promote team spirit of cooperation and
unity, bravely face difficulties and overcome challenges.
Our human resources policies vary by locations to
comply with the local labor laws and regulations.
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RE #HERESR

&

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

The Group has strictly complied with the relevant laws
and regulations on employment and Labor of Mainland
China and Hong Kong, including the “Constitution of
the People’s Republic of China”, the “Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Minors”, the
“Provisions on the Special Protection for Underage
Employees”, the “Provisions on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labor”, the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Women’s Rights and
Interests”, the “Insurance Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, the “Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Social Insurance Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Regulations on Work-
Related Injury Insurances”, the “Trade Union Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, the “Employment
Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
the “Labor Dispute Mediation and Arbitration Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
Disabled Persons”, the “Individual Income Tax Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Regulation
on the Implementation of the Employment Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Law of
the People's Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases” of Mainland China,
and the “Employment Ordinance”, the “Employees’
Compensation Ordinance”, the “Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance”, the “Minimum Wage
Ordinance”, the “Sex Discrimination Ordinance”,
the “Disability Discrimination Ordinance”, the
“Family Status Discrimination Ordinance”, the “Race
Discrimination Ordinance”, the “Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance” of Hong Kong and other local
government requirements and standards. Relevant
information will be described in detail in the sections
headed “Employment”, “Health and Safety” and
“Labor Standards” below.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

1.

Employment

The Group has established an internal
management system which specifies the
requirements for recruitment, promotion,
dismissal, working hours, rest periods,
compensation, welfare and other benefits.

Recruitment, Promotion, Dismissal,
Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-
discrimination

The Group is a fair opportunity employer and
respects personal privacy, and established related
policy in this area. During the recruitment
process, the department head determines the job
positions’ responsibilities and requirements, and
the Human Resources Department assesses and
screens applicants according to the requirements.
We adhere to the merit system principles and fair
recruitment. The appropriate candidates would
be selected based on their morality, knowledge,
abilities and job requirements, and regardless
of their nationality, gender, age, geographical,
religious beliefs. The policy applies to all phases
of the employment relationship, including but
not limited to, hiring, promotion, performance
appraisal, training, personal development and
termination. The Group handles dismissal and
compensation in accordance with the local laws
and regulations.
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RE HERERRSE

IV.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

1.

Employment (continued)

Recruitment, Promotion, Dismissal,
Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-
discrimination (continued)

In order to enhance work quality and employee
competencies, the Group conducts periodic
performance appraisal and fairly assess
the level of awards, salary increment and/
or promotion recommendations based on a
number of criteria, including working experience,
seniority, knowledge and skills, performance,
contributions, etc.. In the performance appraisal
process, the department head communicates
and discusses with employees about their
achievements, suggest areas for improvement,
and setting objectives and performance indicator
for the next appraisal period, so as to motivate
the employees for continuous improvement and
to develop their potential.

On the basis of equality, the Group hopes to
identify talents who are committed and dedicated
to work, willing to take responsibility, keep
learning, continuously improving their abilities
and willing to move forward with the Group.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

1.

Employment (continued)

Recruitment, Promotion, Dismissal,
Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-
discrimination (continued)

At the end of the Reporting Period, the number
and distribution of the Group’s employees are as
follows:

Gender 1 5l

Male 55 1%

Female &%

Employment Type {E & 5l
Full-time 2 B

Part-time 3% B

Age Group F# 4 5l
18-30

31-45

46-60

>60

Geographical Region it &
Mainland China A Bl /A #b,
Hong Kong &%
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RE HERERRSE

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

1.

Employment (continued)

Recruitment, Promotion, Dismissal,
Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-
discrimination (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s average
monthly employee turnover rate is as follows:

Gender 1Bl

Male 55 1%

Female ZZ 1%

Age Group F# 4 Bl
18-30

31-45

46-60

Geographical Region it &
Mainland China & Bl A 3
Hong Kong &%

Note:
1 Part of last year’s comparative figures are

restated to conform with the current year’s
presentation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

1.

Employment (continued)
Compensation, Welfare and Other Benefits

The Group attracts and retains outstanding
talents with competitive remuneration packages
and regularly assesses their salary levels to
ensure it is up to the market standard. The
Group benchmarks the up-to-date remuneration
data in its industry, and strives to establish a
fair, reasonable and competitive remuneration
scheme in order to ensure the pay level of
general staff is competitive in the region where
the Group operates; and the core members are
remunerated competitively within the industry.
Employees’ salaries level is decided based
on one’'s knowledge, skills, experiences and
education background relevant to their work
requirements, and the Group implements a
remuneration system that consists of basic salary
and performance-based bonus.

The employees’ remuneration package includes
basic salary, seniority salary, overtime pay, and
so on. Other benefits include working meals,
messing allowance, communication allowance,
birthday gifts, festive gifts, medical insurance,
provision of group accident insurance for
employees in high risk job positions, infectious
disease insurance purchased for protecting the
employees’ safety at the time of the pandemic,
provide nucleic acid testing, medical donations
for employees and their families, etc.. We provide
anti-heatstroke and warm drinks and supplies
to special position workers (including security
guards, staff canteen’s employees, parking crews)
during high temperature and cold weather.
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RE HERERRSE

IV.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

1.

Employment (continued)

Compensation, Welfare and Other Benefits
(continued)

Besides, the Group provides social security
benefits for all employees following the
requirement of the local labor laws and social
security laws and regulations. The Group
contributes to various social security schemes
(endowment insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work injury insurance
and maternity insurance) and housing provident
fund for the employees in Mainland China, and
contributes to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.

In response to the government’s COVID-19
prevention and control policies and to protect
the employees’ health, the Group suspended all
employees’ leisure activities during the severe
period of the epidemic. When the epidemic
eased, the Group organized employee activities
such as badminton competition to relieve
employees’ stress during the epidemic and to
enhance team tacit-knowledge and cohesion.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

The Group pays attention to its employees’
health and encourages everyone to maintain
work-life balance, and set up employee work
hours according to the requirements of the local
labor laws and protects the employee rights to
rest days and holidays; so that all employees are
entitled to rest days and statutory holidays such
as annual leave, maternity leave, funeral leave
and work injury leave in accordance with the
local labor laws.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

1.

Employment (continued)
The Impact of the COVID-19

The Group has neither reduced employees’
compensation and welfare nor laid off employees
due to the COVID-19 epidemic. In order to
protect the employees’ health and safety, the
Group has implemented various epidemic
prevention measures. Please refer to the
“Health and Safety” and “Product and Service
Responsibility” sections below for details.

Staff Health and Occupational Safety

The Group pays attention to its employees’
health and provides a safe work environment
so as to prevent occupational hazards and
various incidents from happening. We sign
target responsibility statement of “Setup Safe
Workplace” with each subsidiary, and formulate
safe management team with reference to
the company’s operation. Management and
employees at all levels must clearly understand
their own safety responsibilities and strictly
perform the requirements as stated on the target
responsibility statement.

Safe Business Premises and Working
Environment

The Group establishes a safety management
manual to strengthen its fire safety management
in its business sites, key departments and offices.
Smoking is prohibited for staff and customers;
and we target to keep our shopping centers,
malls, supermarkets and offices smoke-free.
We designated staff to regularly carry out fire
prevention patrol every day at all locations and
critical departments; and keep patrol records. We
take immediate remediation or precautions once
fire hazards are found. In compliance with the
local fire prevention standards and policies, we
have stringent management on fire equipment
and facilities; carry out repairs and maintenance,
and keep records.
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IV.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

2,

Staff Health and Occupational Safety
(continued)

Property Management

In order to regulate the property management
work, we have established property management
policies and procedures. The Human Resources
& Administration Center, and the Property
Management Center are responsible for
monitoring, inspection, providing guidance and
evaluation work. Employees have to report to
maintenance staff immediately when repairs
(such as electrical equipment, electric power
distribution equipment, facilities at shopping
malls, air-conditioners, drainage equipment, etc.)
are needed for shopping centers, supermarkets
and offices so as to ensure the customers’ and
employees’ safety at these locations. Staff of
special work types (such as electrician, welders)
must possess valid license before they are
allowed to work; for example, to get a fire
certificate before using fire; carpenter should
promptly clean up with the sawdust and shavings
after job completion; inflammables, explosive,
chemical or dangerous materials are prohibited
and no storage is allowed; paint workers should
not blend paints on-site or at the locations close
to fire or electric source; paints should be covered
with lids immediately after use.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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IV.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

2,

Staff Health and Occupational Safety
(continued)

Safety Training

Training topics are mainly related to workplace
safety and occupational health. The Group raises
its employees’ safety awareness by providing
appropriate occupational health and safety
training to introduce the corporate development
plan, enhance their awareness on safety and
continuously strengthen their consciousness,
improve their professional skills, especially for
those job positions under significant potential
safety hazards, and enable them to perform
their duties in a safe environment. Employees
have to report to the management immediately
when incident occurs or aware of any potential
hazards. Safety education and training work plays
an important role to ensure the workplace is safe.
New hires must receive safety training prior to
put into work. This is to make sure that staff have
the necessary safety knowledge in their position;
familiar and able to master the safety techniques
required. Key and special positions (such as
fire control center) have to take professional
training and pass the examination before they
are assigned to take up the role. Firefighters
have to be familiar with and master the use of
various types of fire prevention facilities to ensure
that they can operate with the equipment for
fighting fire. During the Reporting Period, we
organized various safety training activities such as
knowledge on fire control training, etc.
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RE HERERRSE

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES - EEREIER (&)
(continued)
2. Staff Health and Occupational Safety EIREEBELRSE (&)

(continued)
Impact of the COVID-19

To cope with COVID-19, the Group has adopted
a number of epidemic prevention measures
for the sake of employees’ health and safety.
After the shopping malls resumed business, we
distributed epidemic prevention and control
manual to our employees, strengthened the staff
education on personal hygiene, provided anti-
epidemic materials such as masks, alcohol hand
sanitizer, protective clothing, protective glasses to
employees, and stipulated that employees must
wear masks when working, pay attention to hand
hygiene; we also measure the body temperature
of employees every day, and use “health code”
to monitor employees’ health status, prohibit
employees from travelling to those areas with
severe epidemic. Since employees are facing
customers in the malls, we have adopted a
series of anti-epidemic measures to enhance the
hygiene management of the shopping malls to
protect the health and safety of customers and
employees. Please refer to the “Product and
Service Responsibility” section below for details.

During the Reporting Period, the number of lost
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days due to work injury are as follows: BHEAIERSMTX:
2022 2021
20225 E 2021 &
Lost Days Due to Work Injury 158 days 308 days
RAIGEBLIIEAY x A

AEBRNBE=F (BERE
HA)REEIRI T

There was no work-related fatality occurred
in each of the past three years (including the
Reporting Period) within the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

3.

Staff Development and Training

In order to align the staff career development
with its long-term corporate business plan,
the Group sets up staff training polices with
reference to the departmental human resources
needs. The human resources department
established a comprehensive staff training
plan with an aim to build an excellent, well-
trained and responsible corporate team. This can
enhance the staff’'s knowledge and management
capabilities and improve their work ability,
performance and efficiency, and raise their
enthusiasm in work to activate team spirit.

New hires have to participate in induction
training and pass the assessment. The
training topics include corporate culture, site
management, sales skills, membership policies,
service etiquette and skills, quality awareness,
fire safety (on-site public facilities). On top
of providing foundation training, we also
provide skills advancement, professional and
management training to ensure that staff possess
professional theory and knowledge, and new
knowledge for overcoming challenges in order to
lay a solid foundation for long-term development
of employees and the Group.
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RE HERERRSE

IV.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

3.

Staff Development and Training (continued)

During the Reporting Period, in addition
to the new hire induction training, we also
organized various training programmes related
to corporate management, customer service,
finance, procurement, human resources,
employees’ health and work safety (please
refer to “Health and Safety” section below for
details of employees’ health and work safety),
etc. The training topics include corporate
culture training, efficient meeting management
training, special legal training for engineering
construction projects, commodity display
training, one-day work flow training, member
knowledge training, bill process training, special
training for procurement management system,
team cohesion workshop, etc. In order to
achieve better results from organizing training
programmes, employees are asked to provide
feedback and satisfaction level upon completion
of training programmes and serve as reference
for next year’s training plan.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

3.

Staff Development and Training (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the percentage of
the Group’s employees trained ' is as follows:

Gender % 5

Male 55 1%

Female %1%

Employee Category B #% 45 5!
Senior management = & & 12 B
Middle management 1 4% & 12 [
Ordinary staff @8 T

During the Reporting Period, the average training
hours per the Group’s employee ? are as follows:

Gender % 5

Male 55 1%

Female %1%

Employee Category B 4% 45 5!
Senior management = 4% & 1 B
Middle management /1 4% & 12 [
Ordinary staff @8 T

- BERBIER (&)

3. BIREREIN(E)
RREAN AEBNZIIE
TESRITR:

2022
20225 F

12.21%
42.47%

23.81%
33.54%
31.90%

20213
202146 %3

11.73%
55.40%

25.64%
23.02%
42.92%

RBEHA - NEERENF
15 % FIF B T K

2022
(Hours)
2022 F
(/NEF)

1.53
4.39

5.29
5.12
3.10

20213
(Hours)
20214 &3
(/]NBF)

0.72
5.81

0.42
0.73
4.55
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES

(continued)
3. Staff Development and Training (continued)
Notes:

“The percentage of the Group’s employees
trained” refers to the number of Group’s
employees trained within the Reporting Period
divided by the sum of Group’s number of
employees at the end of the Reporting Period
and the number of departing employees within
the Reporting Period.

“The average training hours per the Group’s
employee” refers to the number of training
hours provided by the Group to its employees
within the Reporting Period divided by the
sum of Group’s number of employees at the
end of the Reporting Period and the number
of departing employees within the Reporting
Period.

Part of last year’s comparative figures are
restated to conform with the current year’s
presentation.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

4.

Labor Standards

The Group cherishes human rights and protects
labor rights and interests, and does not allow
to hire child labor and forced labor. The human
resources department of the Group conducts
background checks and reference checks in
its hiring process to prevent any child labor.
Besides, the Group has also implemented various
measures to prevent any forms of forced labor,
including prisoners, indentured servitude, bonded
labor. For example, labor contract is signed by the
employee on a fair and voluntary basis, ensure
employees do not need to bear any onboarding
costs, never deduct wages, benefits or property
of employees, detention of employee’s identity
card or other identification documents is strictly
prohibited, any form of physical abuse, assault,
body search or insult, or forcing an employee to
work by means of violence, threat or unlawful
restriction of personal freedom are all forbidden.
Employees’ consent for work overtime is required
to avoid involuntary overtime work, and the
employees are compensated as appropriate
in accordance with the applicable labor laws
and regulations. In case any possible violations
are found, the Group will immediately take
countermeasures to rectify and eliminate such
violations as soon as possible, so as to ensure
compliance operations. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not involve in any violation
of the laws and regulations related to the child
and forced labor.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
involve in any non-compliance incidents relating
to employment, health and safety, and labor
standards that have significant impact on the
Group.
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V.

OPERATING PRACTICES

1.

Supply Chain Management

The Group conveys its concern on environmental
issues to its suppliers and business partners, and
expects them to implement similar practices.
The Group also serves to maintain long-term,
stable and strategic cooperative relationships
with leading suppliers, and co-develops with its
suppliers on the basis of equality and win-win
situation.

We have established centralized procurement
management manual to strictly control and
monitor the procurement process relating to
materials, engineering work and services. We
have set up strict processes and requirements
in respect of the management of approved
suppliers, procurement methods, quality
improvement, procurement contract, etc.. in
order to ensure the procurement processes are
carried out following the principles of fairness,
justice, openness, effectiveness, integrity
and ethics, and to enhance efficiency and
ensure good product and service quality. The
centralized procurement team is responsible for
establishing procurement policy and carrying
out daily procurement work. The audit team
conducts qualification evaluation and reviews
the procurement process. The supervision team
monitors the compliance of procurement process,
handles reports and appeals relating to the
procurement process, corrects violated behaviors
and penalizes the employees for breaches.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

1.

Supply Chain Management (continued)

To accept new suppliers, we will pay visits to their
business sites, and evaluate their certifications,
internal management policies documents, work
manual, operational status, etc. to make sure
that they possess the capabilities in fulfilling the
obligations. We also establish strict evaluation
procedures for renewal of merchandise suppliers,
and regularly compile statistics and review
the performance of our suppliers, assess their
capability, business status and operational results;
in order to grasp the product sales situations and
make appropriate adjustment to our strategies.
The evaluation includes reviewing of their
market position, their overall capability, product
quality, supply performance, sales performance,
quality service, business results; and conduct a
comprehensive evaluation based on a combination
of scores and text comments. The evaluation result
is sent to management to ensure that the selected
suppliers are competitive and possess recognized
qualifications and good internal control system,
stable quality, on-time delivery, laws and regulations
compliance. The Group strictly implements the
relevant practices to engage all suppliers in
accordance with the internal regulations. We
have established policies and procedures in supply
chain management and provided various reporting
channels for employees, suppliers, customers and
other business partners to report any violations and
suspected abuse one's authority for own interest.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have
significant issues relating to violations in this respect.

During the Reporting Period, the number and
geographical distribution of the main suppliers
that have business with the Group are as follows:
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&

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2,

Product and Service Responsibility

The Group realizes that the department store
and shopping center business not only need to
guarantee high-quality goods, but also need to
provide customers with high-quality services and
establish good corporate image. Therefore, we
follow the operating strategies and goals of each
operating location, and observe the requirements
of laws and regulations, market conditions,
customers’ needs and expectations and other
information to establish our policy relating to
quality. The Group pays attention to customers’
needs, wins customers’ confidence with high-
quality and distinctive products; cares about
customers’ feelings, provides services that exceed
customers’ expectations, and creates surprises
for customers; protect its own image, promotes
business innovation, and insists on adopting
innovative methods to enhance customers’
service experience; focus on trends; while leading
the trend and advocating consumer spending on
the mainstream culture, we also pay attention
to the customers’ experience. Every department,
every employee of the Group, everything they
did, and every word they said, altogether built
the “Century Ginwa"” brand. Both the front-line
employees and back-office personnel uphold the
Group's core value of “To do the best, and never
change “, consistently implement each quality
policy, provide customers with high-quality
services and products, and instill the thoughts
of “our action is customers’ needs driven”
among employees, so as to achieve a first-class
enterprise brand image.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2,

Product and Service Responsibility
(continued)

Customer Service

In order to build up an image of excellent
service, we established employees’ handbook to
strictly require our staff to pay attention to their
appearance, phone manner, reception etiquette,
conduct and behavior, dressing, job descriptions
and requirements, and service greetings, etc.
We have established service quality monitoring
system to accurately evaluate the company’s
service quality, to promptly remediate problems
found, and to provide customers with satisfactory
services meeting their needs. When serving
customers, every employee must abide by the
Group’s professional ethics, serve customers with
sincerity, respect customers’ national customs and
religious beliefs, and should not judge people by
appearance or comment on customers.

During the Reporting Period, the number of
products and service related complaints received
are as follows:

Complaints received
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V.

&

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2,

Product and Service Responsibility
(continued)

Product Quality

The Group strictly implements the price policy,
hoping to achieve “Fair trade, genuine products
at fair price, and adequate measurement”. In
order to strengthen the quality management of
merchandise and maintain the reputation of the
malls, we have established the “Merchandise
Quality Control Regulations” according to the
national product safety standards. Before each
type of merchandise are placed on the counter,
the Operation Department have to check
and accept the brand products according to
the acceptance standards, and the Customer
Service Department monitors the merchandise
acceptance process including the appearance,
shelf life, labels, safety, instructions for use, etc.,
to ensure the products provided by the suppliers
comply with the national standards and our
requirements, and at the same time, to prevent
the inflow of fake or inferior merchandise and
to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
consumers.

Quality of Brand

In order to continuously strengthen the brand
products quality monitoring, to maintain our
reputation, to eliminate fake and shoddy goods,
and to protect the consumer rights and interests
by the Group; we follow the applicable local laws
and regulations in brands and goods selection;
and monitor and manage closely the brands and
suppliers that we work with. We also establish
supplier renewal system to ensure that the
suppliers’” merchandises are continuously keeping
at high quality.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2,

Product and Service Responsibility
(continued)

Customers’ Complaints

Besides, continuous improvement is one
of the key principles of the Group’s quality
management. We actively seek various
opportunities to improve the quality of products
and services, correct and reduce the adverse
impact on the Group, to meet customer
requirements. We, from time to time, conduct
customer satisfactory survey to obtain feedbacks
on our malls’ reputation, merchandise and service
quality, shopping environment, service facilities,
goods pricing, etc. in the form of phone calls
and on-site visit. We regularly review the number
of customers’ complaints received, analyze
and evaluate our customers’ comments and
suggestions; and to formulate improvement plan
to enhance our service quality. We remind our
employees of the service image requirements and
customers’ feedback during morning assembly.
We also use the customers’ complaints as case
sharing and employee training materials to
strengthen the responsiveness of employees to
customers’ complaints and to give the customer
better impression.

Recall of Merchandises

During the Reporting Period, the Group has no
product sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.

B -#HE8K

BERRE

hHEEEM (&)

2,

ERMEREEE (2)

BEERFK

AN BENERAEREE
EEMNEERAZ— BME
BEREEBENEERERS
BRmge  AERRDEAR
SENIAZE  UnEBEE
WER - KM ITEREFHE
E - HokREEE BYR
RoBRERE ERERE
FBRBWNE ﬁ@m&ﬁ%ﬁm
WARNETEEREERS
ﬁﬁ,mﬂbﬁ@%&ﬁﬂ
R HEENERMERET
DT HIEBCER R - U E
RPORBER  HANEGX
FIENRENIEESE T EM
ARG R 8 Z ok & A % ¥ B
MHER MRS
BEERFHEE (ERRMNH=Z
BB THEHIME - R8T
EBIETRFENEREL
7 ARESEE LR E
Qﬁf\o

[ Y /&

RIEHRN - AEBLEESE
YELLEDD‘:F‘ A% % Eﬁiﬁ;
S FE A i 28 [0 U B EE G o

EREEEREEARAT

"9



120

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

V.

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2,

Product and Service Responsibility
(continued)

Intellectual Property Rights and Portrait
Rights

The daily operations of the Group in shopping
malls often involve the use of the others’
intellectual property rights and portrait rights.
In order to prevent infringement behaviors, we
have established “Management Regulations
Involving the Use of Others’ Intellectual Property
Rights and Portrait Rights in Propaganda”,
strictly regulate the pictures, celebrities portraits,
copyrighted emoticons, text materials, fonts,
video and audiovisual materials used by us and
brand owners in promotion inside and outside
the shopping malls, and through different media.
Any promotion without the authorization from
the owners are strictly prohibited. We also
regularly organize training relating to the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Advertising”,
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Copyright” and the applicable laws to strengthen
the professional skills and litigation awareness of
the employees.

Customers’ Data Privacy

In order to strengthen our connection with
customers, we have set up membership system
since 2000, member services and concessions
are given by member class; a customer service
consultant is assigned to each of our senior
members and focus on meeting the customer’s
personal preferences and needs; and we become
the pilot enterprise in the Northwest Region.
Confidentiality is one of the Group’s core values.
We set up management policies relating to
information security, information system network,
set up access right with information system
to handle and store customers’ information
diligently and confidentially, and to protect
customers’ privacy. All employees are strictly
prohibited to disclose any such information to
third parties without proper authority unless
there is a legal or professional right or duty to do
50.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2,

Product and Service Responsibility
(continued)

Impact of the COVID-19

To cope with the COVID-19 epidemic, the
Group has implemented a number of preventive
measures to protect the health and personal
safety of our customers and employees, and the
details are as follow:

o Launched the "Emergency Plan for
Epidemic Prevention and Control” and
set up epidemic prevention and control
team to cope with the situation of possible
spread of epidemic in the shopping malls;

o Posted a reminder “Safety first at time of
epidemic” in the malls;

o Put up posters to remind customers to
keep a safe distance of 1.5 meters from
the staff in the malls;

o Limit the flow of people in the mall;

o Arranged staff at each entrance and exit
to scan customers “One code pass”.
Customers can access the malls only after
measuring body temperature and wearing
face masks;

o Used spray disinfection to sterilize the
public areas, public facilities, waste mask
disposal point, etc. and increase the
frequency of cleaning and sterilization
during business hours;
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V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2, Product and Service Responsibility
(continued)

Impact of the COVID-19 (continued)

Set up isolation rooms;

Provided customers with anti-epidemic
materials such as hand wash liquid soap
and alcohol hand sanitizer;

Set up waste anti-epidemic materials (such
as masks) disposal point on each floor of
the malls;

The brand must sign “Epidemic prevention
and control commitment letter” to
ensure preventive and control work has
been done, and can meet the relevant
government requirements;

Strictly followed sterilization requirements
before delivery of merchandise, and
carried out the four steps in packaging
and sterilization, and reduced the
frequency of goods delivery to ensure the
safety of employees and customers.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period,

the Group's

products and services did not involve in
significant issues relating to violations nor did
the Group receive any complaints concerning
breaches of customer privacy, loss of customer

data,
rights.

intellectual property rights and portrait

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

3.

Anti-corruption

Maintaining an ethical working environment
is one of the Group's core values. We have
adopted a zero-tolerance approach for all kinds
of corruption, bribery and extortion situation.
To comply with the “Criminal Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance” enforced by the Hong Kong
Independent Commission Against Corruption
and other applicable laws and regulations, we
set up internal management system to regulate
employees’ conduct. Offenders who request
and accept bribes, obtain other illegal interests
are heavily penalized, including termination
of employment contracts, sent to the judicial
authority (if violating local laws and regulations),
and so on. We conduct anti-corruption training
and case study each year and demand all
personnel to build a habit of strict compliance
with policies and procedures, and to prevent
all bribery. During the Reporting Period, the
Group organized anti-corruption seminars and
corruption case training to the staff.

We bring the disciplinary monitoring work in the
business process, ensure that there are channels
(including for reporting boxes, email and hotline)
for reporting suspected cases of obtaining
personal interests in carrying out one’s job duties,
briberies, extortion, fraud, money laundering in
breach of policies, regulations, and laws in strict
confidence to the Internal Control Department.
We also set up suggestion box and reward
employees who make good recommendations.
We sign the anti-corruption agreements with
suppliers. During the procurement and bidding
processes, the Internal Control Department
participates in the procurement and bidding work
to monitor the compliance of each department
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V.

VI.

BE-HERERKSE

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
3. Anti-corruption (continued)

(such as bribery, receiving gifts and mis-behavior
in the bidding process, etc.); the Internal Control
Department also participates in the engineering
work inspection process, and is responsible for
monitoring whether the engineering companies
are authorized, their employees’ qualification,
whether the equipment is consistent with the
contract terms, and whether the company has
executed the inspection according to the process,
and so on. During the Reporting Period, the
Group or its employees did not involve in any
litigation cases of corruption.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to building the corporate
culture of "open and creative, win-win, grace for
the times and sincerely contributing to the society”,
advocate a green, energy-saving and safe lifestyle,
and devoted to charitable activities to show our
determination in taking up the social responsibility, to
care for the people in need and to push on building a
harmonious enterprise. During the Reporting Period, the
Group delegated employees to support the epidemic
prevention work for a total of 600 hours, with an aim of
putting in some effort in fighting against the epidemic.

The Group advocates the concept of sustainable
development and jointly promotes regional economic
development. The Group is a responsible taxpayer and
offers job opportunities to local people. We paid “five
insurances and housing provident fund” for staff in
Mainland China and the mandatory provident fund
contributions for staff in Hong Kong. We run our
business following good practices; we actively promote
green energy-saving and environmental friendly
concepts; we set up a role model for the industry; and
to some certain extent, we have contributed to social
stability and building a harmonious community.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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RE HERERRSE

VIl. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA +  BEHEBEXRERE

SUMMARY
Unit 2022 2021
B 2022 E 20214 %
Greenhouse gas (“GHG") Emissions 3:
BmER R
Scope 1':
gE—"
Total Tonnes 94.08 78.96
wE Mg
Intensity * Tonnes 0.38 0.32
=nE g
Scope 2 %
gE—
Total Tonnes 10,768.47 23,157.44
weE g
Intensity * Tonnes 43.79 94.22
=nE Mg
Air Emissions 3:
EER AP E:
Nitrogen Oxides Kilograms 134.29 131.50
AFLD NI
Sulfur Oxides Kilograms 0.13 0.19
mEY NN
Particulate Matters Kilograms 6.54 6.40
ERY NI
Non-hazardous Wastes °:
5 E E .y
Total Tonnes 92.87 683.68
wE i
Intensity * Tonnes 0.38 2.78
= Ee U7
Packaging Materials Used for Merchandise:
EmmArREEME:
Total Tonnes 57.41 77.49
wE Mg
Intensity * Tonnes 0.23 0.32
=nE g

tesrmxenERan VK
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R HEREBRKE

VIl.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA +

SUMMARY (continued)

Energy and Water Consumption:

RRERHEEER:
Electricity:

e B2
Intensity *

Diesel:
5o
Total

we
Intensity *

Gasoline:
it
Total
Intensity *
mE

Natural Gas:
KRR :
Total

e
Intensity *
mE

Water:
KER:
Total

=
e B2
Intensity *

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022

Unit
B

MWh
JK B s
MWh

JKFL B

Liters
DT
Liters

AF

Liters
7
Liters

AFt

Cubic meters
LK
Cubic meters
7oK

Cubic meters
Cubic meters

77K

-

REHEBERAFE ()
2022 2021
20225 E 20214 €
17,649.50 25,956.71
71.77 105.61
3,812.92 7,769.00
15.50 31.61
4,361.64 4,462 .53
17.74 18.16
39,150.00 24,754.00
159.19 100.72
136,925.68 189,604.43
556.76 771.48



VIl.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA
SUMMARY (continued)

Notes: BioF -

t BREBERRABE(F)

Scope 1 refers to the Group’s business direct GHG
emission, including combustion of diesel, gasoline and
natural gas.

Scope 2 refers to the Group's business indirect GHG
emissions, including consumption of purchased
electricity.

The carbon emissions are calculated with reference
to the emission factors published by the electricity
suppliers, the “2019 China Regional Grid Baseline
Emission Factors” issued by the Climate Change
Department of the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC and the “Reporting Guidance
on Environmental Key Performance Indicators” issued
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The above environmental performance data intensity
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters (m?) of the
floor area of the shopping malls and offices.

During the Reporting Period, the non-hazardous solid
waste was the construction waste generated from
renovation work and the domestic waste produced
by the employees of all shopping malls and offices.
Since the construction waste was handled by the
construction contractor which did not provide relevant
production data. Therefore, we did not disclose the
relevant data in this Report. And, domestic waste data
is @ multiple of average daily weight of waste produced
by each person and the number of employees at
month end. Domestic waste is disposed of by the local
sanitation department or third party.

BE—2IEAFEEFEABEEZE
FARERE T EE £ R ERBEHE K
BB Ul RAR AR

BE — ZIEA KB AEEFE
fE ] 2R 49 8 ) BT 51 2049 [ R #% B
B ERBEIEIL -

EE Z 5T E 2R E (R fE R &
1B BER Z 8L AR B A REIR B A
JEH TIRE(L G| A2 (2019
50 [ 13 AT H AR A 7))
EEBEXRZHIBER A A (FRE
BIsR B IEIZIE 15 5]) o

K EBRERBEENEEEED
15 K W B 25 E 75 #90.001
FRRKMETAE

RIBEHA  EEEBEYES
RETERMELNEY KEE
55 B = 8 TR EE 4 B A
JE AR o R TR Y By T2 &
BEEEEE TERABEAS
TR ELEHE A H A
RERUL IR &P REEER I -
A5 B R B AR R IR FN B
FHELNEYEBFIAEAA
EHETABGE - L)F TR
B MRIGAPINE =TT
=

HEEEHEERERARA
—EC_FEFR

21
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

VIIl. “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND N EBBERZFERAITN
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE” BY (Bis HeREAREE
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG 2|)
LIMITED

General Disclosure/

KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—REE
BARERER HwEEL BE¥™
A. Environmental
ARIE
Aspect A1 Emissions
fEmEA1 BEr
General Disclosure Information on: 74-77

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

— PRI EE EHBERKAEREBHER KRS BERESE

BEEMHEEFR:

(a) LR &

(b) BFHETABERTENEAEZERBROINER -

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 125

BB 4B R R AT e TE AR AR R B D BUE

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse 81, 88, 125
gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

RS 48 IR IR A2 B (HBE1) REREZE (BE2) A= REBHEMRE (AN
B (mER)EE (MABESEM BERMEHE)

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where N/A '
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

RS 4B IR IR A3 FRIEXBEEEEYAE (ABEE) & (WER)EE (1A @A
BEEEM SEXRMEAE) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 125
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FAREMIERAL FELEEERVEESE (AMEE) & (ER) ZE (1A
BEEEN BEARMEITE) -

1 28 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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RE HERERRSE

VIIl. "ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE” BY

N BERBEXZHMAERAAN
(BIR HERERBEE

THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG S|y (&)

LIMITED (continued)

General

Disclosure/KPls Reporting Guideline Page

—BRWE

BREVER # & 15 5l B

A. Environmental (continued)
AIRIE (&)

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to 74-77
achieve them.

BB MIEIRALS H PRI LM BEE B iR MR IERE L B R R P8R

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes 74-77
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

RSB IR IRAL.6 MR ENEEEEYN A KT L8R EE B
BERREDELBRAERIMA PSR-

Aspect A2 Use of Resources

[EmA2 BERER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, 78-94
water and other raw materials.

— IR BRERER (BIER K REARME) B9 BR -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.qg. 81, 88, 126
electricity, gas or oil) in total (MWh) and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

RS AE IR A2.1 REASSMEER SEELER(WE Rooh) BFEE
(AKFERHE) REE (WABEESEN  BHEREAHE)

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of 91, 126
production volume, per facility).

RS 4B IR A2.2 BARKERTZE (WANGESEMN BERBTE) -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps 79-88
taken to achieve them.

BB U IRA2.3 R PR ET SZEVBEIRBE A e B 1R R RIE F5E L B R P EREX
Eokagd

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water 89-90

RS IEIZA2 .4

that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

i SKEGE B KR R B E AR - DA R AT R] S2 ) K s
AR REIELEZMERRNTRE-

HESHEHEERERLA
CROCFER
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REBE - HERER

VIII.

"ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE” BY
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

&

51y (&)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs
—RRE
BRENIEE

KPI' A2.5

B S 45 B 1= A2.5

Aspect A3
fEEA3
General Disclosure

— R E

KPI' A3.1

S 45 B 1R A3 1

Aspect A4
[EEA4
General Disclosure

— R

KPI A4.1

B B AR IR R AL

Reporting Guideline
# & 15 5l

A. Environmental (continued)
ARE (&)
Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
RIKMFTABRRMENES (AMEETE) &k (13
BUEE-

A BEE

The Environment and Natural Resources
RERKXAER

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

BEBETAHRBEMRAERERBEATZENREK

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

B EREHHRBERARAARERNERTE LD RKIER
BERTENTH-

Climate Change

RIZE1

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

BRl R EH AR AT EH BT AELR
BEEHER-

BN EARIKME

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
MR HEITAELR
N EE1TE) -

ENBEARIKERER

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2022
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VIII.

"ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE” BY
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

51y (&)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs

—REE
BRERER

Aspect B1

JETB1
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPIB1.1

R SR 45 A5 1B .1

KPI B1.2
BABE4E IE1RB1.2
Aspect B2

[ B2

General Disclosure

Reporting Guideline

HEEL
B. Social
B.ALE
Employment and Labor Practices
&=

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BN RE BEREA TERE RH FTEKE -

Z Tt RIRAR A A 17 58 M AR A

(a) BB+ &2

b) BEFTHETABEAZENHBERELRONER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example,
full-or part-time), age group and geographical region.
RIER - EEEAR (N2 BEFRE)  FiEn Kbz S5 8
EBEHE-

Employee turnover rate by gender,
geographical region.
ZIER - FE AR Rt R B

age group and
BE B MK K-

Health and Safety

REHEZZ

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuerrelating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.

BRRHEZ2THEREMREEEREBEMEEN:

(a) LR+ &2

(b) BPHETABERTENEAEZRBROINER -

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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A&
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VIIl. "ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE” BY

N BREBEXZHERAAHN
(BRE -HERELHREE

132

THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG S|y (&)
LIMITED (continued)
General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—BWE
BREVER # & 15 5l B
B. Social (continued)
B.A® (4&)
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each 108
of the past three years including the reporting year.
B8 4B R IR B2.1 BEZF (BRERFE)BFATITHOMHAZ X
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 108
A 52 45 I 1EB2.2 EIBERXTERE-
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 105-108
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
B 5245 IE1RB2.3 R PTER N B 2 R 216 5 A RABRARIT R EE R A
A
Aspect B3 Development and Training
[EEB3 BRRIE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for 109-112

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

— AR FR BRARTHE B BT TVERE &0 AN 3B X B RS B BR © #3531
EE) e
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 111

8§/ 45 A FE 12 B 3.1

KPI B3.2

B 5 45 A FE13RB3.2

employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
mrURREERR (NEREEE FREEE)IHINX
JMEEA DL -

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
mMRIREBRRE D FREBTKEINTFHRE-

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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VIIl. "ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE” BY
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRR HEREBRE

51y (&)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs

—REE
BRERER

Aspect B4

[E B4
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B4.1

B B4R IR 1RBA.
KPI B4.2

BA 52 A8 5 1EB4.2
Aspect B5

JE HB5
General Disclosure

— R

KPI B5.1
B8 2 45 RUHE 1R B5.1

KPI B5.2

B SR 45 MR 1RB5.2

Reporting Guideline
# & 15 5l

B. Social (continued)
B.A® (4&)
Labor Standards
% T AR
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child and forced Labor.
BRA IEE T oab 25 TH :
(a) Bk &%
(b) BPHETABERTENEAEZRBROINER -

Description of measures to review employment practices to
avoid child and forced Labor.
st BB O M ERARRE T RRGI%5T -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

e 3 IR 2 R B N EER B B IS AT ERERH) P8R -

Supply Chain Management

HEgEER

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.

EEHEENRRE N SRERBUER -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

miEmE DM HEHEE

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

Hl A B A ER MBS mERITEBEN N HERR
B ANMBEERITMERT A

N BERBEXZHMAERAAN
(BIR HERERBEE

Page

BH

113

113

113

114-115

115

114-115
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VIII.

"ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE” BY
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

&

51y (&)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs

—REE
BRENER

KPI B5.3

B 2 45 A 5132 B5.3

KPI B5.4

B #1245 A FE 15B5.4

Aspect B6
B B6

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B6.1

8§ 45 A FE 12 B6. 1

KPI B6.2

B8 4 45 A5 13B6.2

Reporting Guideline
# & 15 5l

B. Social (continued)
B.A® (4&)
Description of practices used to identify environmental and
social risks.
A EEBNHERESERONRE R RARNED
ARHEBERATRERT A

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

Fil 2t FE PR L B PR AR {3 25 R IR AR EE o SR IR AG V1B 1] - LA %
HERITRERTT A

Product Responsibility

EmEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

BHMRHERNRBNEREZY BES SELAMEF

B A KR A

(@) BB+ &

(b) BTH BT ABERZENEAEZZLBRINER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to

recalls for safety and health reasons.

EEXCDEXEMAET AL R FIEHM ALK T

otk e

Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.

BREMNEMLRBHIRFEB AREE T

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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VIII.

"ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE” BY
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

51y (&)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs

—REE
BRERER

KPI B6.3
FA i 48 N5 15B6.3
KPI B6.4
RS2 45 M F512B6.4
KPI B6.5

[ $f 45 W FE 12 B6.5

Aspect B7
B mEB7

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B7.1

B 5 45 S 1RBT 1

KPI B7.2

BB 4E MIR1RBT.2

Reporting Guideline
# & 15 5l

B. Social (continued)
BAE (&)
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
il B A S RIE R E R RV IE DI -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
i EER T EENERBKERF -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies and how they are implemented and monitored.
HAEBEEARRERLERE URBERTRERS
e

Anti-corruption

RES

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuerrelating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

B ILBE R BEERAREN:

(a) L+ &

(b) BFHBEITABERTENEEEZERBROINER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices

brought against the issuer or its employees during the

reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

Eéi&iﬁﬁW%ﬁéﬁ/\ﬁﬁl\ﬁéﬁﬁjﬁa% EH BT AR

(ER:OE QDS E TN

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

At B E b R B WMAZ T U RAEBERITRER A

HESHEHEERERLA
CROCFER
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

51y (&)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs

—REE
BRENER

KPI B7.3
S A5 RUIE1RBT 3

Aspect B8
[ 1 B8

General Disclosure

— R E

KPI B8.1

B 5 45 A FE 13 B8.1

KPI B8.2

38 2 45 A5 15B8.2

Note:

1 The Group’s main business is operating department 1
stores, shopping centers and supermarkets. We did not
generate any hazardous wastes.

Reporting Guideline
# & 15 5l

B. Social (continued)
B.A® (4&)
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.
i mMEEREIRHEORETE-

Community Investment

HERE

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.

B R2ERBEREEMELRTENBRELERSE
HEERERNEHBE-

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, Labor needs, health, culture, sport).
FIEREE (HE RESE -BIHFR f@2FE k-

BE)-

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus
area.

EEIBEMBIAER (WEELER) -

GEE

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 149 to
288, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

B %A RS

Bt EEEXREZERERAA
& IR R B B A% BT R
(REREZZMALZBERAA)

=R

BB BN FE149F288H 4L &
EREERARAR ([ERF]) REWEB
AEl (B [EEE]) NG BEmK &
FEER-_ZE-_—_F+=-H=+—HH4
AU BRAR BEZBLFENLEEE
mEk e EmhEMEEKRGR HREE
REHRMGEEHEERER UREKEH
BRENZT(BREREESHERBERE) -

BMRE REVMBRREBEET BT
MAg ([BEFSTMAE]) BHNEEH
kAR (BB BREELN ] EEM
Nk EEER-_ZT_—_F+_H
=+—HHSEEBRLE EEEHZE
ZHRILEFEMNGEUBRAREEGRE M
E WO EREAEQAKHZERBEER
KEBRE -

RREXE
HACRBRELSAMASRANE LS
AR ([HBBFTEL ) EITERTIE-
BPIRBEZEEINEEE - TRHARAE
BE(RBMEEERFEMBEHRRNE
E] —H-RBEBGFHAEN [EXE
stemgsrsTRAl] ([PRID) EZERBBARE
HEHEFIYEEMBERROFZBENER
BREX BB E&E BRFE
BERZEFERRTAETHMERET
HFIRE RAERNEZEEBERD &
EORBREGEREHTER-

HESHEEXERERDA
SRR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B8RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

BREZEE
FAREZFEERBERAMNERHE £
HPIEARESRETBERROEZTRE
ENFH - EFRERMYEE MR
FRETEBERLNERE AREE
BAIAL T B IMEEER

Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

Fh BERERFELEZED

Refer to Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

A2 RS B R E M a2(b)
The Key Audit Matter
HREREE

As at 31 December 2022 the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB4,242,470,000 and incurred net
loss of RMB378,941,000 and had net cash used in
operating activities of RMB94,979,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2022. Note 2(b) to the
consolidated financial statements explains how the
directors of the Company have formed a judgement
that the going concern basis is appropriate in preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
R_ZE__F+_RA=+—H EBEEZRHE
EFEE B ARYA242,470,00000 U EREBE=ZT
—FTZA=T - RBLEEEEAEBEEFEAR
#378,941,000t KR L EHMARSFEARK
94,979,0007T * AR & M SRR M sk2(b)i i B ARIE
EMAEHBERLEERET ESEREUBRER
HIRF A 2 FIf
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERTFNAEEERSEE

Our audit procedures in respect of the directors’
assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern included the following:

B EEESFGE

BERERERLERNNE

BRREFERFENTRIA:

assessing and challenging the key
assumptions used by management in the
cash flow forecast (including annual sales
growth rate, gross margin and necessary
capital expenditure for retail business) and
evaluating whether there were any indicators
of management bias by comparing the
key assumptions to forecast reviewed by
management, historical performance and
externally available information;

AEREREEENReRETEA (REF
EHEERX ENXNTEXRBHFTER
FX)FTERAZ T Z2RE WEBLEERFER
REEERERRM 2 EA - BERRRINBA]
SEHFEEEREMEREREZIER:

comparing the cash flow forecast prepared
in the prior year with the current year’s
performance of the Group to assess how
accurate the prior year's cash flow forecast
was and making enquiries of management
as to the reasons for any significant
variations identified;

B EFERECRERETEAE SEER
FEZRBETLER LB EFEZRE
MEBEAZ E®EE WAEEESHDH
PIERERESH 2 RE :
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B %A RS

ARERER (F)

Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern (continued)

Mt BEEFEKLEZRN (B)

Refer to Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements.(continued)

mRHEE AN T20b) - (B)
The Key Audit Matter (continued)
BEELEE (&)

The directors of the Company made their assessment
of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
by preparing a cash flow forecast in which certain
key assumptions were applied. These key assumptions
included forecasts of annual sales growth rate, gross
margin and necessary capital expenditure for retail
business and the availability of banking and other
financing facilities as well as financial support from
Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Financial Holdings (Group) Co.,
Ltd. (“Qujiang Financial Holdings”), a state-owned
enterprise, which is the controlling shareholder of
Quijiang Cultural Financial International Investment
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Based on the assessment, the directors concluded that
there are no material uncertainties related to events or
conditions which, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

ERREEFRARUEBeRERAINERAETEIER
FoH BEEERBKEZRNELTEH -ZEEIER
REOBUTEXBFHERERE ENXRLEER
xR ARATBARITREMBERE  ARK
BRIt erER (EB)ARAR ([#IH
ZRD 2B XE ZBECAMIX M BBIRKRE
BERAR(ERRIEERR) 2 HERR - RIBFT L
EEZRR W TMEFEEFISERAIEEY EXEFE
RERNEKEARBENEHHBERABEHOEKNTHE

TN

We identified going concern as a key audit matter
because a significant degree of management
judgement is involved in making this assessment and in
forecasting the future cash flows of the Group which
are inherently uncertain.
HREREEEHEFERERN EEEANETETE
ZAKRBREREBRAELHEARNHE HHMAEHEL
ERREIBEERER-

How the matter was addressed in our audit
(continued)

RMNERTOMNEEEHESER (F)

e assessing the availability of banking
and other financing facilities during the
forecast period by inspecting relevant
underlying documentation in relation to
banking and other financing facilities and
evaluating whether the financing facilities
were sufficient to meet the Group’s needs
in the context of the cash flow forecast,
taking into the account any breach of
loan covenants which may trigger early
repayment of loans;
ERAEMERFIGEBERIEEERNE
RREONER  BRREEARTREMR
BOMEBERITERERSERARE &
SEFFZHERERA A EEHAEMR
TREMEER R AL

o inspecting the letter of financial support

from Qujiang Financial Holdings and
assessing the intention of Qujiang Financial
Holdings to provide such financial support,
the legality and enforceability of the terms
of the letter and the ability of Qujiang
Financial Holdings to provide such financial
support;
R #T & R AR A0 B S S RF e - BT Ak T
CREREHMBSIFOER - R ERE
BIEME R ATMATIE - ARG EH IR M B X
REVBES

HESHEEXERERDA
SRR
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M % B A E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

ARERER (F)

Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern (continued)

Mt BEEFEKEZ®N (B)

Refer to Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements.(continued)

ARG EIEBREMNE20b) - (&)
The Key Audit Matter (continued)
BEEKSEE (&)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
(continued)

RPN ERTOMNEEEESER (F)

obtaining from management sensitivity
analyses of the key assumptions (including
annual sales growth rate, gross margin
and necessary capital expenditure for retail
business) adopted in the cash flow forecast
prepared by management and assessing
the impact on the conclusions of the going
concern assessment; and
EREREHEREGRE 2R RETER
R TERR (BRFEHEEREK
EMNRRTEEBMT 2 ERRX) 2 B
Eoir WA RHERET ERmcTE:
K

assessing the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements with
reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
2ERTETERN AT  HhEE MR
RZIEBERE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B %A RS

ARERER (F)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

BEREBFEERENE

Refer to Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in

Notes 2(e) and (i).

LR E B MEM T 1415 R K iE2(e) % ()8 &

The Key Audit Matter
HREREE

As at 31 December 2022, goodwill and intangible
assets, which arose from business acquisitions of
department store and supermarket operations in
prior years, amounted to RMB279.6 million and
accounted for approximately 3.7% of the Group’s total
assets at that date. Impairment losses on goodwill
and intangible assets of RMB30.2 million were
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB72.0million).
R-B__F+_R=+—H BERELEE (A
TFERETAHE Fﬁ%&ﬁ_ﬁ&m%%ﬁZ%?z%ﬂ%ﬁ’ﬁF
HIEARB279.6BET (hH BEEENEEEN
37% REBE_Z-__F+_A=+—HILFEZLKR
ERGERACHANENRELEEZREBEBRARYE
302A8 T (ZFE-—F: ARK72088T) °

The financial performance of the Group’s department
store and supermarket operations, as a conseguence
of a slow-down in economic growth in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), as well as intense
competition from surrounding shopping malls and
online retail sales, has underperformed management’s
expectations when these businesses were acquired,
which has increased the risk that goodwill and
intangible assets related to these business acquisitions
may be impaired.

BHRPEARKL %HI(FEPI ) REIR R AR R RA A
ZREVTLEFLTENRFNE . BEXREBEER
%&t%&m%%i‘“%ﬂﬂ“i‘%fﬁﬁﬁé EREBEZEE

BRHOEM - ENTAEBERBZEXRBNERERER
BEMERMERER -

AT

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERPNAEESRSE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets included the
following:

R ER A ER E OB F 815N
THIE:

assessing the external valuer’s qualifications,
expertise and experience and considering
the external valuer’s objectivity and
independence.
FHEINERIE BRI B S EEMBRELR
W EEINPEEMEZE N KB

assessing and challenging the Group's
identification of cash-generating units
("CGUs") and the allocation of goodwill,
intangible assets and other assets to those
CGUs;

AEkER EXREHREeELSM (R
CEABNNBANEOZERCELS
ohkmeE BEVEENRAMEE:

assessing the reliability of management's
cash flow forecasting process by comparing
the previous year's forecasts with the
current period’s results, discussing
significant variances with management and
considering the effect of such variances on
the current period’s forecasts and if there
was any indication of management bias;
FiRK - FENTRREEHEBLE 5
HEEEReRBABEMNA ST BHE EE
BitmEANRE T EZRFEELEHEA
E!’J ENREFEEMEEERENOTR

EREEBREEARAT
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B % B8RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

ARERER (F)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

BERELEERENME (&)

Refer to Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in

Notes 2(e) and (i). (continued)

A2 RS R M 14815 KM at2(e) R () & at B - (&)

The Key Audit Matter (continued)
BEEZEE (&)

Management performs impairment assessments of
the relevant CGUs to which goodwill and intangible
assets have been allocated at the end of each reporting
period. Management compares the carrying amount
of each CGU with its recoverable amount, which is
determined by assessing the value-in-use based on
discounted cash flow forecasts.
ERERBENGERARESIEREBLENVEENE
BReELBEMETREN G - ERERSHSEL
BUMEREERLEBFERENBERRERBG
HHEREEETHIRE S FBETHER

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, in particular in forecasting revenue growth
and operating profit and in determining appropriate
discount rates.
MAEABRReREALRERBELHERAE  LH
TR M R 1T R M AR R N A R E @ B B RA IR R
A o

We identified the assessment of impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets as a key audit matter
because the carrying value of goodwill and intangible
assets are material to the consolidated financial
statements, and also because management's forecasts
of the future cash flows involve certain critical
judgements in respect of the assumptions made,
which are inherently uncertain and could be subject to
management bias.

BPRARBELBTLEERENTAE —HBEREZ
EE RACHELRETEENRIEYNGESMFEHRE
BEX HERBEHARKIRSRIEANL KB B@TELR
REETRARAE MEZEHERE R THEER 7]

EXINEEERANEE-
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
(continued)

BMWEZTNAEEEEEE (£)

o evaluating the key assumptions used in the
estimated future cash flow, including forecasts
of future revenue growth rates and gross
margins, by comparing with forecast approved
by management, historical performance and
externally available information;
FHREEIRER A 2 TER - BERE RINE
S ERMELLE SHE TR RIR S IRERN
RAZIERRKR BRARKGERERE
M=z F8R

o involving our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating the valuation
methodology and assessing the discount rate
applied by comparison with the discount rates
for similar companies in the same industry;

2 B T AP B A BB A 1B 2B 5K 15 B K APS AT 4 1
BR% RABEBLELRRETERLUQRAAL
BR - FHEFRANREIR R

° obtaining management’s sensitivity analysis
and challenging the key assumptions to which
the outcome of the impairment assessments
was most sensitive, including forecast revenue
and forecast profit margins, and considering if
there was any indication of management bias
in the selection of these assumptions; and
EMERENBRENN  BrROBETLHE
REGROARRR (BEBEAKE REA
MER) ZEREAEMNTRETREERE
EEEZEREAFFEEEERRE &

o considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the
impairment assessments and assessing the
adequacy of the disclosures against prevailing
accounting standards.
ZRMBENERGEE M BREEL 2 H
B WA RRITEEAEFL Z KBRS
R4
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B %A RS

ARERER (F)

Valuation of land and buildings held for own use and investment properties

RFEBRAZIHREFURKRENEMLE

Refer to Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in

Notes 2(g) and (h).

ARSI B IMEM 12 R 13 K& M iE2(g) R (WE & 5T B °

The Key Audit Matter
HREREE

The Group is engaged in the operation of department
stores, a shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC.
EEETIENFETELEEERS BT O RE
B e

The Group’s land and buildings held for own use and
investment properties are revalued at the end of each
reporting period and are stated at their fair values.
EXRERBEEAZIHREFURREDERSRE
HREM BREALEBEAR.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERPNAEESRSE

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation
of leasehold land and buildings held for own
use and investment properties included the
following:

B EREE Az T REFURKREMEM
BENEZREFEENATSE:

o assessing the external property valuer'’s
qualifications, expertise and experience and
considering the external property valuer’s
objectivity and independence;
FHEINEREEEMNER BEREELR
WEREZE M RIEM

o involving our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in assessing the valuations
prepared by the external property valuer
by evaluating the appropriateness of the
valuation methodology and performing
alternate calculation; and
BEAGGEEEF BB GGEETENE
B LT RE R E W B R APIRE (A B N B
MEMREMRENGEE: &

HESHEEXERERDA
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B % B8RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

ARERER (F)

Valuation of land and buildings held for own use and investment properties (continued)

FEEBRAZIHREFURREYXMAE (F)

Refer to Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes

2(g) and (h). (continued)

ARSI E AN 12 R 13U KK Z2(9) R (NWE EFTEE - (&)

The Key Audit Matter (continued)
BEEZEE (&)

The fair values of land and buildings held for own use
and investment properties were assessed by the board
of directors based on independent valuations prepared
by an external property valuer using certain estimates,
which included comparable market prices.

RIEERZ LM REFURREMENRIREBEHRE
EEHERNIINBYEGLEMERS THT (BENEL
RIS ER) mEE B EEM AT

We identified the valuation of land and buildings held
for own use and investment properties as a key audit
matter because of the significance of their value to the
Group's total assets and also because determining their
fair values involve a significant degree of judgement.
BPRRFEERZ T HREFURKREMENMEE
RIBEBREZEE RACHEEEY B£EREE
BEX BETHEAARESREAXNIZER HIE-

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
(continued)

BMWEZTNAEEEEEE (£)

o considering the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of the valuation of land and buildings held
for own use and investment properties.
ZREAMBHRRTEBIFEER 2 L
RBFUARREYEEENIKEE -

BRER S B 7 3R R I A BT ] 5 A

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND S &SR

AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The EFE¥HHMERNBE HMERBEFTR
other information comprises all the information included in the RSB ER  ETBERE MK R
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements = KRB A BL U B i SR A R o

and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not ~ HIYGEM B HREMNERLTREHME
cover the other information and we do not express any form of %+ B E I3 77 ¥ bt R E A X ARE

assurance conclusion thereon.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

B %A RS

PRz e M BRR R AR E
SNER (F)

REMHREMBRERNEZM S R
METRMEEMER ARKEEEM
ERRTEEEMBRRIBMAERZE
BYESHN THREEEAT — BB LUK
EPN-E &

A ERBPIETH TR RPIRBRE
fERFEEAER BIRMERSES
B HPIEL T EEEMER AT RE -

H
=

XNy

EEHGRAVBBRNEE

EXRERBEEBEFMASRONES
MBHRELENRBERRROIE B ERE
mElsE M HmE AERE W ERKRIE
HEEMAANRR REEER/LE
R BRI AE AR A M R A7 i
RERFFSE AR M BB A E RS

EREEaMBERRE EFHAEN
fh BEEERELENEN BE (W@
) EFEKEARANER  WERFEL
LEFEE(RIEFHSE EEEBR
AR IERRE BRI Z SN I A M R 1T HY
BEE) o

EXERETEE EXEMBRSEEFD
BEREERZESHY-
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M % BET 3R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

B %A RS

%gﬁm%&%éﬂtﬁiﬁiﬂ’ﬂiﬁ
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B % B8RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yeung Ka Chun.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

— = — —

S ——

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEE®X

Fr_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”))  (UARE ([AR%E])Z7])
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZE HE
=== —E-—%F
+=—A=+—H +t=—A=+—H
IHFEE IEFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ft it AR¥Fr AREFT
Revenue g = 4 376,070 494,280
Other income H e A 5 370 10,371
Cost of goods sold B i iH B AR 19 (197,760) (215,501)
Sales and other taxes and surcharges 5 K H fh %5 18 X B hnF3 (12,389) (16,897)
Staff costs B TR 6(b) (98,949) (113,537)
Depreciation expenses WERY 12 (151,926) (156,145)
Utilities expenses NHEFERY (23,356) (26,940)
Advertisement expenses BEERX (6,233) (11,599)
Expected credit losses on trade and & Ui 8% 7k &2 H fib g Ua 3k
other receivables JEHA=EEIE 1 (2,523)
Impairment losses on goodwill and 758 )% & JiZ & 7= i (E B 18
intangible assets 15 (30,164) (72,000)
Other operating expenses H i &R &5 2 6(c) (67,273) (78,611)
Loss from operations REEE (211,599) (189,102)
Valuation gain on an investment KREMEMERE
property 13 36,689 -
Net finance costs VBERFE 6(a) (204,084) (169,760)
Loss before taxation RRBH Al 5 18 6 (378,994) (358,862)
Income tax Frig i 7 53 (22,581)
Loss for the year NEEEIE (378,941) (381,443)
Attributable to: LT ATEN:
Equity shareholders of the AN/NCI 8=
Company (361,737) (367,967)
Non-controlling interests JEIE R RE 25 (17,204) (13,476)
Loss for the year NEEEIE (378,941) (381,443)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted (RMB) EXR#E(ARBIT) 11 (0.155 (0.158)

F 1592288 H 2 M st JhAAAK %2 S I IS TR
235 e

The notes on pages 159 to 288 form part of these financial
statements.

HESHEEXERERDA
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REeREEREMEZE RS X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB)  (LAAR#Z31)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
HZE HE
—E-= —E-—4F
t=A=+—8 +t=A=1—H
IEFE IEFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ftaF AR TR ARKFT
Loss for the year rEEEE (378,941) (381,443)
Other comprehensive income rEEHMEERE (KR
for the year (after tax and REREHIERE) :
reclassification adjustments):
ltems that will not be reclassified to BT E@EZEFHHBEER
profit or loss: ZIEE:
— Surplus on revaluation of land —ENBEEBRAZ T
and buildings held for own use REFRER 10 93,530 79,904
— Equity securities at FVOCI-net —RARBEFEEEEEH
movement in fair value reserve FTAEMEE K
(non-recycling) Hies— RN ERE
(TR &%) B E)FHE 10 (18,915) 88,200
74,615 168,104
ltem that may be reclassified Higr s EEEn
subsequently to profit or loss: 2B :
— Exchange differences on —RERZINEEZ
translation into presentation ME W =R
currency 10 2,661 (16,373)
2,661 (16,373)
Other comprehensive income AFEHMR2EKE
for the year 77,276 151,731
Total comprehensive income for ANFEE2EKNFEATE
the year (301,665) (229,712)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEREBaERHEMEZE KRS X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—FT_-_—F+-_H=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA R Z7)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZE HE

—E-C—F —E-—%F
+=ZA=+—H8 +=—A=+—H
IEFE EFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it 7 AR¥ T ARETF T

Attributable to: BMEUTALTHEA:
Equity shareholders of the ZIN/NGIF g5
Company (281,412) (230,454)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR (20,253) 742

Total comprehensive income for FRNEEZ2HEWNIFALE
the year (301,665) (229,712)

The notes on pages 159 to 288 form part of these financial 551595 288E Mt 5 Ty % S 0 I &
statements. Z BBt o

tesranenEmiy 52
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIk R R

At 31 December 2022 WR-ZE-——#+—-HA=+—H
(Expressed in RMB)  (AAR#Z31)
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
K= RZZT_—%F
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
K e AR¥ Tt ARBF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property and equipment W) KR 12 3,983,742 3,134,933
Investment properties A Y= 13 728,772 1,347,798
Intangible assets M| EE 14 244,482 274,646
Goodwill RS 15 35,129 35,129
Prepayments for acquisition of Wi W) 26 2 A 5RIB
properties 17 2,128,943 1,982,153
Equity securities designated EEAZ AR BEF=EHEES
at fair value through other FAEMEE WS 2 EZSE
comprehensive income (FVOCI) = 18(a) 206,491 255,900
Financial assets measured at fair BARBEFEEEZHHTA
value through profit or loss B oREE
(FVPL) 18(b) 14,675 16,639
Deferred tax assets EERIEE E 26(b) 11,039 11,537
7,353,273 7,058,735
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 22,050 24,523
Trade and other receivables e Ui BR R K% L At i Uk R 20 121,993 59,595
Prepayments AT RIE 36,247 30,072
Cash at bank and on hand RITEFRFRRES 21 19,542 36,520
199,832 150,710
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables & 1<% B K % EL Al JE < 5K 22 655,622 416,496
Contract liabilities cRAE 23 152,424 134,955
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEER 24(a) 3,290,748 2,151,486
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 17,847 50,223
Income tax payable JE S FTiS Hi 26(a) 36,098 36,171
Provisions BEE 27 289,563 -
4,442,302 2,789,331
Net current liabilities REAEFHE (4,242,470) (2,638,621)
Total assets less current liabilities #EERGAEEE 3,110,803 4,420,114

The notes on pages 159 to 288 form part of these financial

statements.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022

S5159%288E v M DA F M S MK

Z#B1n o



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB AR R

At 31 December 2022 R-—ZE—-——#+=-_H=+—H

(Expressed in RMB) (LA R Z7)

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

R-ZE=-— N-E——4F
+t=A=t+—8 +t=A=1+—H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Fif ARMFT ARETT

Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Long-term provisions REIBE

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
Lease liabilities HEERE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBEAE
NET ASSETS BEEFHE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR #E
Share capital AR

Reserves E

Total equity attributable to equity A TR REGESAE
shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests FERER
TOTAL EQUITY RSP

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30 March 2023.

Yao Jiangang
1k 2 4
Chairman

FE

The notes on pages 159 to 288 form part of these financial
statements.

27 - 288,593
24(b) 777,857 1,459,576
25 165,962 233,679
26(b) 659,952 630,006
1,603,771 2,611,854
1,507,032 1,808,260

28
199,369 199,369
1,276,469 1,557,514
1,475,838 1,756,883
31,194 51,377
1,507,032 1,808,260

REFEN _T_=F=-HA=+tHA#tER
XTI -

Qin Chuan
=]l
Director

EF

1592288 H 2 M st A 2 E I 53R R
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEagB X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %

—E A=t —ALEE

=
(Expressed in RMB)  (AA KRB Z3I)
Fair value
Property reserve Non-
Share Share Capital  Contributed  revaluation (non-  Statutory  Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve  recycling) reserves reserve losses Total interests equity
- NEERE DAERE ) . e ‘ FER i
BE  RAEE BEAREE  HSARR e (Fa8d) ZedE EXEE ZHER Azt s a5
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFR
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
28(c) 28 28(a)ii)  28(d)ii)  28(d)iv)  28(a)v)  28(d)(vi)  28(d)(wi)
(Hiat (Hizt (Hizt (Hifzt (Hizt (Hiat (Hiat (st
28c)  28(d)))  28(a)i))  28(d)ii)  28(d)iv)  28()v))  28(d)vi))  28(d)wii))
Balance at R=B=-%-A
1 January 2021 -A&EH 199,369 1,136,595 (74,944) 995255 1,170,489 (142,471) 129,585 110,926  (1,537,467) 1,987,337 50,635 2,037,972
Changes in equity ~AFERHEE:
for the year:
Loss for the year rEEER = = - - - - - - (367.967) (367967)  (13476)  (381,443)
Other comprehensive  Efty 2 Yz
income = = = = 79,904 73,982 = (16,373) = 137,513 14,218 151,731
Total comprehensive AE[E2H W
income for the year #% = = = = 79,904 73,982 - (16,373)  (367,967)  (230,454) 742 (229,712)
Balance at RZBZ-F+=
31 December A=t+-R&#
2021 199,369 1,136,595 (74,944) 995255 1,250,393 (68,489) 129,585 94,553 (1,905,434) 1,756,883 51,377 1,808,260

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREaR® X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB) (LA R Z7)

Fair value
Property reserve Non-
Share Share Capital  Contributed  revaluation (non- Statutory Exchange  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve surplus reserve recycling) reserves reserve losses Total interests equity
NREfE  DAERE FER Ei

Bx  RbEE EXBRE  HARR i (FTEE) HERE  ERRE  ZiEE Ait Bi ]
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETr  ARETr  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  AREFn  AREFn  AREFn  AREFR
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
26(c) ) i) 2B(dliv) ) 2B(d)i)  28vii)  28(c)fvii))

(K (W (Wit (Wi (Wi (Wi (Wi (Wi
26(0) 28(d)() 28(d)ii)  28(a)iv) 20d)v)  28(d)w)  28(d)vii)  28(a)viii))

Balance at 1 January 2022 W=F=Z%

-§-8
&4 199,369 1,136,595 (74,944) 995,255 1,250,393 (68,489) 129,585 94,553 (1,905,434) 1,756,883 51377 1,808,260

Changes in equity AEERE

for the year: 28
Loss for the year KEERR = = = = - - - - (361,737) (361,737) (17,204)) (378,941))
Other comprehensivencome &t 2 B & - - - - 93,530 (15,866) - 2661 - 80,325 (3,049) 71,276
Total comprehensive REERE

income for the year et 1 - - - - 93,530 (15,866) - 2,661 (361,737) (281,412) (20,253) (301,665))
Disposal of HERDAEHEALR

eqity securities designated - B AZf2 ARG
atFVOCl fsee Notel8(a) &% (8
18)) = = = = = 1,382 = = (7,015) 367 10 a7

Balance at 31 December R=F=ZFf=f
2022 ER:} ] 199,369 1,136,595 (74,944) 995,255 1,343,923 (16,973) 129,585 97,214 (2,274,186) 1,475,838 31,19 1,507,032

The notes on pages 159 to 288 form part of these financial ~ 55 159% 2888 » Wiz Jh4EAK % B I MR &
statements. Z BBt o

tesraneREmLy s
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB)  (AA KRB Z3I)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZE HE
—E-= T —F
t=A=+—H +t=A=1—H
IEFE HEE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
fit i AR¥TFT ARMTFIT
Operating activities BEEE
Loss before taxation K B R E 18 (378,994) (358,862)
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation expenses TERX 12 151,926 156,145
Expected credit losses on trade JrE Ui BR 3k % L th e Ui R
and other receivables EHEEEE (11) 2,523
Impairment losses on goodwill BmELKEFEERERSE
and intangible assets 15 30,164 72,000
Net loss on disposal of REMERRBRKREMN
property and equipment and EXZEBEEHA
investment property 6(c) 20,441 9,433
Interest income A B WA 5 (2,334) (5,339)
Dividend income REMA 5 - (2,700)
Net finance costs % ERFEE 6(a) 204,084 169,760
Change in fair value of financial BARBEFEEEEFHTA
assets measured at FVPL BEnceMBEEZARE
i 5 1,964 (2,332)
Valuation gain on an BEYEHE RS
investment property 13 (36,689) =
Changes in working capital: BEELE:
Decrease in inventories FE 2R 2,473 9,993
Increase in trade and B 5 N H b e WK IE 2 120
other receivables (127.491) (201,005)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted ZRIRTTIEE (),
cash at bank (78) 428
Increase/(decrease) in trade and R BR R R E b FE Rk 2
other payables #n, CRd) 22,850 (370,207)
Increase in contract liabilities SHBEZEN 17,469 33,062
Net cash used in operations REFMARSFE (94,226) (487,101)
Income tax paid BT EH 26(a) (753) (27,663)
Net cash used in RETEMARSFE
operating activities (94,979) (514,764)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HERTMRER

—E - —HF —HA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB) (AR Z7)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZE HE
=== —E-—4F
+=A=+—B +t=—A=+—H
ILFE IEFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ft &t AR TR ARKTFT
Investing activities REEE
Payments for the purchase of BEMERZBRNR
property and equipment (161,407) (4,483)
Proceeds from disposal of property §E & ¥ % K& & & 2 FT15 5K 78
and equipment 8,113 161
Interests received EWFE 1,563 5,339
Dividends received from the equity #£#5 E%E@ﬁﬁd‘iﬂ/\ﬁ
securities designated at FVOC| Bt AHMEEKE R
EHRESHRE - 2,700
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEEE AR @fﬁ@.ﬁr%ﬁﬁ
securities designated at fair value ~ Z Bt A K fth 2 e 2
through other comprehensive ﬁf’*%ZFﬂEﬁK
income (FVOCI) 50,931 -
Net cash (used in)/generated REFS (FTR) B
from investing activities BERE (100,800) 3,717
Financing activities MEEE
Capital element of lease rentals ENEEZERES
paid 21(b) (31,238) (67,610)
Interest element of lease rentals EfNHEezNEH D
paid 21(b) (17,931) (9,442)
Proceeds from new bank loans FTILIRTT E KIS 5KIB 21(b) 175,000 830,000
Proceeds from new other % E b {8 B TS IR
borrowings 21(b) 2,350,787 1,740,977
Repayment of bank loans BEFETER 21(b) (340,000) (1,296,072)
Repayment of other borrowings EEHMEE 21(b) (1,728,244) (832,727)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted ZREITIRS (M), R
cash at bank 21(a) (1,703) 281,885
Other finance costs paid H b B 1 @b & AR AR 21(b) (229,719) (210,578)
Net cash generated from METEAERESER
financing activities 176,952 436,433
ﬁ%%?bﬁ%f‘ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂj

—E-—fF



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mEEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB)  (LAAR#Z31)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

BZE HE

—E-—8F —E-—4F
+=A=+—H8 +=—A=+—H

IEFE LEFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
fif 7% AR¥ T AR¥ETFT

Net decrease in cash and BERBESEHEER 2 FRD
cash equivalents (18,827) (74,614)

Cash and cash equivalents at the TR e REESEEEHE

beginning of the year 21(a) 30,243 104,966
Effect of foreign exchange SIERBEBHoTE
rate changes 68 (109)

Cash and cash equivalents at the FXBERBEESEEEH
end of the year 21(a) 11,484 30,243

The notes on pages 159 to 288 form part of these financial 5515952885 Mt 5 Ty % & B Rk
statements. Z #BAD e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 August 2000 as
an exempted company with limited liability under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The shares of the
Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 23 October
2000. The consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). The principal activities of
the Group are the operation of department stores, a
shopping mall and supermarkets in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC").

Qujiang Cultural Financial International Investment
Limited (“Qujiang Investment”) was a substantial
shareholder of the Company, holding 29.24% of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these financial
statements.

(GIHFZEHER BRIAAREZS)

ARIER

oS EHEERERAF (AR
AR =_ZEEZFENANBREER
E—NN\—ERENER B REFMK
SN EERRER AR ARA ZEH
R_ZEETZF+A-_+=HEEES
EHMARSHABRAE ([BZF])
R -ARRBE_TE-_—_F+_A
T+ BLEEEZEAUKERS
BARARMREWNBRR (KB IAE
) AEBETBEKARTEA
RN ([FE])&EEFERES B
WA O R B AR T 4 e

MIXEERBEEREREER QA
(MIRE)ARARAZEER
RFHAERRAEHETEBRRRD 2
29.24% -

FTEETHE

(a) BHIEA
ZEMBHROREMEERLZ
FEMBHREEN ([FEYH
WEER]) - BREBESFAQ
g ([FEEMAE])BMZ
FrEERZ BRI BB BRELE
A FEgrER ([FEGE
A RBRBARETEARE
JRA - ZEMBRRITTEER
DAV B 2 58 B BRI E A e
BRREs EmAR (T EHR
A1) Z BRI ERN - ARER
MZEBGBRBENT -

BEGMAGERMETES
M REEANER] > W AKHE
PN I = N S S R
RERM - BREAZZEARE
BERz BB BRELERIFS
HE R MAE SR E5T K
REH CRBRRZFHHBRER
N BRERIIBR KT E2(c) °

HESHEEXERERDA
SRR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for investments in equity securities (see Note
2(f)), land and buildings held for own use (see Note
2(g)) and investment property (see Note 2(h)) which
are stated at their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEFFHEE (£)
(continued)

(b) MBHBREREE (&)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net
current liabilities of RMB4,242,470,000 and
incurred net loss of RMB378,941,000 and had net
cash used in operating activities of RMB94,979,000
during the year ended 31 December 2022. However,
the directors of the Company do not consider
that material uncertainties related to events or
conditions exist which, individually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. This is because based
on a cash flow forecast of the Group for at least
twelve months ending 31 December 2023 prepared
by the management, the directors have made an
assessment and concluded that the Group is able
to continue as a going concern for at least the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period
and to meet its repayment obligations, as and when
they fall due, having regard to the following:

—  the Group has obtained short-term loans from
a bank and a financial institution with a total
amount of RMB100,000,000 after the end of
the reporting period;

- Quijiang Financial Holdings (the controlling
shareholder of Qujiang Investment), a state-
owned enterprise, has extended its short-
term loans for two years granted to the Group
of RMB2,168,422,000 after the end of the
reporting period;

- Qujiang Financial Holdings has committed to
provide additional loan facility of RMB1.5 hbillion
to the Group and provide guarantees for the
loan facilities from banks or any other financial
institutions. The directors are of the opinion the
Group is highly dependent on the financial support
of Qujiang Financial Holdings for at least twelve
months from the end of the reporting period;

RZE-_—_F+=_A=+—
H- E\x.Zum@Ja{éxg‘%E%
AR #4,242,470,0007T ° LA B
HE-_T-_—_F+=-RA=+—
BIEFEELEBEFEARE
378,941,0007T R 48 & E e AT R R,
& 7558 A R #94,979,0007T ° /A
i ANRAESRE WA FEE
Pl EEAEESAEERFEL
ZEeEKEANRENEMSE
SUAERE R E KT HEE I o itk T5 R
RIBBREEERRE  ASEEHE
—E=F+-_A=+—H1I=ZE
L+ @AAZESR=TEA B
EEHETHG YRELEAEER
mﬁ%%it#$X§9+:ﬂ

e B A S E L
%%J%&Wﬁ%d%%@ﬂﬁ
EBEET EPEFTRATEIE:

- RBESHERER AKEHE
B —RRIT L& EEER
SRHEXRBEARE
100,000,0007T :

- —HAEHEELCEHTILH
R (T IRE 2R’
RIERBREHKREBE
HAEEMEHERAR
#2,168,422,0007T & Ei /R
&

- HISBEREAF/AN
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FeRMBBERRERM
ER-BFERR AKEB
BERREEL+ @A
S E AR RE #OT & R R
Z AR

EREEBREEARAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(c)

statements (continued)

—  the Group has maintained long-term strong
business relationships with its major banks and
financial institutions to get their continuing
support and is actively discussing with these
banks and financial institutions for renewal of
loans or new facilities amounting to RMB1.23
billion, and the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that renewal or new facilities
are likely to be obtained during the year
ending 31 December 2023.

The directors of the Company are therefore of the
opinion that the Group will have adequate funds
to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due
for at least twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the directors are of
the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the
Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 on a going concern basis.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

o Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

° Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period. Impacts of the adoption
of the amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting
the proceeds from selling items produced before
that asset is available for use from the cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment. Instead,
the sales proceeds and the related costs should be
included in profit and loss. The amendments do not
have a material impact on these financial statements
as the Group does not sell items produced before an
item of property, plant and equipment is available
for use.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous contracts —
cost of fulfilling a contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost of
fulfilling the contract includes both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

Previously, the Group included only incremental
costs when determining whether a contract was
onerous. In accordance with the transitional
provisions, the Group has applied the new
accounting policy to contracts for which it has not
yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022, and
has concluded that none of them is onerous.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
interests in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of those equity interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those equity
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the period
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group’'s equity interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain
or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see Note 2(k)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Goodwill (continued)

()

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associate and joint venture, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
for which transaction costs are recognised directly
in profit or loss. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f) Investments in equity securities (continued)

(i)

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method (see Note

2(u)(vi)).

—  fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) — recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

—  FVPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 8 = M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

=E- = H=+—HIFFE

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTHE (&)
(continued)
(f) Investments in equity securities (continued) ) REBHRE (£)
(ii) Equity investments (i) BmRE
An investment in equity securities is classified EaisrREHGED HE
as FVPL unless the equity investment is REAREFEEHE
not held for trading purposes and on FFAEZ BRIEZERR

initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer's perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in Note 2(u)(v).

(g) Property and equipment

Land and buildings held for own use are stated at
their revalued amount, being their fair values at
the date of the revaluation less any subsequent

accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amounts of these assets
do not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the

reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBEBE (&)

(continued)

(g) Property and equipment (continued) (9) MERRE (&)

Changes arising on the revaluation of land and
buildings held for own use are generally dealt
with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as
follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to
the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

Residential properties held for own use and other
items of property and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(k)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located.

Iltems may be produced while bringing an item
of property and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. The
proceeds from selling any such items and the related
costs are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Property and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from the property revaluation
reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to
profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property and equipment, less
their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

(BrIF=B1EH
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FEGHE (&)

(9) MERZRE (&)
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Estimated
useful lives
fhat £ A F 5
Land and buildings held for own use carried at fair value 20 — 50 years
RRAREIRZFHEAER L EET 20E504F
Residential properties held for own use carried at cost and leasehold
improvements 3 — 35 years
ERASNEZHEEREEMERBEMERE 3E354F
Properties leased for own use 1 - 13 years
BRAEME 12139
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 — 28 years
BRI KERR B 3% 28%F
Motor vehicles 3 — 10 years
EWTA 3E 104
Where parts of an item of property and equipment BEYMEMRRENSIHMNE TR

have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value
are reviewed annually.

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

()

()]

Investment property

Investment property is land and/or building which
is owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 2(j)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and its fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment property is accounted for as described in
Note 2(u)(iii).

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 2(k)).

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single
lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily office furniture. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(j) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Notes 2(g) and 2(k)(iii)), except for
the right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair value
in accordance with Note 2(h).

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately from the
right-of-use assets in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to investments in
debt securities carried at amortised cost. Any
difference between the initial fair value and
the nominal value of the deposits is accounted
for as additional lease payments made and is
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group's estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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B %5 8 = M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
()

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

2 FEEFBE (&)

()
(i)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B
of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
has taken advantage of the practical expedient
not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognised the
change in consideration as negative variable
lease payments in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the

rent concessions occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the

reporting period.

As a lessor

(i)

(ii)

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the

lease is classified as an operat
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(j) Leased assets (continued)

(iij) As a lessor (continued)

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with Note

2(u)(iii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as
an operating lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the
head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described in Note
2(j)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease
as an operating lease.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following item:

financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables);

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities measured at FVPL
and equity securities designated at FVOCI
(non-recycling) are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)
(i)

(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

2 FEEFBE (&)

k) FEERREERE (&)

(i)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the

effect of discounting is materi

al:

- fixed-rate financial assets and trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an

approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current

effective interest rate;

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to

credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following

bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model

applies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based
on the historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTEE(£)

(continued)
k) EEBEREERE (&)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () 2MITAZEFEEE
(continued) (%&)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued) 15 R bR 7 Z 8 (&)
In particular, the following information is taken BeEms FEH
into account when assessing whether credit BYIRERINKRE LR

risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal

il %J’ELAT,%?H

-  RERGHIHEH
SN AREHAE

- T BRI A ES
1:.,\.:%&(1111%)&’]
ERNEHBEESE
1t

- EBAREXENE
Rk FRHBmERL:
)53

- %’Hﬁﬁiﬁ Z%/FJZ
ERIRIEH B RIS TE

environment that have a significant S FSHEHBEBARIT
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to /\;T$E@?%EE’J%
meet its obligation to the Group. NEERTFZE

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,

BFemMIANMKEE F
5 2 e 8 2 R 00 T 2 1 B
HEEN KR EELETF
o R RIR AR E %
EIT EBMTAARAR

the financial instruments are grouped based B 15 B B & 45 & (ZZDﬁHH
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as HK/R&TZE [R B RT AR ) 3
past due status and credit risk ratings. A o

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
Note 2(u)(vi) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTEE(£)
(continued)
(k) EEFERSERNE (&)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () 2MITAZEFEEE

(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(continued)

(%)
FTEFSRAZ ZE
(&)

TREEFERENER
BREATABRENSF:

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable

events:

- significant financial difficulties of the - BEBALRBREMS
debtor; IR 2 ;

-~ a breach of contract, such as a default - ERER -WR#K
or delinquency in interest or principal RHEKRNE N
payments; b/

— it becoming probable that the borrower - BERAREAREHSE
will enter into bankruptcy or other B E S 1T H M B 7S
financial reorganisation; =4

- significant changes in the technological, - BE w5 &EX
market, economic or legal environment FRRBELHBEAE

B HEHKAETH

that have an adverse effect on the

debtor; or TE

- the disappearance of an active market for - HBHRBITALRMS
a security because of financial difficulties 2 5% 2 E B
of the issuer. M5 HEK

Write-off policy 25 B R

o2 A BB A AT =
TR E E M IR AAE (5
DREH) G T AN —
BRms AEBRSED
A 8B B S WA SRR A
EXfRARSRENEER
JETIAMIER 278 -

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Werite-off policy (continued)

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Credit losses from financial guarantees
issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially
recognised at fair value, which is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm'’s
length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual
rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category
of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 8 = M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees

issued (continued)

2 FEEFBE (&)

k) FEERREERE (&)

(ii)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount
initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees

issued.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract and
recognises a provision when ECLs on the
financial guarantees are determined to be
higher than the carrying amount carried in
respect of the guarantees (i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers
changes in the risk of default of the specified
debtor since the issuance of the guarantee. A
12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased
significantly since the guarantee is issued,
in which case a lifetime ECL is measured.
The same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk

as described in Note 2(k)(i) ap

ply.

As the Group is required to make payments
only in the event of a default by the specified
debtor in accordance with the terms of the
instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amount that the Group expects
to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The
amount is then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the

cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEK (£)
(continued)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (k) FEEBREERE (&)
(continued)

(iii) EtH#ERBEEZ B E

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each end of reporting period
to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property and equipment, including
right-of-use assets (other than land and
buildings held for own use stated at
revalued amounts);

-  intangible assets;
—  goodwill;

- non-current prepayments for acquisitions
of properties; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion of
the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(for example, head office building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit if the allocation can be done on a
reasonable and consistent basis, or to the
smallest group of cash-generating units if
otherwise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 8 = M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(iv) Interim financial reporting and

impairment

2 FEGHEE (4)
) FEERREERE (&)

(iv) A RIRT 3R & R B fE

U]

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(k)(i) and 2(k)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary
course of business subsequent to the financial year
end date or to management estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

V)

(m)

(n)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain
a significant financing component and other
receivables are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method and including allowance for credit losses
(see Note 2(k)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note

2(w)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Convertible preference share capital

Convertible preference share capital is classified as
equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only
at the Company’s option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on convertible preference
share capital classified as equity are recognised as
distributions within equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
trade and other payables are stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set
out in Note 2(k)(i).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments

Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted
to employees and service providers
is recognised as an employee cost or
operating expense with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Black-Scholes Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

Share award scheme

The shares awarded under the share
award scheme are acquired from open
market. The net consideration paid,
including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “Shares
held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.

For shares granted under the share
award scheme, the fair value of shares
granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is based on the closing
price of the Company's shares on grant
date plus any directly attributable
incremental costs. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
shares, the total fair value of the shares
is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the
shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of shares that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit
or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of shares that
vest with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Share-based payments (continued)
—  Share award scheme (continued)

When the awarded shares are transferred
to the awardees upon vesting, the related
weighted average acquisition cost of
the awarded shares vested are credited
to “Shares held under share award
scheme”, and the grant date fair value
of the awarded shares vested are debited
to the capital reserve. The difference
between the related weighted average
acquisition cost and the grant date fair
value of the awarded shares vested is
transferred to retained profits directly.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

—E - —HF —HA=+—HIFE
(BRIFFHFHEH TAUAREZZ])

2 FEEFBE (&)

(r)

(s)

BERA (&)
(i) R (&)

- RO BEEE (E)
= RBRNHNEBE
HEREERA BH
BB ER D 2
R U B R A T
fRE [RZE A 2R
ArERAES RG]
AN ERIE 5B R
B EBE#AR
BEIIRENFEETN
B - B 8 h0#E 15 Uk
BN E R B 2R
Ry R B QA
BEZENEBEER
ERERB RN -

(iii) # 112 A&7
RIEERBRAR AR ER
BREHURRHZFR/NE
KRS BER Y R
IER BRI 2 BAEKARE
(AT ERE) HER -

Frig

HINFT ST B 1 AN E R I8 SR AT
MREEEAFEZEE) - NHB
RARBEEREEENRBBEZES
BEBR AR BLERXBE
PR AR E &
e R R B MR E RSN 7
ZIERT BRHBES D AIE
REEMEAREHEENER
fEwR -

BIEAT TR &2 12 A 1 FE SR A W AUA
BERREEMKER LEER
ZHERFE 2 TR IE - A
NEFERNHRBAERHAR-

HESHEEXERERDA
SRR

191



192

Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(h), the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of this asset at its carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, a separate asset is recognised
for any expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of
the provision.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 8 = M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount

of promised consideration to whi

ch the Group is

expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of goods and net income from

concession sales

Revenue arising from the

sale of goods

and net income from concession sales

are recognised when the
possession of and accepts

customer takes
the goods. No

revenue or net income is recognised if
there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, the

possible return of goods,

or continuing

management involvement with the goods.
Payments received in advance from customers
that are related to sales of goods not yet
delivered are deferred in contract liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Revenue is recognised when goods
are delivered to the customers. After expiry of
prepaid stored value cards, the corresponding
receipts in advance are normally recognised
as income based on the Group's previous

experience in forfeiture of pre
cards by customers.

(ii) Service fee income
Service fee income from

paid stored value

the operation

of department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets is recognised when the related

services are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group’s customer loyalty programme
awards customers credits which entitle the
customers to the right to exchange for
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme and gives rise to a separate
performance obligation. The Group allocated
a portion of the transaction price to the
customer loyalty programme based on relative
standalone selling price. Such amount is
deferred and revenue is recognised when the
programme credits are redeemed and the
Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme. Deferred revenue is also released
to revenue when it is no longer considered
probable that the programme credits will be
redeemed.

Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

(v)

(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see Note 2(k)(i)).

(vii) Income from financial guarantees issued

Income from financial guarantees issued is
recognised over the term of the guarantees
(see Note 2(k)(ii)).

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's

parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group.

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly

controlled by a person identified in (a).
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_—ZFE—-—#+_-HA=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEK (£)
(continued)
(y) Segment reporting (y) Z#®E

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

The Group’s revenue is substantially derived from
retail customers in the PRC and the Group's
operating assets are substantially located in the
west region of the PRC. Accordingly, no segment
analysis based on geographical location of the
customers and assets is provided.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3 EitHET R

ESTIMATES

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying

(a) EAXRKESTBERRZBE

the Group’s accounting policies =gl
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting RERAREB S5 BURR 1
policies, management has made the following B EEH AT & 5 # 6
accounting judgement:
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B %5 8 = M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(i)

Going concern assessment

3 ERFHAERMEE (&)

(a) EAXRKEETBRK ZBE

et (&)
(i) FELELFME

Management has made judgement about
the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and concluded that there are no
material uncertainties related to events or
conditions which, individually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Further

information is set out in Note

(i)

2(b).

Classification of interests in leasehold

(ii)

land and buildings held for own use

In accordance with HKAS 16, Property, plant
and equipment, the Group chooses to apply
either the cost model or the revaluation
model as its accounting policy for items of
property and equipment held for own use on
a class-by-class basis. In applying this policy,
the Group has concluded that its registered
ownership interests in leasehold properties
and the right to use other properties leased
under tenancy agreements are two separate
groupings of assets which differ significantly
in their nature and use. Accordingly, they are
regarded by the Group as separate classes of
asset for subsequent measurement policies in
accordance with Notes 2(g) and (j). Specifically,
registered ownership interests are carried
under the revaluation model, while rights to
use properties under tenancy agreements are

carried at depreciated cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(ii) Classification of interests in leasehold
land and buildings held for own use
(continued)

In making this judgement, the Group has
taken into account that, as the registered
owner of a leasehold property, the Group
is able to benefit fully from any changes in
the valuation of these properties whether
as holding gains or by selling the property
interest to others, as well as being able to
use the properties in its operation free of
paying market rents. In contrast, the shorter
term tenancy agreements are typically for
periods of no more than 15 years and are
subject to other restrictions, in particular on
transferability of the Group's tenancy rights to
others. These shorter term tenancy agreements
are executed in order to retain operational
flexibility and to reduce the Group’s exposure
to the property market fluctuation. They may
contain termination or extension clauses, and/
or rental payment are usually increased every 1
to 3 years to reflect market rentals.

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 12, 13, 14 and 15 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating to
valuation of land and buildings held for own use,
investment properties, goodwill and intangible
assets impairment and financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

Impairment losses of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of a long-lived asset may not be
recoverable, the asset may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in accordance with accounting
policy for impairment of long-lived assets as
described in Note 2(k). The carrying amounts
of long-lived assets are reviewed periodically
or when indications are identified in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In determining the value in use, expected
future cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to the
level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of the level of revenue and amount
of operating costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the
carrying value of the assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or, except
for goodwill, reversal of impairment in future
periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3 SrtHETRMEE (&)

ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b) fhEETAREEMRIR (&)

(ii) Depreciation (i) TE
Property and equipment are depreciated MERZEZITETIRE
on a straight-line basis over the estimated BT RIEREBEEER KA
useful lives of the assets, after taking into EZErAERFRAE
account the estimated residual values. The mMEFE-BEEETH®
management reviews the estimated useful NBEEZMARERAFER

lives and the residual values, of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recorded during
any reporting period. The determination of the
useful lives and the residual values is based
on historical experience with similar assets.
The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of department stores, a shopping mall
and supermarkets in the PRC.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold to
customers, net income from concession sales, gross
rental income and management and administrative
service fee income.

RFEIHEE NEENE
AR EHARLREZITEX
& 8o Al E A FR R F
HREEIRBEEUEELZ
BEERETE -HMAEETZ
EEFHBEERNES B A
BRI EXHITEH

%E&o

4 WHEKEDEHHRE

(a)

Wz
AEEZEEXZHA/NTEE
LRE®S BYHLRBRT

35 o

WatEREF &R Z A miHEE
B FHAEEHEEFRA BH
WA ARERERITHAREE
YA o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHERDEBHEE (&)
(continued)
(a) Revenue (continued) (a) Wz (&)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) WADHE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products or service lines is
as follows:

REXrEEmIRBERE S
ZEPEHKEEN
T

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

BZ HE

—=-= B —fF
+=g=+-R +=A=+-8
IEEE HFE
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB T ARETT

Revenue from contracts with FEHKREERF1555E
customers within the scope EBERAZRBEEFEHZNK

of HKFRS15 =
Sales of goods EEEEE 230,323 251,206
Net income from concession sales 43 &F S HE &5 & F U A 77,124 133,050
Management and administrative &2 R {THARF &R A
service fee income 35,560 52,087
343,007 436,343
Revenue from other sources H b 3R Uz
Gross rental income AT e WA 33,063 57,937
376,070 494,280
Disaggregated by timing of R HEREIAKE S E
revenue recognition
Point in time Br 26 307,447 384,256
Over time & B ] 68,623 110,024
376,070 494,280

The Group’'s entire revenue is attributable
to the market in Shaanxi province, the PRC.
No analysis of geographical information is
therefore presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

(i)

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

—E - —HF —HA=+—HIFE
(BRIFFHFHEH TAUAREZZ])

4 WHkoSEE (&)

(a) Wz (&)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued) (i) WADE(E)
The Group engages in the retail business, and AEERETEED
accordingly, the directors of the Company e ARREERE RN
consider that the Group's customer base SENEFERZITIL:
is diversified and has no customer with BEHz-_ZE-__—_F+=
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of A=+—HBLEFEAXE
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 B EISBEARNEEY
December 2022 (2021: RMB Nil). Details of RO BERL (ZE = —
concentrations of credit risk are set out in Note FARBEZRL) EERE
29(a). % & P B R IB E B R BY B
29(a) °
Information on gross revenue B 48U a5 B B2 B
Gross revenue represents the gross amount MW EEHEE® A
arising from the sales of goods, concession TERPZETEEH
sales charged to retail customers, gross rental T BHSWRANRKRRME
income and management and administrative FUE 2 &8 RITH AR
service fee income charged to tenants. BIWAZ B
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Bz BE
—E-C —E2-—fF
+=A=+—-H +=ZRA=+—H
LEEE EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARET T
Sales of goods 7 on S & 230,323 251,206
Gross revenue from concession 45 #F BB fH & 4B Uk 25
sales 548,810 955,166
Gross rental income @7 e WA 33,063 57,937
Management and administrative &2 & 17 E AR B WA
service fee income 35,560 52,087
847,756 1,316,396
Further details regarding the Group’s principal BHEAER TEERK 2

activities are disclosed in Note 4(b).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z —ZF— —

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

F+-A=+—HILFE

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

(a)

(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised in

the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date

The Group has applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales
contracts for prepaid stored value cards
such that the Group did not disclose the
information about revenue that the Group will
be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts
for sales of prepaid stored value cards
because the Group recognises revenue at the
amount to which it has a right to invoice,
which corresponds directly to the value to
the customer of the Group's performance
completed to date.

(b) Segment reporting
The Group manages its businesses by lines of
business. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

Department stores and shopping mall: this
segment operates 2 department stores during
the year ended 31 December 2022. The
shopping mall and one department store have
been closed for renovation and upgrade as at
31 December 2022. This shopping mall was re-
opened in January 2023 and the department
store is expected to re-open in 2025.

Supermarkets: this segment includes the
operation of one community supermarket, 4
comprehensive supermarkets and 2 fresh food
supermarkets.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment information

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable
to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and net income and expenses
are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue and net income
generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.
However, assistance provided by one segment
to another is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “adjusted EBITDA"” i.e. “adjusted earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as
including interest income, and other financial
charges and income, and “depreciation
and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets and valuation gain or loss on investment
property. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the
Group’s earnings are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs. No inter-segment sales
have occurred for the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

Assets and liabilities are not monitored by the
Group’s senior executive management based
on segments. Accordingly, no information on
segment assets and liabilities is presented.

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

—E - —HF —HA=+—HIFE
(BRIFFHFHEH TAUAREZZ])

4 WHkoSEE (&)

(b) DEHmE (&)

(i)

S EEH
MR BB AT D BRI
RORERME ~&EE
ZEBREBREERESER
BRESBzEMES H
BT

Yoz KR BAA KB 2 9
Rz HmENE 12K
& E D AT E A M R F
WA %% BT E £
FISZ o AT > o 2B 2 [EI P iR
HXEAL A TETE -

AR#BEDHafzh
A B[4 H #EBITDA | »
Bl (4 A2 2 Rt F B
HE - TERBHEAZA
FMl-ERIHE]BEFEF
BUWAREAME 2 H &
WA [ITEREH] B
EEREEREREEZ
REBEEEEME A
BlasEEB BT EL
S EEBITDA AEB 2 &
FITE AW R W EFIIEE B
R E B 5 22 B B 1E H
SR IR ER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHERDBHE (&)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) HEF/mE (&)
(i) Segment information (continued) (i) 7EHER (&)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable IATHEE@EASE @ZT
segments as provided to the Group's most WEDHER TR M
senior executive management for the purposes rEEZHERRE EEJ'

UEFEEREE T ——
FrR-E-_—%+=H
=+—BLEFELIRER
N {h o BRI

of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 is set out below.

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-E_—_E+-A=t-HLEE

Department
stores and
shopping mall Supermarkets Total
BEBSR
B BR™ % Ch
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARE T ARETF T
Disaggregated by timing of RUKEHRAKHELE
revenue recognition
Point in time PRy 6 103,860 203,587 307,447
Over time Bi5 B fe] 54,751 13,872 68,623
Revenue and net income AREFzZBBERFRA
from external customers EoBKERF
and reportable segment ON
revenue and net income 158,611 217,459 376,070
Reportable segment loss AREHHER
(adjusted EBITDA) (2 FHEEBITDA ) (16,313) (2,186) (18,499)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment information (continued)

4 WHkoSEE (&)

(b) DEIRE (&)
(i) ZHBER(E)
Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E--—E+-A=1-HILEE

Department

stores and
shopping mall Supermarkets Total

BEES R
BoHl BRT5 CE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETR

Disaggregated by timing of ZUW&EHIAKELE
revenue recognition

Point in time By

Over time BE 5 ]

Revenue and net income PREFZWBERFRA
from external customers RARESBRERF
and reportable segment A
revenue and net income

Reportable segment profit A& D #
(adjusted EBITDA) (455 %EBITDA)

158,364 225,892 384,256
91,873 18,151 110,024
250,237 244,043 494,280
27,387 12,736 40,123
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z —ZF— —

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

F+-A=+—HILFE
(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHERDEBHEE (&)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2WwE (&)
(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment (i) TREDZB (FBE), &
(loss)/profit T #1 B
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE BHZE
—E-C B —fF
+=-A=+—-B +=-A=+—H
IEEE HFE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A& S (B8) /E A (18,499) 40,123
Other income HAb WA 370 10,371
Depreciation expenses TERY (151,926) (156,145)
Impairment losses on goodwill and P& R EF EEREEIE
intangible assets (30,164) (72,000)
Net finance costs B ER T (204,084) (169,760)
Valuation gain on an investment REMEMERR
property 36,689 -
Unallocated head office and corporate  7& %3 Bt #2.2F & /A 5147 B F 52
administration expenses (11,380) (11,451)
Loss before taxation BRI B 1B (378,994) (358,862)
5 OTHER INCOME 5 HlgA
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Bz BHZE
—E-C —E-—fF
t=A=t+-A +=ZA=+—H
EFEE WHEE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FTT AREFTT
Interest income M EMA 2,334 5,339
Change in fair value of financial assets RARBENEREEHFAEBRL
measured at FVPL CRMEEZARNEEE (1,964) 2,332
Dividend income % 2 U A = 2,700
370 10,371
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Notes to the Financial Statements

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

(a) Net finance costs:

(GIHFZEHER BRIAAREZS)

6 MKRBAER
BRABAEMG (GHA) -

() MBBERFHE:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Bz BHE
—E-C —E-—F
+=-—A=+—-H +ZA=+—H
EEE LFE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AREFT
Interest expenses on bank and other  SEITREMEEZF B H
borrowings 268,110 237,545
Interest on lease liabilities MERBZHE
(see Note 21(b)) (R Hfat21(b)) 17,931 9,442
Bank charges and other finance costs ~ RITER R EMFEER 2,540 3,111
Total borrowing costs BEEKRA 288,581 250,098
Less: interest expense capitalised W BBEREARBYERMNR
into prepayments for acquisitions of B2 MERX
properties (see Note 21(b)) (2 Ma21(b) (84,486) (86,174)
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss EX Cafl),/ EBR%E (11) 5,836
204,084 169,760

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a
rate of 6.98% per annum for the year ended 31

December 2022 (2021: 7.12%).

BE-_ZE-_—_F+=-HA=+—H
I FEEEKRAEIEZTF6.98%
T —F:712% ) ZHERE
AL e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 8 = M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

=E- = H=+—HIFFE

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to
the schemes at 16% of the employees’ basic
salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are entitled
to retirement benefits, calculated based on a
percentage of the average salaries level in the PRC,
from the above mentioned retirement schemes at
their normal retirement age

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
for employees under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant salaries, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant salaries of HK$30,000.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 KRFAIEE(EZ)
(b) Staff costs: (b) BT A

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

BZE #HE

—E-= —E-—fF

t=A=+t-8 +ZA=+-H

ILEE WFFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T AREFT

Salaries, wages and other benefits He TEREMER 88,415 101,771
Contributions to defined contribution A 7F %8 £ FUGE (R 51 21 4 =«

retirement plans 10,534 11,766

98,949 113,537

REBRPBEXIZZHERRZ
BEZEMTRTRBEEREZE
B FRKEME S B % F
MBARARREEAFHEZ
16% [R5 F T 8K - |RiF it
RKEE ZEHRBAREER
EHIEFERNFRIFEER Lt
BRI ZBRPBEFHHFENK
FEDLEEZRKER -

REENMRBEEEAHERTES
FFENEN BB B REGD 2 5%
EETzREEEE— (@t
ATESFE ([BESETE]) -
wiEEFT B A—ERBILITA
B ERAMRGTE - BIERTE
e:tE BEMEREEHERRE
BHEBHEZ% (FAHEEF
& FBR 430,000 7T ) M) 5120 44
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Notes to the Financial Statements

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 BRFiAIEIE (&)
(b) Staff costs: (continued)

(c)

Contributions to the retirement schemes vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that

(b) BITRA: (&)
ARG 8 2 HRBIES RS - A
SETEE M B0 WE TR

may be used by the Group to reduce the existing KRB R FRKT -

level of contribution.

The Group has no further obligation for payment of
other retirement benefits beyond the above annual

contributions.

Other operating expenses:

BRE Dt SR RN AR E
BELEMRARBNNRZE
==

() HEERMX:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

BZ HE
—E-C—& —E-—F
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZRA=+—H
LFE IHFE
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB T ARETT

Auditors’ remuneration

— statutory audit service

— other audit service

— other services

Other professional service fee

Property management fee

Loss on disposal of property and
equipment and investment property

Others

1% B 57 T
—EEZERH 4,200 4,200
—E R 600 700
—H R 600 —
HWEERKE 11,843 10,645
MEEES 7,147 9,114
HEMERZBRIEEMESE

Z BB 20,441 9,433
HAl 22,442 44,519

67,273 78,611
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HREBRRAMSBH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) ZEBEZRAZBIEE:
profit or loss represents:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZ HE
—E-CF —E-—F
+=ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
LFE HFE
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB T ARETT

Current taxation (see Note 26(a)):  AHEiHi1E ( EHfzE26(a)) :

— withholding tax on distributed — DIk BN EMB

earnings - 22,950
— provision for PRC Corporate — B RS EE

Income Tax = 4,354
— under/(over)-provision in respect -BEFEREBETE/ (BFE)

of prior years 680 (102)

680 27,202

Deferred taxation (see Note 26(b)):  EFERI1E (2 HfaE26(b)) -
- origination and reversal of —EREEZESARED

temporary differences (733) (4,621)

(733) (4,621)
(53) 22,581

2 1 6 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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it 3% ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEBaRAMSEH (&)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEXHREFTHEEREAH
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: R AWM :
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZ BE
—E-= —E-—fF
+=A=+-B +ZA=1+—H
HFE EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBETT

Loss before taxation BR 5 Al &5 18 (378,994) (358,862)
Expected tax on loss before tax, BRRAIEBEBRRIE REH

calculated at the rates applicable BB AVEER  BANETE

in the tax jurisdictions concerned (ZHT3EG) -~ (i) % i)

(see Notes (i), (ii) and (iii)) (92,664) (87,964)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A FE X i 2 HAEF 2 4,511 15,223
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AERRDARBER 2

recognised METE 87,448 72,171
Tax effect of temporary differences not KERE R ZH R T E

recognised (28) 303
Withholding tax on distributed earnings 73k & |8 1 %% - 22,950
Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior B EE&EET T,/ (HB5)

years 680 (102)
Income tax BIREL (53) 22,581

ﬁ@%?bﬁ%f‘ﬂﬁﬁf‘ﬁﬂj
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes:

(i)  The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%). No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made,
as the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB Nil).

(i)  The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in countries other than the PRC
(including Hong Kong) are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

(iii)  The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to a PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of
25% for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
25%).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

(GIHFZEHER BRIAAREZS)

8 EEHM
RIFFE R BHERPIFE3I83(1)IE R A 7
(HBEEEMEER) ROIE 28 E
ZEZRHMMMT :

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-E-__F+-A=t-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
He BER
EsHe HeENEN RiERe BRAGHEMT At
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETn ARETrn ARETn ARETR
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Huang Shunxu (resigned on BB LA (RZT-—F
14 December 2022) TZATHEEREE) - - - - -
Mr. Qin Chuan %% 1,546 - - 15 1,561
Ms. Wan Qing REXT 1,423 - - 39 1,462
Mr.Yao Jiangang (appointed on ~ BKESEL 4 (R ==
14 December 2022) TZATNAEZE) 30 2,023 - - 2,053
Non-executive directors FUTES
Mr. Chen Shuai FREM % & - - - - -
Mr. Li Yang (resigned on FHEE (RZF_Z
14 December 2022) TZATHBREE) - - - - -
Mr. Huang Zhihua (appointed on ~ EHELAE (RZF==
14 December 2022) tZAtNBAEZAE) - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE
directors
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng Buis i 5 4 258 - - - 258
Ms. Song Hong RALL 258 - - - 258
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai BR %4 258 - - - 258
3,773 2,023 - 54 5,850
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B %5 8 = M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

F+-A=+—HILFE
(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

8 EEHM (&)

Year ended 31 December 2021

BE-Z--%+-A=t-HILEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Directors’ fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
=1
EE0E HMENEN BiEfRe RIGHERR CHI
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREFT AREFT  AREFT  ARETR
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Huang Shunxu BIRGELE - - - - -
Mr. Qi Yong (resigned on PELEE (RZB=—F
7 June 2021) ANALBEE) 1,448 - - 43 1,491
Mr. Qin Chuan z)l %4 1,494 - - 15 1,509
Ms. Wan Qing BEXL 1,601 - - 67 1,668
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Chen Shuai FRAD LA - - - - =
Mr. Li Yang FhHRELE - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEZF
directors
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng BuEsi& s 4 249 - - - 249
Ms. Song Hong AR G 249 - - - 249
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai BHEELE 249 - - - 249
5,290 = . 125 5,415

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 EEHAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, EAZ&mFALTH =R (=ZF
three (2021: three) are directors whose emoluments are T—F:ZR)REE MEMESFE
disclosed in Note 8. B KT FES IR BE o
The emoluments in respect of the other two (2021: two) EREMME (ZE_—F :WE) A
individuals are as follows: TzMemT:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Bz HE
—E-= —E-—fF
+=ZA=+—-B +=ZR=+—H
IEEE WFFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARBTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %4 2B R E M EWEF 1,603 2,177
Retirement scheme contributions RRFTEIERK 75 47
1,678 2,224
The emoluments of the two (2021: two) individuals who ME (ZE-—F WB)WIIHFEEE
are not directors and who are amongst the five highest BRAEERLZESEH AT ZERIA
paid individuals of the Group are within the following T2 HMN U TR :
bands:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZ BE
—E-= B —fF
+=-A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HFE FFE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A#
HKD Nil to HKD 1,000,000 T 721,000,000 7T 2 =
HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 1,000,001 7L £ 1,500,000/ 7T =

HESHEEXERERDA
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I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

10 HE2mEW =

(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other (a) EBEHMPEWEEEHBBE 2N
comprehensive income B
Year ended 31 December 2022 Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-B-"ET-A=1-HLEE BE-S--E+-A=T-ALEE
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax  Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount  expense amount amount expense amount
BRBiEA nksiE  REER NBHE
€8 HEEX BeH 8  BERX heH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARMTT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
(Note 26(b)) (Note 26(b))
(Kt26(b)) (Kii26(0))
Surplus on revaluation of ~ EfHEE ALK
land and buildings held ~ BF 7 &8
for own use (see Note 12) (R Hf#12) 124,707 (31,177) 93,530 106,081 (26,177) 79,904
Other financial assets net Eft&BEELA
movement in the fair HEZE3E
value reserve (18,915) - (18,915) 88,200 - 88,200
Exchange differences BERETIEE
on translation into EHEH
presentation currency 2,661 - 2,661 (16,373) - (16,373)
Other comprehensive E2EkE
income 108,453 (31,177) 77,276 177,908 (26,177) 151,731
(b) Components of other comprehensive income, by Hizrmb=mzon (BEEFHH
including reclassification adjustments. HAE) -
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Bz HE
—E-C —E-—fF
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
ILFE FFE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARKE T
Equity investments measured at BOABEFERHEHTA
FVOCI Hit 2 E RS2 RAE S
Changes in fair value recognised during FRERZ A1 EEE
the year (18,915) 88,200
Reclassified to accumulated losses upon HEEEF D IEE RHEE
disposal 7,382 =

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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222



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

11 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company of RMB361,737,000 (2021: loss
of RMB367,967,000) and the weighted average
number of 2,326,763,000 ordinary and convertible
preference shares (2021: 2,326,763,000 ordinary
and convertible preference shares) in issue during
the year.

The holder of the convertible preference shares
is entitled to receive the same rate of dividends/
distributions as the holders of ordinary shares.
Accordingly, for the purpose of the calculation of
basic loss per share, the convertible preference
shares issued have been included in the calculation
of the weighted average number of shares in issue.

Diluted loss per share

The calculation of diluted loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company of RMB361,737,000 (2021: loss
of RMB367,967,000) and the weighted average
number of 2,326,763,000 ordinary and convertible
preference shares (diluted) (2021: 2,326,763,000
ordinary and convertible preference shares
(diluted)).

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

—E - —HF —HA=+—HIFE
(BRIFFHFHEH TAUAREZZ])

11 BEREARARBEER

(a)

(b)

BREXRER
ERERBEDERARRRK
RIE(5EE AR361,737,000
T(ZE-—F BFERARE
367,967,00070) M R AR FEANE
EE 17 INHE 9 22,326,763,000
T @R R mRELR (ZF
— —4%:2,326,763,000/% & i@
A& K AT A AR 1B S AR ) o

ABEREEREA AGEIRE
ERERFEAABRZLERER
BB/ 7k B et B
EXEEMS  FEERTRN
IEFEE D AR EITA

P8 S B

BERE#EESR

EREEHBNZEAQTRRE
B BB AR #361,737,000
BT(ZEZ—F BEAER
#367,967,0007T ) JA K i & IR
N AT R % (B o IR 2 INAE 19
2,326,763,0000% (#58) (==
——%:2,326,763,000/% & @
A% R ] AR B S Ak (BESE) ) Ef

s
H o
A

HESHEEXERERDA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

12 MERRZRE

Residential
Land and  properties held
buildings held ~ for own use
forownuse carried at cost Properties Furniture,
carried at fair ~ and leasehold leased for ~fixtures and Motor  Construction in
value  improvements own use equipment vehicles progress Total
BREASIEZ
NRRE5IR KEER
ZEfEER iz &R
1HREF REENERE ARAENE RERRE ERIE ERIE ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFT AEEFT AEEFT AEEFT AEETT AEETT AEEFT
Cost or valuation; ﬁﬂiiﬁiﬁ '
At 1 January 2022 R-E--#-8-H 2,844,000 253,111 257,720 80,924 1,497 4,494 3,441,746
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 83 - 1,552 - - 1,595
Additions AE - 1,690 1212 2,613 - 313419 318,994
Disposals RE = (82,379) (3,239) (55.479) (846) - (141,983)
Transfer in/{out) g1/ () 157,084 - - 361 - (304,342) (146,897)
Reclassification from investment BRENEENI B
property (see Note 12(b)f}) (RHE1200) 1,064,553 - - - - - 1,064,553
Redlassification to investment property FIREMNEEH 758
(see Note 12(b)i) (ZHF120)i) (344,439) - - - - - (344,439)
Surplus on revaluation (see Note 10) 1337%‘?“ (A1) 124,707 - - - - - 124,707
Less: elimination of BHRE
accumulated depreciation (111,545) - - - - - (111,545)
At 31 December 2022 RIZZZFETZR=T-R 3734360 172,465 255,753 29971 651 13,571 4,206,771
Representing: b-H
Cost A - 172,465 255,753 29911 651 13571 anam
Valuation - 31 December 2022 hE-—%--%
T-A=t-H 3,734,360 - - - - - 3,734,360
3,734,360 172,465 255,753 29911 651 1357 4,206,771
Less: accumulated depreciation  : B TERAEHE
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2022 R-Z-—£-f-H = 198,025 29,922 78,086 780 - 306,813
Exchange adjustments A% - 43 - 1,552 - - 1,595
Charge for the year TEEHE 111,545 2,098 30,889 7.2 13 - 151,926
Written back on disposals REREMD - (64,773) (1,975) (58,309) (703) - (125,760)
Elimination on revaluation BfREH (111,545) - - - - - (111,545)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZE+ZR=1-A - 135,393 58,836 28,550 250 - 223,029
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2022 RIZZZETIA=T-B 3734360 37,0m 196,917 1421 401 13,571 3,083,742

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 MERRE (&)

Residential
Landand  properties held
buildings held for own use

forown use  carried at cost Furniture,
carried at fair ~ and leasehold  Properties leased fixtures and Construction in
value  improvements for own use equipment  Motor vehicles progress Total
REATI
WA B3 fEER
ZF{EER frznz Bk
1HRET REENZRE EREENE  RERER EHTA ERIR A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARBTr ARERTr ARETn  ARETI

Cost or valuation; A
At 1 January 2021 RZE--%-f-H 2,844,000 325,343 115,213 90,744 1223 233 3,376,756
Exchange adjustments i HE - (14) - (489) - - (503)
Additions NE - - 197,514 3,145 428 4,495 205,582
Disposals RE = (72,218) (55,007) (12,476) (154) (234) (140,089)
Surplus on revaluation (see Note 10)  BfEE8 (ZH#10) 106,081 = = = s - 106,081
Less: elimination of W EHBHE
accumulated depreciation (106,081) - - - - - (106,081)
At 31 December 2021 RZB--F+-f=1-H 2,844,000 253,111 257,720 80,924 1,497 4,49 3,441,746
Representing: b-H
Cost BA = 253,111 257,720 80,924 1,497 4,49 597,746
Valuation - 31 December 2021 mE-—%--%
+ZA=1-R 2,844,000 - - - - - 2,844,000
2,844,000 253,111 257,720 80,924 1,497 4,49 3,441,746
Less: accumulated depreciation i R HERFEESE
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2021 R-E-_-%-f-H = 249,034 44,880 83,655 736 - 378,305
Exchange adjustments EH A= = (14) = (489) - = (503)
Charge for the year TEEHE 106,081 12,950 29,53 7,39 186 - 156,145
Written back on disposals RERED - (63,945) (44.490) (12,476) (142) - (121,053)
Elimination on revaluation BfREH (106,081) - - - - - (106,081)
At 31 December 2021 RZE--F+-f=1-H = 198,025 29,922 78,086 780 - 306,813
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2021 RZE_-F+-fA=1-H 2,844,000 55,086 227,198 2,838 717 4,49 3,134,933
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value
of the Group’s land and buildings and
investment properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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—E - —HF —HA=+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(BRIFZHER BRIUKARKEZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment properties (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(a)

12 NERSEE(H)
BANEFIRZ L HRETR

REWMEZAARERNE (F)

(i) AREER(E)
Fair value measurements

categorised into Level 3

DPEABB=RZAAEFTE

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R=ZB==fF R_ZT_—F
t=A=+—-B +t=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%Frx AREF T
Recurring fair REMDIARETE
value measurements
Land and buildings held for Blea At RETF
own use 3,734,360 2,844,000
Investment properties wEME (AHEE13)
(see Note 13) 728,772 1,265,300

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
there was no transfer between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3
(2021: no transfer). The Group’'s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

BE_Z2__F+ = HA

=+—BLEFE WESE
— R AR ER K
BAFEHE=RA(=ZF
—FEER) - KAEE
ZBRRNEEER 2 W
FHRERAAEBRS
D E B o

HESHEEXERERDA
SRR

227



228

Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment properties (continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

All of the Group’s land and buildings carried
at fair value and investment properties
were revalued as at 31 December 2022.
The valuations were carried out by Newland
Appraisals Limited (31 December 2021:
Roma Appraisals Limited), an independent
professional qualified valuer. The valuer has
recent experience in the location and category
of properties being valued. The Group's
Financial Controller has discussions with the
external valuer on the valuation assumptions,
techniques, inputs and valuation results when
the valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

As at 31 December 2022, there has been
a change in valuation technigue used from
market comparison approach to discounted
cash flow approach since the current economic
conditions, whereby the relevant markets
became less active and the market evidence
became less available and reliable and the
directors of the Company believe discounted
cash flow approach is more representative
of fair value in the current circumstance. The
directors of the Company considered that the
change in valuation technique has not resulted
in a material impact on the valuation of these
properties.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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12 MERRE (&)

(a) BAREIRZLHREFR
REWMEZNARERE (F)

(i)

AREER (&)

AEBFMEEREAREIER
ZETHEREFUREER
MER_ZE-__F+=
A=+—B#{TEM %
HERBLEXEERM
B FEEEEEET
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+=—A=+—H:&FH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 MERRE (E)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and () BAREIRZLIHEREFR
buildings carried at fair value and REMEZANAETE (&)
investment properties (continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used in (i) E=RAAETEFEAH
Level 3 fair value measurements ZIEEFERBA S5 E
&
As at 31 December 2022 Valuation techniques Significant unobservable input Range
R-ZB-Zf+-A=t-A HER EXTUERGAER ik
Land and buildings held for own use Discounted cash Risk-adjusted discount rate 6%
flow approach
FEERLMRET ARFEREE R BAER X
Expected market rental growth 4.5%
EHmEESER
Market monthly rent rate (per RMB63 ~
sqm) RMB335
mE AR (FF¥7XK) AR¥63TE
ARM3357T
Market comparison Average market unit 14,000
approach sale rate (per sqm)
s B FHmEMER (BFAK)
Investment properties-ownership  Discounted cash Risk-adjusted discount rate 6%
interests flow approach
in land and buildings
RENE-THREFZ HREENE) R A BAIRE
BREES
Expected market rental growth 4.5%
TR Ytk b
Market monthly rent rate (per RMB251 ~
sqm) RMB253
mE AR (BTHK) AR¥2B1TE
ARM¥2537T
As at 31 December 2021 Valuation techniques Significant unobservable input Range
RZB_—4$+-A=1—H EYERD ERTABREAER I
RMB
AR
Land and buildings held for own use Market comparison Average market unit sale 12,000 ~
approach rate (per sqm) 51,000
FEERLHEET 5L BA FHAmSELER (FXAK)
Investment properties-ownership ~ Market comparison Average market unit sale 28,173
interests in land and buildings approach rate (per sqm)
&f#@%—iﬂﬂ&%?Z s L BOA FHmELER (BFAK)
EREER

i L )
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B %5 8 = M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment properties (continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used

in Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The fair value of certain land and buildings
carried at fair value and investment
properties-ownership interests in land and
buildings located in the PRC is determined
by discounting a projected cash flow series
associated with the properties using risk-
adjusted discount rates. The valuation takes
into account expected market rental growth
and estimated rental value of the respective
properties. The discount rates used have been
adjusted for the quality and location of the
buildings and the tenant credit quality. The
fair value measurement is positively correlated
to the expected market rental growth
and estimated rental value and negatively
correlated to the risk-adjusted discount rate.

The fair value of certain land and buildings
carried at fair value located in the PRC
is determined using market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price
of comparable properties on a price per
square meter basis in the relevant market.
Comparable properties of similar size,
characteristics and location are analysed and
selected for each property in order to arrive at
a fair comparison of their fair values. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to
the average market unit sale rate.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

12 NERSEE(H)
BANEFIRZ L HRETR

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of land and (a)

buildings carried at fair value and
investment properties (continued)

REWMEZAARERNE (F)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used (i) E=RAAETEFEAH
in Level 3 fair value measurements ZIEEFERBA S5 E
(continued) B (E)

Fair value adjustment of investment properties WEMEZ AR BERAER
is recognised in the line item “valuation gain HEBERRZIREME
on investment property” on the face of the EKE ] BRAER -
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Surplus/deficit on revaluation of properties BFIEERAMEZ GRS
held for own use are recognised in other BAR (MESHREE] A
comprehensive income in “property HRAHMEE WS -
revaluation reserve”.

All the gains/losses recognised in profit or loss REEERBERZFABIK
for the year arise from the properties held at W/ EEETERSHR
the end of the reporting period. RBEZ2ME-

(iii) Depreciated cost of land and buildings (iii) ARAEIIRZIFEEA
held for own use carried at fair value T REFITELR

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
N-—ZB—— R-EFE——4F
+=A=+—-8 +=A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Fr ARETFT
Had the revalued land and AR RESIR 2 Efb T
buildings carried at fair value MEFUARNBRFTE
been carried at cost less RREEEY R REE
accumulated depreciation and 1§ 4
impairment losses, the carrying
amount would have been 2,574,322 1,549,878

HESHEEXERERDA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(b) Reclassification between investment
property with property and equipment

(i)

(i)

Reclassification from investment
property to property and equipment

In a view to adjust the operations of the re-
opened department store, the Group used
certain areas of its shopping mall for sale of
goods to customers instead of leasing to third
parties from 31 December 2022. The above
change in use resulted in the reclassification
of these areas from investment property to
property and equipment. On the date of
reclassification, the fair value of these areas
recognised under investment property was
RMB1,064,553,000, which was determined
based on a valuation carried out by the same
valuer using the same valuation technique as
mentioned in Notes 12(a)(i) and 12(a)(ii) above,
and is deemed to be the property’s initial cost
for subsequent accounting under property and
equipment.

Reclassification from property and
equipment to investment property

In a view to adjust the operations of the re-
opened department store, the Group used
certain areas of its shopping mall for lease
to third parties instead of selling of goods to
customers from 31 December 2022. The above
change in use resulted in the reclassification
of these areas from property and equipment
to investment property. On the date of
reclassification, the fair value of these areas
recognised under property and equipment
was RMB344,439,000, which was determined
based on a valuation carried out by the same
valuer using the same valuation technique as
mentioned in Notes 12(a)(i) and 12(a)(ii) above,
and is deemed to be the property’s initial cost
for subsequent accounting under investment

property.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(c) Right-of-use assets

() EREEE

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

BRIDMT :

12 MERRE (&)

(GIHFZEHER BRIAAREZS)

EREEEREFERBBEEE

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-g=-= NZT=Z—F
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ft it AR¥F AREFT
Ownership interests in RAEBENAAARBEYERZ
leasehold land and buildings BHEEBRZHEE T
held for own use, carried REF2HBEEER
at fair value in PRC, with MiA s2 THEEAN T
remaining lease term 10E50%F
between 10 and 50 years (i) 3,734,360 2,844,000
Residential properties held BITEKRATERZ
for own use carried at BIEEBREEM
depreciated cost (if) 8,226 13,317
Properties leased for own use, &ZITERK AT ER 2
carried at depreciated cost EREEYE (iii) 196,917 227,798
205,143 241,115
Ownership interests in REEREYMHE 2SR
leasehold investment R EARET
property, carried at fair value, BR - A THHEAN F
with remaining lease term 10E504F
between 10 and 50 years (i) 728,772 1,265,300
4,668,275 4,350,415

HESHEEXERERDA
SRR
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12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 8 = M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

Right-of-use assets (continued) (c)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

12 MERRE (&)

EREEE (&)
ERREaERCHERIAR
DT :

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

BZE HE

—EC-C—F —E-—F
t=A=+t—-8 +t=A=+—"H

LHFEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARKF T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use  1ZiH & E I &5 &K H
assets by class of underlying asset:  #EEEFESZ L :
Ownership interests in leasehold land R/ B AR 7 B8R 2 £ 1E
and buildings held for own use BER HAELTHNEFT Y
carried at fair value in PRC HEEEER 111,545 106,081
Residential properties held for own  &¥TERK A5 IR 2 #H{EE A
use carried at depreciated cost FEMHE 223 437
Properties leased for own use, carried 1RITERAF|BR > B REE
at depreciated cost IES 30,889 29,532
142,657 136,050
Interest on lease liabilities MEBGBZAE (KFit6@a))
(see Note 6(a)) 17,931 9,442
Expense relating to leases of low- HEBEEEHEES@ANHA
value assets, excluding short-term T BEREEEEMNE
leases of low-value assets HMEE 440 470

During the year ended 31 December 2022, additions
to right-of-use assets were RMB1,272,000. This
amount primarily related to the capitalised lease
payments payable under new tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities and the future
cash outflows arising from leases that are not yet
commenced are set out in Notes 21(c), 25 and 30,
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(c) Right-of-use assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Ownership interests in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use and in
leasehold investment property

The Group holds several commercial buildings
for its department stores and shopping mall
operation business. The Group is the registered
owner of these property interests, including
the whole and part of undivided share in
the underlying land. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire these property
interests from their previous registered
owners, and there are no ongoing payments
to be made under the terms of contract for
assignment.

Residential properties held for own use
carried at depreciated cost

The Group holds several residential properties.
The Group is the registered owner of these
property interests, including the whole and
part of undivided share in the underlying land.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire these property interests from their
previous registered owners, and there are
no ongoing payments to be made under the
terms of contract for assignment.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its retail stores through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 1 to 15 years. Lease payments
are usually increased every 1 to 3 years to
reflect market rentals.

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

—E - —HF —HA=+—HIFE
(BRIFFHFHEH TAUAREZZ])

12 NERSEE(H)
() HREEE(#)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

HEERZHEL B RE
FREEREWRZHER
EER
AEBERAHEBEET
WREBERSRESE
B AEERZEMERE
TNELCHEAA BREE
AL eBREs RS
BB D o AR E TR 5T XA
—EBRIE LB EHAT
A ARBEZEYERE
@ AW ERBEZES D
RFRAFF B SN IR -

BRITERA IR ZHEE
BiEEYF
AEERAEETEEY
X AEERZLEMERE
SHNEREAA BEE
At eB kB RD
BP0 o A EE TR 5 XA
—ZBNIE LB EME
it 5 B A W BB "% 1) <
@m- B EREEREQ QD
R BN IE -

ERHEEYX
AEED B BHEE HhEE
BEREMOEERET
EEZEN-BHE—RD
PRP-E+TAF-HE
NRBEE—E=F15
M ARRTSHEE -
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12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(d) Title ownership

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 8 = M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(d)

As at the date of this report, the Group was
in the progress of applying for registration of
the ownership certificates for certain of its
properties. The aggregate carrying value of
such properties as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately RMB8,226,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB13,317,000). The directors are of the opinion
the Group is entitled to lawfully own and occupy

these properties.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

12 MERRE (&)

XHEFERE

RABREBE  AEEEEAHE
ETYVERBELBEEE -
ZEMER=—_E_—_F+=A
=+t RAZBEEEANARE
8,226,000 (ZE - —F+ =
A=+—8: AR#%13,317,000
L)  EERAR AEEEESE
EERARGRZEDE-

13 REWE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZE HE
—E—-_= —E-—4F
t=A=+—-HB +t=—A=t+—H
LLtFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARMTFIT
Valuation: {8 :
At 1 January R—H—H 1,347,798 1,265,300
Transfer in from construction WEETIREA
in progress 146,897 =
Additions NE = 82,498
Disposals RE (82,498) -
Reclassification to property and ENOBEMEREE
equipment (see Note 12(b)(i)) (R HaE12(b)() (1,064,553) =
Reclassification from property and ERJEINE TR I
equipment (see Note 12(b)(ii)) ( B BtaE12(b)ii)) 344,439 -
Fair value adjustments N EFHE 36,689 -
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H 728,772 1,347,798

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 10 years, with an option to renew
the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased every
1 to 3 years to reflect market rentals. Certain leases
include variable lease payment terms that are based on

the revenue of tenants.
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13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the end of the reporting

14

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EHEH

BRIAAREZ3)

REWME (&)
RIS - A % BARET 7 BUHE
RGN KRS 2 R RBE

period will be receivable by the Group in future periods FKIBMAT
as follows:
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
N-—ZB_—— R-EFE——4F
t=A=+—8 +t=—A=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARKF T
Within 1 year —FE R 11,276 47,047
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFR 5,534 133,883
After 5 years hFi& 304 -
17,114 180,930
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BREE
Trademark
[GE:
RMB’000
ARKF T
Cost: A
At 1 January 2021 R—_E-_—F—H—H 424,812
Additions NE 100,000
At 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 and RZEBE-_—F+_A=+—8"
31 December 2022 B2 F—A—HK
—E-_—_F+=-A=+—H 524,812
Less: accumulated impairment losses W RETREREE
At 1 January 2021 RZE=——F—H—H 215,166
Impairment losses BEEE 35,000
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—HEK
—F-—~4F—H—H 250,166
Impairment losses (see Note 15(b)) BIEEE (ZHE150)) 30,164
At 31 December 2022 KRB —F+-_A=+—H 280,330
Carrying amount: FREE :
At 31 December 2022 R-ZEBE-_—_F+=-_A=+—H 244,482

At 31 December 2021

RZBE-_—F+-_A=+—H

274,646

HESHEEXERERDA

—-—5FH

237



Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

RILEE (&)

4 45 R R IR A AT (8 R 4R 2
AE - REBYAERBNT 2 EE
BERBRTBEBARESEE
EESTEEY L3t

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 14

Intangible assets represented trademarks with indefinite
useful life. These are allocated to the Group's cash-
generating units identified according to the department
store and supermarket operations as follows:

Country of operation and At At
operating segments 31 December 31 December
EBERRREED IR 2022 2021
R=ZBZZF R-_ZT-—F
+=A=+—-B t-A=1t—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARKF T
Century Ginwa Company Ltd. Department stores and
("Ginwa Bell Tower") shopping mall, PRC - 30,164
LS ERMERAG ([EEE]) BERSEEDF L R E
Golden Chance (Xian) Limited Department stores and
("GCX") shopping mall, PRC 69,802 69,802
BEBSEBYTL TEH
Ideal Mix Limited Department stores and shopping
mall and supermarkets, PRC 74,680 74,680
BERESREDT O HE
FEAR TS P E
Trademark-use-right of the trademark
"Ginwa" (see Note (a)) 100,000 100,000
[SfE] MR EIRERE (RRT@E)
244,482 274,646

Note: i 5t :

(a) AEEZERR 2] 22 8BER

The Group enjoys the entire rights and interest in and to

the trademark “Ginwa”, free and clear of any restriction,
which result in the Group having the right, for itself and/
or to license to other third parties, to use the trademark
for any other newly opened shopping malls, department
stores and supermarkets. Accordingly, the intangible asset
is regarded by the Group as having an indefinite useful
life. It has been carried out impairment testing at the end
of the reporting period by testing all of the Group’s cash-
generating units together with goodwill and intangible
assets include in the carrying amount.

Details of impairment tests relating to for cash-generating
units containing goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful life are set out in Note 15.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(GIHFZEHER BRIAAREZS)

15 GOODWILL 15 B8
RMB’000
AR®F T
Cost: R
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, R-_ZE-_—F—H—H —&——
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 +=—A=+—"HB —f=——_F—
A-BR=ZF-_Z_+=ZA=+—H 1,451,814
Less: accumulated impairment losses A RETREEER
At 1 January 2021 R-—_E-_—F—HF—H 1,379,685
Impairment losses VRN SR 37,000
At 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 and RZEBE-_—F+_-_A=+—H8"
31 December 2022 B2 _F—A—HK
—E-_—_F+-A=+—H 1,416,685
Carrying amount: BRMEE:
At 31 December 2022 N—_E-_—_F+=-_F=+—8H 35,129

At 31 December 2021

Impairment tests for cash-generating units

containing goodwill and intangible assets with

indefinite useful life

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units identified according to the department store and

RZBE-_—F+_-_A=+—H 35,129

BERERESRUCAFH &
REEZRESELENZHENR

BERENTAEE 2 BERS RS
AMSEBHEEANEEZERAIR

supermarket operations acquired as follows: S EHEBEA:
Country of operation and At At
operating segments 31 December 31 December
EBERREE DI 2022 2021
R=ZT=Z W_TB-—%F
+=A=+—-B t-A=1t—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETT
Ginwa Bell Tower Department stores and
shopping mall, PRC - -
TEiEE BEESLBYHRL FEH
GCX Department stores and
shopping mall, PRC - -
BEBSEBYTL T EH
Ideal Mix Limited Department stores and shopping
mall and supermarkets, PRC 35,129 35,129
BEBSEEYH LR
MRS P
35,129 35,129

HESHEEXERERDA
SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

15 GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment tests for cash-generating units

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

15 B8 (&
HEEEREHNRTEAFHZE

containing goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful life (continued)

Notes:

REEZREEAEMZRENR
(#&)
Fifat -

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the financial
performance of the Group’s department store and
supermarket operations, as a consequence of the slowing
down of economic growth in the PRC as well as a
consequence of the intense competition from surrounding
shopping malls and online retail sales, did not meet
management’s expectations. Management performed
impairment assessments of the relevant cash-generating
units to which goodwill and intangible assets has been
allocated.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
were determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. These cash flow projections adopted the
annualised rates of sales growth ranging from 0% to 35%
(2021: from — 0% to 5%), which are based on the Group’s
historical experience with these operations and adjusted
for other factors that are specific to each cash-generating
unit including the renovation and upgrade of the GCX
which will position the department store in the high-
end market where the Group will be capable of reaching
out to a wider and more premium customer base after
their grand re-openings. Management determined that
the GCX will be re-opened in January 2023. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an
estimated growth rate of 2% (2021: 3%). The cash flows
are discounted using discount rate of 16% (2021: 16%).
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the respective cash-generating units.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

15 GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill and intangible assets with

indefinite useful life (continued) (&)
Notes:(continued) Bt it
(b)  As a result of the above impairment test, impairment loss (b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

B —HF+_HA=+—HIFE
(BRIFFHFHEH TAUAREZZ])

15 & (&)

on intangible assets of RMB30,164,000 were recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
current financial year which relates to the cash-generating
unit of Ginwa Bell Tower acquired in August 2008.

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations
for the above three cash-generating units are as follows:

BERERENRUCEAFH S
REEZRESELENVZRENR

: (&)
& EREANR BPEEZRE

B8 A R #30,164,0007T 1A 2N B X
FEMGREGEERAER SRR
ZEENFENANESEEE R
SELEM-

E=EREELABUNERER
ST EPTE A B B ARt e T

At At
31 December 31 December
Key assumptions 2022 2021
RZB-=—F RZZT—_—F
ZEAE +=ZA=t—H +ZA=+—H
Ginwa Bell Tower Annual sales growth rate for the first 0% — 5% 0% — 5%
five-year period
BIEEE BELFHENFHEERE
Annual sales growth rate after the 2% 3%
five-year period
HFERARBRHNFHERREK
Discount rate 16% 16%
B K
GCX Annual sales growth rate for the first 0% — 5% 0% — 5%
five-year period
BELFHENFHEERE
Annual sales growth rate after the 2% 3%
five-year period
TFRARBREFHERERE
Discount rate 16% 16%
BT XK
Ideal Mix Limited Annual sales growth rate for the first 0% —35% 0%
five-year period
ELFHENFHEERE
Annual sales growth rate after the 2% 3%
five-year period
TFRARBRMNFHERREK
Discount rate 16% 16%

85T %

Any adverse change in the assumptions used in the
calculation of recoverable amount of cash-generating
units would result in further impairment losses.

AHEReES B O SR
P B R R A ER AR Z B S E AL
E—TRERBE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 REMERE
The following list contains only the particulars of THRESHINEFEXEAEEEXE B
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets EsfaE B AR E-

or liabilities of the Group.

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERLLH
Place of Particulars of The Group's
establishment  registered and paid ~  effective Held by the Held by
Name of companies and operations up capital interest ~ Company subsidiaries  Principal activities  Legal form
HAAT
ALK gk AREz @ARE  WELE
CEL X% HRRxER  BRER L) i) IERR  RERA
Ginwa Bell Tower* £7EE 1 The PRC RMBAR®  83.88% - 8388% Operation o~ Limited liability
235,500,00070 department store  company
REnEmS BREELT
Xi'an Century Ginwa Saigo Shopping ~ The PRC RMB AR 100% - 100% Operation o Limited liability
Mall Company Limited* 30,000,0007c department store ~ company
RZtEREEERENARAT HERSES  BRALAT
Xi'an Century Ginwa Shopping Mall ~ The PRC % HKS 65,000,000 100% - 100% Operation of ~ Limited liability
Company Limited* BT department store ~ company
ARt e tRNERRA HERSES  BRALAT
Xianyang Century Ginwa Trade and ~ The PRC % RMB AR 100% - 100% Operation of  Limited liability
Commerce Company Limited* 3,000,007 department  company
ARt EeEAEERAR storesand  AREFLHE
supermarkets
REnemsRE
B
Xi‘an Yixin Property Management The PRC R & RMB AR 100% - 100% Properties  Limited liability
Company Limited* 536,885,7507C management  company
BZEENFERERAT NEEE  BRELAT
Shaanxi Qianhui Properties The PRC RMB AR 100% - 100% Operation of  Limited liability
Company Limited* 252,800,0007 shopping mall ~ company
RETEEXARAR and properties  AREFAF
management
mEBENTLR
VESE
Xi'an Honghui Property Management  The PRC 1 RMB AR 100% - 100% Properties  Limited liability
Company Limited* 124,000,0007 management  company
AL EENZERERAT NXEE  BRELLT
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

* The English translation of the names of these companies is

Notes to the Financial Statements
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for reference only. The official names of these companies

are in Chinese.

The following table lists out the information relating
to Ginwa Bell Tower, the only subsidiary of the Group
which has material non-controlling interests (“NCI"”).
The summarised financial information presented below

— = — —

S ——

4 Ny

4\

AN

16 REMEBLTF (&)

Fr_A=+—HILFE
(GIHFZEHER BRIAAREZS)

FRAIZHXFELEHRZET %
Al Z IER B AP XA -

TREFIAEEE—FEERNIER
o ([FERER) 2HBRRE
TEERBEMZER - TX25 2875
BRI R ARAAER R B REEE

represents the amounts before any inter-company -
elimination.
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZE HE
—E—-= —E-—F
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
IEFE WEFEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBF T
Revenue g =5 136 17,211
Loss for the year REEEIE (106,725) (83,598)
Loss for the year attributable to NCI 7N 4F & 3F 22 B 4 25 e 15 /&5 18 (17,204) (13,476)
Non-current assets EMEBEE 1,458,826 1,541,197
Current assets MBEE 509,646 523,394
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (180,000) (444,000)
Current liabilities nEBaE (1,594,961) (1,301,877)
Net assets BEFE 193,511 318,714
Net assets attributable to NCI JEIER S B E E TR 31,194 51,377

HESHEEXERERDA
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I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

17 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF

PROPERTIES

17 WIBYI R 2 AN =R

RMB’000

ARKF T

At 1 January 2021 R-_ZE-—F—HF—8H 1,555,682

Additions NE 426,471
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZBE-_—F+_A=+—"HEFK

—FE-—4F—H—H 1,982,153

Additions NE 146,790

At 31 December 2022 R-_EBE-__—_F+-_A=+—H 2,128,943

The amounts represent partial payments made by
the Group for its intended acquisition of commercial
properties under development that are situated in the
PRC. On 4 December 2014, the Group, through Ginwa
Bell Tower, entered into an acquisition agreement with
Shanghai Huade Investment Company Limited (“Huade
Investment”), pursuant to which Huade Investment
agreed to procure a project company to develop the
above properties in accordance with the requirements
of Ginwa Bell Tower, and Ginwa Bell Tower agreed to
purchase part of the above properties for an aggregate
consideration of RMB1,651,112,750. The substantial
construction of the commercial properties commenced in
October 2016. These properties are intended to be used
by the Group to expand its retail operations.

Included in the additions are the capitalised interest
expense and the consideration settled based on the
contract.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

—E - —HF —HA=+—HIFE
(BRIFFHFHEH TAUAREZZ])

18 EQUITY INVESTMENTS 18 #EmKRE
Equity securities designated at FVOCI (non- () EERRAAEBEFEEHSH
recycling) FFAREMEZERE (R 8HE)
ZRAES
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
RN=-Z—— N-E——
+=A=+—-8 +tZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFT
Listed equity securities T RE AR 5 206,491 255,900

(b)

These securities represent the 26,439,300 (31
December 2021: 30,000,000) Ginwa Enterprise
(Group) Inc. (“Ginwa Enterprise”) A-shares listed
in the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The Company
obtained the approval from the Shareholders
on 7 July 2022, which allow the Company to
dispose the A-Shares (in whole or in part) when
market condition is favourable during a period
of 12 months from the date of the approval. The
Company disposed 3,560,700 A-shares through on-
market transactions on 16 December 2022.

Financial assets measured at FVPL

(b)

ZEBEHEERLERGR A
226,439,300k (ZE=—
#+ - A=+—H :30,000,000
BleEetE (EB) AR ([£
TELE]) AR -ARRIER=Z
T EFE+ A BERERE:
31 A NN 1S = B= e
+ZEARNEMRAEFETLEA
R (2EHEHD) cARF R
T —F+-RA+NBEATS
5 3,560, 700A% AR ©

BRAREFEBEESBHTAE
HZEHMEE

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-E=-— N—E = —4F
t=A=+—-RB t=—A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TF T AREF T
Unlisted investment fund at fair value 1% 72 &%l 8E 2
ELMIREES 14,675 16,639

On 30 December 2020, the Group entered into
a subscription agreement pursuant to which the
Group has subscribed for the participating shares
in an unlisted investment fund (the “Fund”) for
an aggregate amount of HK$17,000,000 which
was equivalent to RMB14,307,000. The investment
objective of the Fund is to achieve steady and long-
term returns through investment of commercial real
estate projects in the PRC.

RZZE_ZEF+_A=+8"
AEBTYRERRE Bt
AEBERIELTREES
(B2 z28RMHBEEH
17,000,000/8 7T ' HHE R AR
14,307,0007C ° 2 E & KK E B
EREBETHIREHERME
HERGBEBENMKIREH-

HESHEEXERERDA
SRR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

18 EQUITY INVESTMENTS (continued) 18 EZRBRE (&)
(b) Financial assets measured at FVPL (continued) (b) BAARBEEBREESHTAE
m2EREE (&)
On 21 February 2023, the Group disposed RZZBE_=F_A-+—H 'K
total participating shares to a third party with a EBR-—RE=FHELH2HE
consideration of HK$17,000,000. f&% 15 - K& A&17,000,00078 It ©
19 INVENTORIES 19 78
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

RZBEZ=—F R-_ZT—_—F
t=A=+—8 +t=A=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBF T

Merchandises [ 19,921 22,498
Low value consumables KE S %Fm 2,129 2,025

22,050 24,523
An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an R EBRSTWIAGEBRRRZIFE
expense and included in the consolidated statement of RO

profit or loss is as follows:

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

RZB-=—F RT—_—%F
+=A=+—H +t=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Frx ARBFT

Carrying amount of inventories sold 2 &7 SKREE 197,760 215,501

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 FEURBR Fh & E b FE W FX

At At

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R=-ZE—— N-ZE——4F
+=—HA=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%F AREFT

Trade receivables from third parties, FEULEE = 77 BR X HIBR B8 B

net of loss allowance (see Note 20(a)) ( B Hfat20(a)) 12,481 26,227
Other receivables from third parties Hib W E = HIE 6,489 5,660
Financial assets measured at REHKATECEMEE

amortised cost 18,970 31,887
Value added tax recoverable AR R IEE T 21,014 12,044
Deposits bieee o 82,009 15,664

121,993 59,595
Except for deposits of RMB1,781,000 (31 December BRize AR¥1,781,000c (ZE=—
2021: RMB1,782,000), all of the trade and other F+=—H=+—H: AKE¥1,782,000
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as 7T ) A+ B W BR R B B At FE W SR TR
expenses within one year. HER—FAKE S ERAZ L -

@mﬁﬁﬁfgﬂzﬁﬁ e 247
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
(a) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade

receivables (net of loss allowance) with the
following ageing analysis (based on the invoice

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

20 FEURER IR % H 1t FE W X
(%)
(a) @D
PN e AL
W (BHREREE) RS
e SRR EE [ B BE B AT N

date) as of the end of the reporting period: N
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-ZBZ=-F RZT=——F
t=A=t—-8 t=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARBFT
Less than 1 month LR —1E A 6,132 4,138

More than 1 month but less than ~ —1{& A LA 1B DR =1E A

3 months 5,633 7,020
More than 3 months =@AMNE 716 15,069
12,481 26,227

Trade receivables from third parties are due within 3
months from the date of billing. Further details on
the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
trade debtors are set out in Note 29(a).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_—ZFE—-—#+_-HA=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

(GIHFZEHER BRIAAREZS)

21 BTEERFERS

() RERRESEHRBBRE:

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R=-=F—— RZTZ—%F
+=—HA=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARETFIT
Cash at bank and on hand in A MEIRNRRIB TN IRTTER
the consolidated statement of kFEEE
financial position 19,542 36,520
Less: restricted cash at bank B XRIRITIR®
(see Note (i) (BHEG)) (8,058) (6,277)
Cash and cash equivalents in the GZaREREX2EHER
consolidated cash flow statement Eﬁ/i\%f 15 § 11,484 30,243
Note: &% -
(i) Restricted cash at bank at 31 December 2022 mainly (i) N-E-_—_F#+-_A=+—H

represented bank deposits of RMB2,715,000 (31
December 2021: RMB1,012,000) pledged to secure
the Group’s bank loans (see Note 24(c)).

The Group’s operations of department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC are
conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of RMB out of
Mainland China is subject to the relevant rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

E’]fﬁﬁ‘xﬁﬁ%ﬂfﬁiixhﬁj

154 & B R 17 B 3 & 17
B’JfEfﬂ‘ XA R 2,715,000
T(ZE=Z—F+=ZA=+—
H: AR¥1,012,0007T) (R
Mf3E24(c)) °

AEBRFEZEERS B
YRR KB AR T IR & 5 TD
RARBETT ARBAIESR
MR E R i E o E A e
A R & SRS AR BT
#REY A BESNEE HI48 Al K 48 1
FTARBR ©

EREEBREEARAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

(BrIF=B1EH

21

BAIKAREZ7)

BROTEERFERSE (&)

(b) MEFBHELEZREZHIER

Payables for

Bank Other interest Lease
loans borrowings  expenses liabilities Total
HiieE  EFFE
RITER K it HE&E &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFL ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR
(Note 24) (Note 24) (Note 22) (Note 25)
(Hizt24)  (Kiat24)  (Wi#22)  (Ki#25)
At 1 January 2022 R-E--f#-A-H 1,144,000 2,467,062 40,631 283,902 3,935,595
Changes from financing cash RERERESS:
flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans MERTERFERE 175,000 - - - 175,000
Proceeds from new other borrowings 73 H t & & Fr 5 208 - 2,350,787 - - 2,350,787
Repayment of bank loans BRRTER (340,000) - - - (340,000)
Repayment of other borrowings ERAMEE - (1,728,244) - - (1,728,244)
Other finance costs paid Hitt 2 HRER A = = (229,719) - (229,719)
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2% 2 EAH%H = = = (31,238) (31,238)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2 2 FEHH - - - (17,931) (17,931)
Total changes from financing MEB S T EATE
cash flows (165,000) 622,543 (229,719) (49,169) 178,655
Other changes: Hit 25
Interest expenses, bank chargesand  F|E8 R BAFEERE
other finance costs (see Note 6@)  fuB &R A (2 Hiz6(a)) - - 186,164 17931 204,095
Capitalised borrowing costs BRLEERA
(see Note 6(a)) (Zhiitea) - - 84,486 - 84,486
Decrease in lease liabilities from FRHEREZ
disposal of leases during the year HEBERD = - - (70,127) (70,127)
Increase in lease liabilities from FRFTUHBNL
entering into new leases REAREM
during the year - - - 1,272 1272
Total other changes En2ges - - 270,650 (50,924) 219,726
At 31 December 2022 RZB=Z%
+=A=1t-H 979,000 3,089,605 81,562 183,809 4,333,976

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022




Notes to the Financial Statements

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued) 21 SR{T&EFERFERE (&)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEZTBELEZEBZYHE
financing activities (continued) (#&)
Payables
Other  for interest Lease
Bank loans  borrowings expenses liabilities Total
EfhfEE  ERANE
RITER ke it HEAR asf

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT

(Note 24) (Note 24) (Note 22) (Note 25)

(Wiat24)  (Wis24)  (Wi22)  (B#25)

At 1 January 2021 R-B=-%¥-A-8 1,615,455 1,500,000 10,283 80,942 3,206,680

Changes from financing cash HERERERD:

flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans M T e ESE 830,000 - - - 830,000
Proceeds from new other borrowings #3& E & EF{E7UA - 1,740,977 - - 1,740,977
Repayment of bank loans BRRIER (1,296,072) - - - (1,296,072)
Repayment of other borrowings EREMEE - (832,727) = - (832,727)
Other finance costs paid HipB AR = - (210,578) - (210,578)
Capital element of lease rentals paid 242 EAEH - - - (67,610) (67,610)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2 £ 2555 - = = (9,442) (9,442)
Total changes from financing RERSRELE

cash flows (466,072) 908,250 (210,578) (77,052) 154,548
Exchange adjustments EHRE (5,383) - 270 = (5,113)
Other changes: Eth28:
Interest expenses, bank charges and  F| 8% BT FEERA

other finance costs (see Note 6(a) BV E R A ( & fi176(3)) - - 154,482 9,442 163,924
Capitalised borrowing costs EABERA

(see Note 6(a)) (ZHit6a) - - 86,174 - 86,174
Increase in supplier financing e EEm - 58,812 - - 58,812
Increase in lease liabilities from ERUHAL 2

entering into new leases MEEREEM

during the year - - - 270,570 270,570
Total other changes Hin g me = 58,812 240,656 280,012 579,480
At 31 December 2021 R=%=-%

+=A=+—H 1,144,000 2,467,062 40,631 283,902 3,935,595

@eﬁm%gz:ﬁﬁﬁm? 2 5 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

21
(c)

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

RITFEERFERAE (F)
HEZRSR AR

Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow STAGERERERCTHESR
statement for leases comprise the following: BIETIEIE:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZE HE
—EC-C—F —E-—F
t=A=+t—-8 +t=A=+—"H
IEEE WFEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Within operating cash flows KERSMEA 440 470
Within financing cash flows MEREREN 49,169 77,052
49,609 77,522
These amounts relate to the following: ZESTENRIBEAR
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Bz Bz
—E-—F T —%F
+=BA=+—H +=-A=+—H
IEFE FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt AREFIT
Lease rentals paid EffEe 49,609 77,522

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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it 3% ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_—ZFE—-—#+_-HA=+—HILFZF

be settled or recognised as revenue or net income or
in profit or loss within one year or are repayable on

demand.

RERER-

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))
22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 ENRAREMENSRK
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-—EBE_— R-E - —F
+=A=+—H +t=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%F AREFT
Trade payables arising from: FENBEFEANTRBES
— Concession sales — T EEEE 91,483 141,770
— Purchase of inventories —-BERE 29,391 28,914
120,874 170,684
Amounts due to related parties JFE R & IE (R HEEG))
(see Note (i) 172,652 81,024
Other payables and accrued expenses: E fth fE{f A M EZTEF -
— Payables for staff related costs -ENzEIHBEER 14,245 20,448
— Payables for interest expenses and  —ENMFEZEREEZR S
transaction costs on borrowings [N 81,562 40,631
— Deposits from concessionaries R ERkERRS
and customers 45,824 26,836
— Dividends payables — R R 3,661 3,661
— Others (see Note (ii) — Bl (R A aEGi)) 214,173 70,648
359,465 162,224
Financial liabilities measured at REEKATEZEMAE
amortised cost 652,991 413,932
Other taxes payable &5 E Ath 7 18 2,631 2,564
655,622 416,496
All of the trade and other payables are expected to FT 7 FE 1~ R 3K B2 HL th & - SRTB BRI

—FREERERHREIOFRAK

ﬁ%%?bﬁ%f‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’/}?
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bt IES B 555

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes:

(i) The balance as at 31 December 2022 are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and are expected to be settled in 2023.

(i)  Included in the balance are payables of RMB163,182,000
at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB6,867,000) due to a
third party relating to the renovation and upgrade of one
department store and the shopping mall.

Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other payables are trade payables

with the following ageing analysis (based on the maturity
date) as of the end of the reporting period:

BAIKAREZ7)

22 ENERAREMESR(E)
HisE

() RZBEZZF+-A=+—RHZ#H
HAEEETF SEUAREHN ==
—ZFERE-

(il #HHBERZ-ZZE=Z=F+=A
=+t BENE=ZFHREBEBARE
163,182,000 (ZZTE=Z—F: AR
#6,867,0007T ) + H B E 7 &I &
—HEERSEREYTLER-

BR#R 2 AT

BT A E A5 BR 3R B HL th & 5 R 2 FE AT B
FR|MERRILDEB 2 BRE DT 1A
T

At At

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-==-— MN-E——4F
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Due within one month or on demand R —1{&E RE|EsiZE k% 120,874 170,684

23 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

23 EEAE
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R=ZT—Z RZEZ—F
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Contract liabilities in relation to EHEERHEFIEBN
customer loyalty programme SRAE 4,571 6,678
Contract liabilities in relation to BERATEMNE P KIER
prepayments from customers BREE (RHEE®)
(see Note (i) 147,853 128,277
152,424 134,955

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

23 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount
of the transaction price allocated to the performance
obligations that are unsatisfied as of the end of the
reporting period. The Group expects the transaction price
allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligations will
be recognised as direct sales and gross revenue from
concession sales when the Group transfers goods or
services to the customer.

23

Note:

(i) Movements in contract liabilities in relation to
prepayments from customers

(GIHFZEHER BRIAAREZS)

ERAARE (A

ANAEENREPRORERER
TzROEEZRSERE - FEH
B KBRS RS R RS
SEEXRBETROEENR S B
RAEZHE R ENEYES -

it -

() BHBEAEFREZAOEERD

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R=-B=-—F RZZE=_—F
+=—HA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AR T T
Balance at 1 January R—RA—R&& 128,277 96,158
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result HPARFIFTAENBBEZFN
of recognising revenue during the year Rz aHaERd
that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year (80,051) (88,875)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result  EREIAFENEEREKEF
of receipts in advance from customers FIEMmIL Nz &R AR
during the period in respect of prepaid
stored value cards 99,627 120,994
Balance at 31 December R+-—A=+—Bz&% 147,853 128,277

The unsatisfied performance obligations resulting from
direct sales and gross revenue from concession sales
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year or
on demand.

AERHERFFRERHEEES
ZARBITRHOEERBWRBRK
R—FRAHIRBREER-

HESHEEXERERDA
SRR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24 RITRHEMEE

(a) The Group’s short-term bank loans and other () AEEZEHBRITERRHA
borrowings are analysed as follows: BEIHME:

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

R=-T|=-Z= R-ZE_—F

t=A=+—-R t=A=1+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Bank loans: RITER

- secured by the Group’s land and  —IAZKREE 7+ RIEFE
buildings and guaranteed by the IR WHAR A KT
Company and Qujiang Financial & mIE A E R

Holdings 90,000 100,000
- guaranteed by Qujiang Financial — — B #)T & ghi%E AR &R
Holdings = 30,000
90,000 130,000
Other borrowings: HiEE:
— unsecured and unguaranteed — AR & AR 2,350,448 1,411,486

Add: current portion of long-term  fn: REIRITER R EMER
bank loans and other borrowings  Z BlEAE8 5 ( & Kt z24(b))
(see Note 24(b)) 850,300 610,000

3,290,748 2,151,486

2 5 6 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24 BORAMEBE (&)
(continued)
(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans and other (b) *EBZRHKRITERREM
borrowings are analysed as follows: BEESHMT:
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

RZB--F R-ZT——F
+t=A=t+-A +t=A=+—~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBF T

LTy

Bank loans: RITEN
— secured by the Group’s investment —AZREE 7 &Y% E+
property and land and buildings b N HE T o R SRR R

and future income rights and EIRR  WHARF K
guaranteed by the Company and R—EBEAER
Mr. Wu Yijian 304,000 344,000
— guaranteed by a subsidiary of — BT & @Ak — B
Qujiang Financial Holdings NAEER 50,000 70,000
— guaranteed by Qujiang Financial — — gL & B iZ AR &R
Holdings 35,000 =
- secured by the Group’s land and  —AZAREE 2 £t RIEFIEE
buildings and guaranteed by e WEHERYEZRK
future income of the pledged WA RAR R RIER
properties and the Company 500,000 600,000
889,000 1,014,000
Other borrowings: HEMEE:
— unsecured and unguaranteed — IR K R 93,181 =
— guaranteed by Qujiang Financial — — (B #H)T & B % IX B 1R
Holdings 45,976 55,576
- secured by the Group’s investment —ARNEE 218 EWE K+
property and land and buildings R EF R I B i
and guaranteed by Qujiang L5 B AR K 7N [ B /B
Financial Holdings and NEER
subsidiaries of the Group 600,000 1,000,000
739,157 1,055,576
Less: current portion of long-term i : REASRITER N HMWE R
bank loans and other borrowings 2 BNEAER 0 ( & ff7t24(a))
(see Note 24(a)) (850,300) (610,000)
777,857 1,459,576

tesrmrLaaRan P
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans and
other borrowings are analysed as follows:

(continued)

The Group’s long-term bank loans and other

borrowings are repayable as follows:

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

24 RITKEMBE (&)

(b) AEEzRBBITERR EAth
BEDHMT :

(#%&)

AEE 2 RERITERREAME

EARTHIMEER:

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

R=B=Z=HF RIT_—F

+=A=+—H8 +=—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% T ARETF T

Within 1 year —F R 850,300 610,000
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 310,876 844,000
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZERFEAN 422,981 511,576
After 5 years HF#E 44,000 104,000
1,628,157 2,069,576

All of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
None of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings is expected to be settled

within one year.

(c)

Bt BARTTE
R —FNEE-

FTA SEBNHART BERITE R S H At
t& B2 S A AN A B o B4 3R
REHEMEETR

The following assets and their respective (0 TMIEERHEHZRAZEEER

carrying values as at the end of the reporting AREARSHERUER K
period are pledged to secure the Group's SEZRITREMEE ZIE

bank and other borrowings: &

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

R-ZBZ-Z§F R-T-—F

+=A=+—H +t=—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FRLT AREKTT

Property and equipment eI &L 3,734,360 2,844,000

Investment property B 728,772 1,265,300

Cash at bank (see Note 21(a)(i) R1T8ETE (B HaE21(a)0)) 2,715 1,012

4,465,847 4,110,312
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))
24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24 ROTREMEE (&)
(continued)
REEE TRITREMERE W
THEEREE L ERTHP 2R
REF - WMARERERRZE  Z
EEEBENERERKEER R
B F+ZA=+—8B %
BmERBARITREMEENZ

(d) Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings (d)
are subject to the fulfilment of covenants
commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach
the covenants, such borrowings would become

repayable on demand. At 31 December 2022, none

of the covenants relating to the bank and other Fh o
borrowings had been breached.
25 LEASE LIABILITIES 25 HES®E
At 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities were repayable R-E-_—F+_A=+—H HE
as follows: BEMEFRHAWT
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-T—— JrAEE ==
+=A=+—B +t-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETT
Within 1 year —F R 17,847 50,223
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMRFR 19,357 68,770
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFA 52,732 53,433
After 5 years FF1% 93,873 111,476
165,962 233,679
183,809 283,902

HESHEEXERERDA
SRR
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I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 26 B MRREKAZAEHR
FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Movements in current taxation in the (a) HREMBRRRAZZHAHIE
consolidated statement of financial position 2EIE:
are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZE HZE

—E-_F —E-—%F
t=A=+—-B +t=—A=t+—H
I E IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARMTFIT

Balance of income tax payable R—A—BEMNFSERAR

at 1 January 36,171 36,632
Withholding tax on distributed DIRBNFEN

earnings - 22,950

Provision for income tax on the AREEEET R R AR (4
estimated taxable profits for the B FT1S % (R MTat7(a))

year (see Note 7(a)) - 4,354
Under/(over)-provision in respect of B FEREERN S (B5E)

prior years (see Note 7(a)) (RHtE7(a)) 680 (102)
Income tax paid during the year FRENTEH (753) (27,663)
Balance of income tax payable Rt+t-—A=+—BEfzZ

at 31 December PRSI A5 8R 36,098 36,171

2 60 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_—ZFE—-—#+_-HA=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB B TAIUAARKZ7)

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF MBRRRAZFAEH
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (/)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELEHBEEEREE:
Fair value
adjustments on
property and
equipment,

Expected credit investment Interest

losses on properties and  capitalisation on
Accrued  financial assets intangible assets  prepayment for
expenses and measured at and related  acquisition of
deferred income  amortised cost depreciation properties Net
VEVESR
RENER
EVEEL
MERE
REEHATRE  UREBAE LS
B xR LEMEE RAKEE REFEZ
BEUA RREEEE P HEERL B
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AEBTFT AEBTT AEBTT AEBTT AERTT

Deferred tax arising from: BTG EEL 2 BERE:
At 1 January 2021 R=FZ--£-f-H 2,939 11,037 (531,100) (79,789) (596,913)

(Charged)/credited to the consolidated statement  (#18) /Gt AR BHER (ZHi76))

of profit or loss (see Note 7(a)) (1,536) (903) 28,603 (21,543) 4,621
Charged to reserves (see Note 10) RERR (ZHF10) - - (26,177) - (26,177)
At 31 December 2021 RZE--F+-A=1-H 1,403 10,134 (528,674) (101,332) (618,469)

(Charged) /credited to the consolidated statement (#18) /3t AGABER (EHE7E)

of profit or loss (see Note 7a)) (499) 1 22,353 (21,122) 733
Charged to reserves (see Note 10) RERR (ZHF10) - - (31.177) - (31,177)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—f+-f=1-H 904 10,135 (537,498) (122,454) (648,913)

ﬁ%%?bﬁ%f‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’/} 7

—E-—fF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 26 BBARRKRAZFAEB

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (&)

(c) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and () AFEEMKMRRERNWIEL
liabilities recognised in the consolidated REEERAEEBHE
statement of financial position

At At

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R=-==—— R_EB_—4F
+=—HA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Deferred tax assets recognised in the RiG& BRI XER
consolidated statement of financial IR IBEE

position 11,039 11,537
Deferred tax liabilities recognised REFE T FERARERLZ
in the consolidated statement of EEFIEEE
financial position (659,952) (630,006)
(648,913) (618,469)
(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised (d) KRERZEEHREEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in R IR BT EE2(s) P& 2 & &T IR -
Note 2(s), the Group has not recognised deferred REBWAEREBAE A
tax assets in respect of unused tax losses of M EEAR®1,263,989,000
RMB1,263,989,000 (2021: RMB1,010,017,000) as T (ZEZ —F: AR
it is not probable that future taxable profits against 1,010,017,0007T ) 2 iE & I8
which the losses can be utilised will be available BE RERTEBHB LR
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The @R BRI AR EIGEARK
remaining unused tax losses at 31 December 2022 JERT G ABAEIB - R
will expire on or before the financial period ending T+ -A=1t—HZ&% Tk
31 December 2027. HRAMBERIRNEZE —T_+
F+—-A=+—H8 - REEsk
2 B JE i ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 26 MBERRARAZFIEH
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (#&)

(e) RERZELEHEAE

(e) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2022, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of certain
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
amounted to RMB679,692,000 (31 December
2021: RMB853,703,000). Deferred tax liabilities
of RMB33,985,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB42,685,000) have not been recognised in
respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is

RZBE_—F+=—A=+—8H"
EAAREBE TR B 2 BB
REZ R &N E@ s EFE
A ANR%679,692,0007T (=
E-_—F+_-_A=+—H: AR
#.853,703,000)7T ) ° iE %E 7% 18
B {& AR #33,985,0007T (==&
——F+ZA=+—H: AR¥
42,685,0007T) M KRB IEZF
RE & 2 2K i B 2 BB m
FUARER - RE AR R BIESIZ

EHEMBRRZREBELE
BEXREZEFWE QR ZEMA
RATRER A A R T IAD K °

probable that profits from these subsidiaries will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

27 PROVISIONS 27 #BfE
Year ended
31 December
2022
BZE
—E-—F
+=A=+-AR
IEFEE
RMB’000
AR¥ T
At 1 January 2022 N-_E-_—_F—F—H 288,593
Addition 0 970
At 31 December 2022 NR-_EBE-_—_F+-_H=+—H 289,563
Reconciliation to the consolidated statements of 43 & B F&AA W 2% ¥ BR ¢
financial position:
Non-current JERED =
Current & 289,563
289,563

i L
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B %5 8 = M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 PROVISIONS (continued)

=E- = H=+—HIFFE

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

27 BB (2

Certain subsidiaries of the Company (the “Relevant
Subsidiaries”) have begun cooperation with the Prepaid
Card Management Company since 2009 for its provision
of services in managing the issue and usage of Cash
Coupon Card (single-use prepaid card) (the “Cash
Coupon Card”) for the Group's department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets (the “Relevant Stores”),
and entered into a termination agreement with the
Prepaid Card Management Company on 31 October
2019 to terminate the cooperation with the Prepaid Card
Management Company in respect of the Cash Coupon
Card thereunder, pursuant to which no new Cash
Coupon Card will be issued and sold by the Prepaid Card
Management Company.

Pursuant to the applicable PRC laws and regulations
and the rules related to the Cash Coupon Card,
consumers can still use the issued Cash Coupon Card
for consumption in the Relevant Stores, and the Prepaid
Card Management Company remains obliged to repay
the consumption amount of the abovementioned Cash
Coupon Card to the Relevant Subsidiaries.

As of 31 December 2022, the total amount of the
Cash Coupon Card issued but not yet consumed is
approximately RMB472,793,000. After comprehensively
considering the amount of Cash Coupon Card that
is expected to be consumed in the future, have been
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

(b)

Movements in components of equity

28 EXR-EERKRE

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the

— = — —

S ——

Fr_A=+—HILFE

(GIHFZEHER BRIAAREZS)

(a)

g )
AEEGE #2802 )
KRR BRI R &
HEBR - AREHIEHARA
RAZ B AR 2 B BT

changes in the Company’s individual components of E Il (N
equity between the beginning and the end of the
reporting period are set out below:
Contributed Exchange  Accumulated
Share capital  Share premium ~ Capital reserve surplus reserve losses Total
A k&R BRfE EON:L ] EXRfE 23 B8 &if
AMB'000 AMB000 AMB'000 AMB000 AMB'000 AMB'000 AMB000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETn  AREFr AREFr AREx
(Note 28(c)  (Note 28(a)i)  (Note 28(d)ii) ~ (Note 28(dl\ii}) ~ (Note 28(d)i)
(W80)  (WzosoN))  (Wa2si))  (Ha2sai)  (Hzzsuhi)
Balance at 1 January 2021 HoB--£-f-AEH 19369 113659 6377 995,255 198752 (35240) 1,601,108
Changes in equity for the year: FEERESY:
Total comprehensive income for the year rEREANELER - - (45,626) 574 (45,095)
Balance at 31 December 2021 and RZBZ-£+Zf=+-RK
1 January 2022 “§-oE-f-REH 19369 113659 6377 995,255 153,083 (034666 1556013
Changes in equity for the year: FEERESY:
Total comprehensive income for the year rEERANGLER - - (19.929) (4818) (84,747)
Balance at 31 December 2022 WoB--E+-B=t-ALH 19369 1,136,595 6377 995,255 73,154 (039484) 1471266
Dividends (b) BRE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (i) AABRERITBRESE
the Company and holder of the convertible M A ARSI R R AR
preference shares attributable to the period. =
The directors of the Company do not RARARESWTEZRIKN
recommend the payment of a dividend for the HE-_T-_—_F+=A
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB =t+—BLEFEFEZRE
Nil). (ZFZ—F ARET
JT) °
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (i) ARARERATRREL

the Company and holder of the convertible
preference shares attributable to the previous
financial year, approved during the period.

No final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year has been approved for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB Nil).

Pe#E A AREIE £ — MR
REMRE (RPAEL]
/E)

HE_Z_—_F+=- A
=+ —BULEFEVELE
F—UEBRFEMNRBRE
(ZEZ—F:ARBZT
JL) e
HESREEERERAR
—E=—FEg
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I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital

(i) Issued share capital

28 EX -RERKRE (&)

() B=X

(i) BRITRE

Year ended 31 December 2022 Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-B-CE HE-Z--F
TZA=T-ALEE TZA=T-BL%E
Number of shares Number of shares
k#EA Ri&E
00 RMBY0O 00 AUB00
& ARETT T ARETT
Authorised: e
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BRO.1BTZ LA 15,000,000 135,168 15,000,000 135,168
Preference shares at HK$0.1 each BRO.\BTZBRAR 5,000,000 45,056 5,000,000 45,056
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: EZTRATEZER:
At 1 January and 31 December R=A-BRt+=-A=1+-H 1,149,695 103,602 1,149,695 103,602
Convertible preference shares, issued  EETRARTRRELR:
and fully paid:
At 1 January and 31 December R-B-Ak+=-A=1-H 1,177,068 95,767 1,177,068 95,767
Total share capital RA4% 2,326,763 199,369 2,326,763 199,369
Ordinary shares AR

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company's
residual assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

Issued share capital (continued)
Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares do not carry the
right to vote. The holder of the convertible
preference shares has the right, at any time
and at the sole option of such holder, to
convert the convertible preference shares in
whole, or in any part, into fully paid ordinary
shares in the Company. The conversion ratio
is 1 convertible preference share to 1.1
ordinary shares. Holder of the convertible
preference shares ranks pari passu with other
holders of the ordinary shares in respect of its
entitlement to dividend or other distribution of
the Company. In the event of any liquidation,
winding-up or dissolution of the Company,
holder of the convertible preference shares
shall receive an amount equal to HK$1.60 per
convertible preference share, plus all accrued
but unpaid dividends in preference to the
ordinary shareholders.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Capital reserve

At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
capital reserve comprises the following:

—  the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to
directors of the Company, and employees
and service providers of the Group that
has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 2(r)(ii);

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

—E - —HF —HA=+—HIFE
(BRIFFHFHEH TAUAREZZ])

28 EX -RERKRE (&)

() B=A&(#&)

(i)

BRITRAE (&)

A] P2 A% 18 55 iR

A AR B I BT A 1R 2=
R BBRELRIFTEA
A RER ] b5 R M iR ez i
BEAZRBEEEZEEZ TR
% 1B 5t i% 2 BB Sk AR ] 3R 1D
ERARKNBZEHBEE
BAR - IR R A1 IR AR IR
BERERIRE R -
AMRELERIFEAEARE
L BERFEALREE
BARR AR S s H AL ok
F A B RE AL A
NaER  EESERE 1]
BRELRFIEABRLE
BERERELKDREES
5] 7 4% 5 R AT #2388 o8 iR
1.60/87C ' M EFTAEEHE
AT B ZFRIE -

(d) REZMERRARZR

(i)

(i)

RG&EE
o aERMERB AR
E—HNN\—FRAEFHL0

By
IREEE o

BXFE
R—ZZE=-_—_F+ = A
=+—-Ak=F=_—F
+ZA=+—H8 BEXRRF
HEEFEATEE:

- BYARARESEUR
NEBEZEERRE
HEE 2 M ARITERE
BIEAFERAHZA
AEZD THERE
B 5E2(r) () EE A B EF
MBI R 2 &5
KR

HESHEEXERERDA
SRR
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I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Capital reserve (continued)

At 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021, capital reserve comprises the following:
(continued)

—  the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share
capital and share premium of a subsidiary
acquired through an exchange of shares
pursuant to a group reorganisation took
place on 28 September 2000;

—  the difference between the carrying
amounts and the principal amounts of
the unsecured notes redeemed in 2071
and 2012; and

—  the difference between the consideration
paid on the acquisition of non-controlling
interests and the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests.

Contributed surplus

The application of the contributed surplus
account is governed by Section 54 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings held for own use in Note 2(g).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of other financial
assets held at the end of the reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Notes 2(f) and

2(k)(i).
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28 EX -RERKRE (&)

(d) REZUEERRAR (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

BXGFE (&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(e)

(vi) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association
of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC, these subsidiaries were required
to set up certain statutory reserves, which
were non-distributable. The transfers of these
reserves are at discretion of the directors of the
respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserves
can only be utilised for predetermined means
upon approval by the relevant authority.

(vii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations into the presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(v).

Capital management

The Group’'s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

—E - —HF —HA=+—HIFE
(BRIEZEHHA

BRIKAREZ3)

28 EX-fRERRE (&)

(d) RE2MEERRAR (&F)

(e)

(vi) EE#E
BEBEAEE R BEKL
2B R TZ@%E&
%MU%%W% Ma
1%%%%%2%%&%
MEBARESMIEET
EERBEANRNEBERER
BERARBELEEEZHA
o

(vii) (B % f# %
ELRERREFAERER
EEBRBBERRBERSE

P EMETELMEN =
28 o 1 T IR IR M R 2(v) P
e BURERE -

EXER
AEEERERAEEFERER
SENFEK SR AMEFE
18 B2 [ e 7K 2 3 S i 5 B m K AR
BEERREEXARGREM
A1 3 IR R 7 SR [B] 3 % 7 EL At )
AR E RN AR e

AEEREBREHRTRERE
BARRE EHERBRSEEKE
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I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z —ZF— —

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(e) Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt
(which includes bank and other borrowings and
lease liabilities), plus unaccrued proposed dividends,
less cash at bank on hand. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

In order to improve the Group’s capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

F+-A=+—HILFE
(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

28 EX -RERKRE (&)

(e)

EXRERE (&)

REBURRHEFEEHERL
RREEMEREENERE -5
s EHABRFEEDAES
BIRMER (EBRRRIThEME

BMIRTTFHARE - KHBEARE
& BT B HE 25 8817 BUR B K A

B o
o

RNEREB 2 BERRE K&
EREAEXNTRRONRE S
BRITHED SERMNES
MESRHEEENRDER -

R —FR T —F+—
A=+—8 &AL FEEHE
AEEEMT

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
N N ——
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT AREFIT
Current liabilities: mENAE:
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMES 3,290,748 2,151,486
Lease liabilities HEBRE 17,847 50,223
Non-current liabilities: IERBEE:
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEAMEE 777,857 1,459,576
Lease liabilities HEAE 165,962 233,679
Total debt B 4a%E 4,252,414 3,894,964
Less: cash at bank and on hand o ERIT M FERIR (19,542) (36,520)
Adjusted net debt KRARFEEE 4,232,872 3,858,444
Adjusted capital BABER 1,507,032 1,808,260
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio EFAR FEEEE AR R 281% 213%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(e) Capital management (continued)

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk as
most of the transactions are denominated in the same
currency as the functional currency of the operations
in which they relate. Exposure to credit, liquidity and
interest rate arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
arising from its equity investment in another entity.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place, and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with
acceptable credit quality. Management does not
expect any of these financial institutions with fail to
meet their obligations.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group or the Company to
credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

=E- = H=+—HIFFE
(BIEZEIER TRIUAREZS)

29 BIBEREERQAE

(%)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk arising from trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
debtor rather than the industry in which the debtors
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual debtors. At the
end of the reporting period 16% (2021: 18%) and
48% (2021: 43%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest debtor and the five
largest debtors, respectively.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all debtors requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the debtor’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the debtor
as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the debtor operates. Trade receivables
are generally due within 3 months from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from debtors.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
Trade receivables are mainly due from credit
card centres owned by state-owned financial
institutions in the PRC and tenants operating in
the Group's department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets, and accordingly, the management of
the Group considers the concentration and credit
risks to be low. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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—E - —HF —HA=+—HIFE
(BRIFFHFHEH TAUAREZZ])

29 IBEREERQAE

(%)

(a)

Credit risk arising from trade receivables

(continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables:

EEEE ()

ARG EREL 2 ERAR
(#)

TEHIAEEESE EEEAR
R RN E R > S B AR 2 A
E

At 31 December 2022
R=B=-=#£+=A=+-~8

Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEBR=R AEREE BEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AR¥®Fr
Current (not past due) BER (R ER) 0.5% 11,824 59
Less 3 months past due  EHINER B = @ A 1.2% 725 9
Over 3 months past due I HA#AE @ =1A A 100% - -
12,549 68

At 31 December 2021

R_E_—F+_-_HA=+—H
Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TR EE IR X BEREE EREE
% RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETT
Current (not past due) BVER (AR8ER) 0.5% 11,215 56
Less 3 months past due mHN R =18 A 1.2% 15,251 183
Over 3 months past due #8488 = 1@ A 100% - -
26,466 239

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group's view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

BEHERERDRBBE=-FE
BREBREREGEH ZFLXREE
HH 8 A S BR 57 5 5B 13 BUR AR
ZREEAR B IR A R
MR IR TR A B B AR R
LB ER-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 BiIREKREERAAE
VALUES (continued) (#&)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a)

Credit risk arising from trade receivables
(continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of trade receivables during the period is as follows:

EEEB (F)

Rt E SRS EL S EEAR
(%)

Hofh B BRI e (S B
PO+ B 5 4
m -

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

BZE HZE

—E-= —E-—F
+=A=+-8 +t=A=+-~
LHFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMFT ARETT

Balance at 1 January R—H—B#&&k

Impairment losses (reversed)/ FR(ELD) #RZ
recognised during the year BB EE

Balance at 31 December R+ -—A=+—B 2%

Credit risk arising from other receivables
from third parties

The Group measures loss allowance for other
receivables at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated based
on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

29 BHEBREERQAE
(%)

(b) RBELER

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for the short-term investments of their
cash surpluses, where the raising of financings is
centrally managed by the head office of the Group
to cover expected cash demands. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

At 31 December 2022, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB4,242,470,000. The Group has
undertaken and will continue to undertake various
measures in order to further improve its liquidity
position in the short and longer term. Further details
are set out in Note 2(b).

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest dates the Group
can be required to pay.

AEEANERNKEEBRRRS
ReRBfcEHRE MEESE
SAUAAKERIETEEURE
NEMREF R - NEE 2 HE
RERERERDESHLLH
ETEERE BN ARERAK
SEHERBERASRENREE
2oRBEAGERRERES
NENEHEERMZABEST
sk o

RZEZZF+=—R=+—8"
AEEZRBEEFEAARK
4,242,470,0007C ° A~ &£ B E 7%
o R % A BN 2% TE R e DA 3 —
PREECHRERBHZRHE
AR o E— FEFIBEH M
2(b) o

TREEAEEZNTEEHE
BERRERR BT ENEEE
o BRBRTIRES #RMER
Bang (BREMAS QN X
8RB FEBA X AIRER
BERRZIMRFAEZANEN
) A B AR SR B A] BE R B SR B K
ZERPRBEH-

As at 31 December 2022
R-E--%+-B=1-H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BHRBRASRE
More than
More than 2 years but Carrying
Within 1 year 1 year but less less than More than amount at
oron demand  than 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
i
—FR BB-F BBRE T=A=t-H
FREX  EIRWE  BIREF BBLE At ZEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Trade and other payables REERAGEL
measured at amortised cost  FETERFN R E M ER 652,991 - - - 652,991 652,991
Lease liabilities HEEE 31,679 31,868 81,955 109,785 255,287 183,809
Bank and other borrowings BIREMEE 3,742,618 354,007 461,066 45,513 4,603,204 4,068,605
4,027,288 385,875 543,021 155,298 5,511,482 4,905,405
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

29 BIBEREERQAE

(%)

(b)

As at 31 December

REBETER (&)

2021

R=ZE--%+=-A=+-H

Contractual undiscounted

cash outflow

AHRMRR R
More than
More than 2 years but Carrying
Within 1 year 1 year but less less than More than amount at
orondemand than 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
—£R BE—F BBmE +-A=t+-H
dEEX  EIRRE  EIREE BALE Ch ZEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFL ARETT  ARETT AREFTT ARETT  AREFR
Trade and other payables BEERATEL

measured at amortised cost  JEMERA R E {1 EM 469,508 - - - 469,508 469,508
Lease liabilities BERE 70,515 85,441 85,950 137,157 379,063 283,902
Bank and other borrowings ROREMEE 2,328,248 917,639 568,207 111,034 3,925,128 3,611,062
2,868,271 1,003,080 654,157 248,191 4,773,699 4,364,472

Interest rate risk (c) F=ERE

(c)

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk respectively.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of
the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFH

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate profile (continued)

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

—E - —HF —HA=+—HIFE

#EH BRAIAAREZ3)

29 B EREERQAE

(%)

() F=mbz (&)
(i) FIEHR (&)

At 31 December 2022
R-E--f+-A=+-H R-ZE-_—F+-F=1+—H

At 31 December 2021

Effective
interest rate

BERAE

% RMB’000
ARETT

Effective
interest rate
B A%
% RMB’000
AREFTT

Fixed rate borrowings: EEFXEE:

Other borrowings Hitfg g2

Bank loans RITER

Variable rate borrowings: [ IR {EE

Other borrowings HiuEERS

Bank loans BITER

Total borrowings EEBR

Fixed rate borrowings as ~ BEEFIREEEEERE
a percentage of total gEzANH
borrowings

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately RMB6,800,000 (31 December
2021: RMB9,000,000).

7.0% 2,909,605

7.2% 2,167,062

6.3% 479,000 6.7% 544,000
3,388,605 2,711,062
7.9% 180,000 7.9% 300,000
6.6% 500,000 5.8% 600,000
680,000 900,000
4,068,605 3,611,062
83%
75%
(i) SEMEDH

RN _—_ZFE - _—_F+ =8
=f+—B - EmEHEMA

FEEREZRFIEZIBR

T & F X — AR 1L A0 sk
1005 B 15 R > ok 12
AR E R % )& N RIRE
i F 49 A R #66,800,0007T
(ZB=—F+=-A=+—
H: AR#¥9,000,000
JL) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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=

F+-A=+—HILFE

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 BiIEKBREERAAE

VALUES (continued)

(%)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate borrowings held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact of which on the Group’s loss
after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

(d) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from other financial assets (see Note 18).

The Group’s investments in other financial assets
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The
performance of these equity securities is regularly
monitored.

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that an
increase/decrease of 10% in the relevant stock
price with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group's other
comprehensive income by RMB20,649,000 (31
December 2021: RMB25,590,000).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s other comprehensive income
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock price had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure this
financial instrument held by the Group which
exposes the Group to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. It is also assumed that
none of the Group’s other financial assets would be
considered impaired as a result of the decrease in
the relevant stock price, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

3 Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

The Group has a team headed by the
finance manager performing valuations for
the financial assets measured at FVPL. The
team reports directly to the chief financial
officer and the audit committee. A valuation
report with analysis of changes in fair value
measurement is prepared by the team at each
interim and annual reporting date, and is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. Discussion of the valuation process
and results with the chief financial officer and
the audit committee is held twice a year, to
coincide with the reporting dates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

=E- = H=+—HIFFE
(BIEZEIER TRIUAREZS)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 BiIEKBREERAAE

VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e)

(%)

DMREFE (F)

at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured

(i) BARBEEZEHMEE
RE&E (&)
RIAEER (&)
Fair value measurements as

at 31 December 2022 categorised into
R-B-ZETZA=1-Hz

Fair value at RAETEIER
31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZB-ZE
TZB=1-H
DA -4 £ £=4
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFR AREFT
Recurring fair value measurements EEM A AEHE
Financial assets: SREE:
Fquity securities designated at FVOCI %6 E AR AL BB AE
(see Note 18 (3)) 2HIAE 2 AN
(FAIBIE) RS
(RH18) 206,491 206,491 - -
Financial assets measured at FVPL BALEHEARE
(see Note 18 (b)) TABEEREE
(RHz180) 14,675 - - 14,675
Fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2021 categorised into
RZF--F+ZA=1-Hz
Fair value at RAEHESRA
31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R_T_-%
t-A=1-H
ME £ E=R E=
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT AREFT AREFT ARRFT
Recurring fair value measurements 8%t 2 A &
Financial assets: SHEE:
Fquity securities designated at FVOCI % E AR A4 BB AE
(see Note 18 (3) SHAL2ENG
(FABIE) RS
(ZHit186) 255,900 255,900 - -
Financial assets measured at FVPL RAAB2AEEY
(see Note 18 (b) TABREREE
(ZHiF180)) 16,639 - - 16,639

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
(2021: Nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

The fair value of financial assets measured at
FVPL is determined by the share of net assets
when a recent property valuation is available
according to the International Private Equity
and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines. A
10% increase/decrease in net assets would
result in a RMB1,468,000 increase/decrease in
the fair value of the financial assets and would
have increased/decreased the Group's profit by
RMB1,468,000.
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(%)

(e) AREFE(HE)

(i)

BARBEZEHEE
REMRF(E)
AAREER (E)
BE_Z_-_—_F+=HA
=+t BILEEFER &
B — MRS — R iR
B A HE=F (=
T-—F:E) AEFZ
BRERIEEEE 2 HKE
HRBERAABEERESS
A%z B o
E=ArE

tEEH
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(¥EEVAE RAALE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

29 MBERERERDAE
(&)
(e) ARMEE (M)

() BARENBZEBEE

at fair value (continued) REEFE (&)
Information about Level 3 fair value FE=RALEFHEEH
measurements (continued) (#&)
The movements during the year in the balance FAR=RARNEFEZ
of the Level 3 fair value measurements are as EREEFNT
follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE HZE
—EFE-_= —E -4
+=A=+—8B +=—A=+—H
IEEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Frx ARBF T
Unlisted investment fund at fair AR ESIERZIE LD
value: REES:
Balance at 1 January R—A—B#&&% 16,639 14,307
Changes in fair value recognised FRRIBHERZ AR E
in profit or loss during the year & &) ( & ff7%5)
(see Note 5) (1,964) 2,332
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—"B 2% 14,675 16,639

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair
values at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021.
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(i) XHFELAAEIRZEH
BEEREBEBZAALHE
i - S
=t+—BRkRZTE=—F
+=ZA=+—8 4&5%5E
LA BK 7N 35 8 85 R AN 51 BR 2
cRMITAZEEEHEAN
AELEERNER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

30 COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2022, the outstanding capital
commitments of the Group not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements were as follows:

(GIHFZEHER BRIAAREZS)

EIE
RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H ' &&
ERESEVBRRTBHEZANE
AN

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-2=-Z= R-ZE_—%F
t+=A=+—-B +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR®TF T
Commitments in respect of purchase BEEMENBREARIREDE Y
of property and equipment and HYE
investment properties
— contracted for —BaT4) 7,940 249,452
— authorised but not contracted for —EREERTL 365,000 200,000
372,940 449,452

At 31 December 2022, capital commitments in respect
of purchase of property and equipment and investment
properties are for leasehold improvements to be installed
in the Group’s department store and supermarket
operations and for the renovation and upgrade of the
department stores and the shopping mall.

In addition, the Group was committed at 31 December
2022 to enter into a new lease of 15 years that is not yet
commenced, the lease payments under which amounted to
RMB29,032,000 per annum. The Group has entered into
a lease as at 31 December 2022 of 20 years, which was
approved by the general meeting in July 2022, however, the
property has not been delivered as of the end of reporting
period hereof as the status of the property has not yet met
the delivery standards as agreed in the contract, the lease
payments under which amounted to RMB73,283,000 per
annum and increase by 5% every 3 years.

RZE-_—F#+-_A=+—H - @
BEMERRBEALREMEZERN
AETHEERASE 2 B ERNS KB
BB ERLECHEREBUREE
M REMRLZEERARBE -

N REBR =T =_F+=A8
=+—BEAEFHF LD AHISE 2
FHE mZBEEMAAR EET
< HENRAEEFE ARE29,032,000
T R—_E-_—_F+-_HA=+—8"
AEBBFTZAB0FNHEE B
ER-_E-_—FLtHESKERZ
g - A BEREHR ZWHE
B oK 2 B A 40 1 7E B0 3 AR 45 1 &
AR HEHEENRERSFEARE
73,283,0007C ' & = 1L 05% °

HESHEEXERERDA
SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

31

32

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in respect
of a payable for acquisition of a property by Ginwa
Investments in August 2005. Ginwa Investments has
defaulted repayment of the above payable. As at the end
of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
do not consider it is probable that a claim will be made
against the Group under the guarantee. The maximum
liability of the Group at the end of the reporting period
under the guarantee issued is the outstanding amount of
the liability of RMB9,500,000 plus accrued interest (2021:
RMB9,500,000).

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with equity shareholders
and their affiliates, and a director of the

31

32

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

ZAREE
CIEEERSERENRZSZTRFN
RWE—BWEZEANFIEmMRE 2
ER - ¢ERECHEREERE LER
HRE-RBEHRAR ARBEERAE
BRI RESRBERMEANERR
HRE AEBRBERRZE BN
ERETZESABEANAEEZE
B AR#9,500,0007T (=& = —4:
AR #9,500,0007T ) hnfEEHFI B o

EXBEALIRS

BRax 5 W IS R E A 2R 1) P BR 2 48
RN REBIVETATERBEA
TRGe

(a) BAQAFTRRREEHEAL
UKk —BRESBETZRS

Company
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZE HE
—E_— —E - —4F
+=A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARKFT
Guarantees provided by Qujiang MU SRR SEEMB A TR
Financial Holdings or its subsidiary & #ARAMR AL B RITRE
for the Group’s bank and other b & R 2 BR
borrowings at the end of the
reporting period 820,976 1,200,000
Net increase/(decrease) in advances & E T4 @i g 2 A F0H
received from Qujiang Financial #wm ORd) (BHEEG)
Holdings (see Note (i) 86,642 (130,372)
Other borrowings from Quijiang HTemMIZERZEMEER
Financial Holdings 2,261,603 1,221,486
Repayment of entrusted loans to ~ EEf T /IZREZTER
Qujiang Financial Holdings - (690,000)
Note: M &t -

(i) The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in Note 8 and the highest paid
employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

it 3% ¥R AR MY A

—E - —HF —HA=+—HIFE
(BRIFFHFHEH TAUAREZZ])

32 EXFEALRF (&)

(b)

FTEEBEASHTM
TEEBABZHM (BEME
BTMBEC N T ARRERZHK
BENMEFMKREENTE TR
SHMES 2B

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
= HE

—E—_— —=EF=-=
+=A=+—8 +—A=+—H
IEEE HEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARKFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EMREMEYEF

in kind 9,072 9,951
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIH R 196 519
9,268 10,470

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
Note 6(b)).

Leasing arrangement

In November 2021, the Group entered into a two-year
lease in respect of certain leasehold properties from a
related party for the operation of a shopping mall. The
total amount of rent payable by the Group under the
lease is RMB95,724,000, which was determined with
reference to amounts charged by the related party
to third parties. At the commencement date of the
lease, the Group recognised an investment property
and a lease liability of RMB82,498,000. In June 2022,
the Group terminated the lease in advance, and the
investment property and lease liability were disposed.
(see Note 13).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

Certain of the related party transactions disclosed in
Note 32(a) above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However,
those transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as
they are conducted on normal commercial terms or
better and not secured by the assets of the Group.

(c)

(d)

FemEit ATEIRA]R
(R HizE6(b)) o

HEZH
RZZEZ—F+—R r&EH
KIS mAREATHERAET
HEMET L ABRFE 2L -
AEEREBEHRERMNESREA
AR #95,724,0000T  Jh2 =R
BAHREZFRBNESREET
REERIER  AEE®R 18
CEMER—EHREEBRARE
82,498,000JT ° I —F = —4F X
A AEERAKILERAE WE
BEEREWELRHEAE (RW
F13) o

LtTRBBEREER S 2B
Ak

P32 EE TE
EATRZEK ETHAUE14
EMREZBAER HNIFERE
R AM ARZERHIE—
REEGRREEGRUETAT
EUREBEEEER  ER
RET ETRBFBI14EZHEE
FRIE ©

HESHEEXERERDA
SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bt IES B 555

33 COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

BAIKAREZ7)

33 AEEEMBMRRRE

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R=-ZT—-C RZTZ—%F
+t=A=+—-B t=—A=1+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt aF AR # AR
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries A NEINGIP - E 1,940,692 1,777,318
Financial assets measured at FVPL 2 QA ExtE B & &)t A
B eMEE 14,676 16,639
1,955,368 1,793,957
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H At e W3R 32,040 29,469
Cash at bank and on hand RITHEFNFERS 108 108
32,148 29,577
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H A FE 1~ 5K 516,250 267,521
516,250 267,521
Net current liabilities REBEEFEHE (484,102) (237,944)
NET ASSETS EEFH 1,471,266 1,556,013
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR#E 28
Share capital AR A 199,369 199,369
Reserves 1 1,271,897 1,356,644
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 1,471,266 1,556,013

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 30 March 2023.

Yao Jiangang
k32 8
Chairman
*E
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Qin Chuan
%Il
Director
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_—_FT_-—#+_H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

34 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(a) Share buy-back for convertible preference
shares

On 15 June 2022, the Company and Glory Keen
Holdings Limited (“Glory Keen”, the subscriber
of the convertible preference shares) entered into
an agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to buy back 1,177,068,000 convertible
preference shares from Glory Keen with the price of
HK$0.21 per convertible preference share and the
consideration of HK$247,184,000 will be satisfied
by the Company by issue of interest-free promissory
note due on the first anniversary of the date of
completion in favour of Glory Keen. On 29 December
2022, the share buy-back transaction was approved
by the special general meeting of the Company. As at
31 December 2022, certain conditions precedent of
the transaction have not been satisfied. On 6 January
2023, the Company issued an announcement that
the share buy-back transaction was completed and
the convertible preference shares were cancelled.

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended
standards, which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2022 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These developments include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

34 BEHRZFAREE
() TRKRELERZREEHE

EAZY__QE/\E+£E| $
NAIREEERABR AT ([4
B T%ﬁﬂx%?ﬁﬂxzwﬁﬁw
R B ARRIERE
B4 01,177,068,0008% 7]
BRELR B AEERELR
0.2178 7t LA & (X {8247,184,000
BT BRAREIEBEITIT
HE—AFIH 28R LEE
MEEEE R -_—F+—=
AZ+hB BRHLEERFER
RAIRRFAIREHE - RZF
ZZFE+ZA=t—"8 %52
BTRRGHREER KT
=& —AXRHB ARQATHE—
BRE EMHRHBRIBRSE T
KR AR B IR E REE o

35 EEMEMAREBE-ZE -
F+-A=+—HLEFEEHXE
MZIERT AR - T ER R 2B
ZI@EW =
BEHRZSHBEREAS 558
M ASEEGSENANEE-S
——F+-A=+-BIFEELERA
MR N Z S SRR DN
EETHR| - XS I2 B T 57 AR
AEMIEBE -

EREEBREEARAT

287



Notes to the Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ-—FE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ )

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 35 EEMEMARREBE-ZE -
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS F+-A=1+—HLEEEXE
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR MZIBRT A - T ERI R 2 E
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 ZEBESE (EF)

(continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUT B

ZEAEN

B HEENR

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
BRGHENE R (BIIAX) KEESERRIAIE LD —T_ME—-H—H
HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts 1 January 2023

Basis for conclusions on HKFRS 17
[llustrative examples on HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17, Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative Information
BERMBHRELENFE175 [RIRE 4] —E_=%—H—H
BRI RELERNE 7w 2 £
BEMBRELENE1THRAAED T
BRVBRELE17H (BITAX)
BERMBHELRENS (BIIR)  BREAEEN GRS ERF 175K
BRI B HE LR EIN — L BEH

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
ERGHENS IR RBEMBRELENERBAR2E (BRIR) S HENKE —T-=%—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
BER G ERFESR (BFIR) Btz EE —ET-=%—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a 1 January 2023
Single Transaction
BERGHENS 2% (BFIR) HE-—XFGELZEERARAEHELENE —T-=%—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
ER G RMNER (BAIAR) WEZAZFRBEE —ET_MNE—-—HR—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BERMBHRELRE 16 (BFIR) ERHLCHERR —T_WE-H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between an To be determined
investor and its associate or joint venture
ERMBMESERE 10 REBSHERNE28H (B R) KELZHAEBENFHAEE 5 7E

PRZEZEEHES)TE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of AREEFAEF HZEERRBAER
what the impact of these developments is expected to be I TEHERKN T E 25 Bl K
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded EBREEMN BT N A A]GEE 47
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant AU EHmERBRERZE -

impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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